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7

APPLICATION8

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF
ARIZONA ELECTRIC POWER COOPERATIVE,
INC. FOR AUTHORIZATION TO INCUR DEBT
AND SECURE LIENS IN ITS PROPERTY TO
FINANCE VARIOUS TRANSMISSION PROJ ECTS

9

1 0 Pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 40-285 and 40-301, or seq., and A.A.C. R14-2-108, Arizona

11 Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. ("AEPCO" or the "Cooperative") in support of its Application
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13 1. AEPCO is an Arizona not-for-profit electric generation and transmission

14 cooperative which supplies all or most of the power and energy requirements of its six Class A

15 member distribution cooperatives, five of which are located in Arizona.

1 6 2. By this Application, AEPCO seeks Commission approval to secure long-term

17 financing in an amount not to exceed $94,123,056 from the Rural Utilities Service ("RUS").'

18 3. Pursuant to the requirements of R14-2-l08(B), AEPCO met with the

19 Commission's Utilities Division Staff on February 25, 2025 for a pre-application meeting to

20 discuss this financing Application.
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AC C - Docket Control

' The Cooperative is not requesting approval for interim financing because, pursuant to the Commission's
authorization in Decision No. 78617, AEPCO has in place two unsecured, committed revolving lines of
credit. By separate application, AEPCO is seeking Commission authorization to increase and extend
these credit facilities to ensure they are sufficient to provide interim funding for the transmission projects
discussed herein as well as the Cooperative's other cash flow needs Spr> Wockel No 12-0177/A-9s-nns2
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1 4 . AEPCO anticipates obtaining the loan through RUS's Treasury Rate Direct Loan

2 Program, which provides funding at treasury rates without an adder. Alternatively, if that

3 program is not available, then the loan would be made pursuant to the RUS's Federal Financing

4 Bank at treasury rates plus 1/8 of 1%.

5 5 . The subject financing will be used by AEPCO to fund various transmission

6 capital projects. The currently identified projects are from AEPCO's 2017-2020 Construction

7 Work Plan ("CWP") and 2021-2024 cwp.2 These projects have been identified as necessary

8 improvements, upgrades, and replacements to AEPCO's transmission plant used to serve its

9 Class A Members and other transmission customers. Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a schedule

10 providing additional detail regarding the projects as identified in AEPCO's currently pending

1 l application with RUS, which is also referred to as the U45 loan. As Exhibit A indicates, the

12 estimated total cost of the various projects is $94,l23,056.

13 6 . The Cooperative requests that the Commission authorize AEPCO to change the

14 specific projects to be financed through the U45 loan without the necessity of obtaining

15 additional Commission approvals.

16 7 . There are several bases for this request for flexibility. First, it is common practice

17 in AEPCO's construction planning for projects to be reprioritized and move in and out of a

18 CWP. The process of returning to the Commission to either amend the application or seek

19 approval for the modifications is time-consuming and burdensome for both AEPCO and the

20 Commission' s Staff .  Second, AEPCO does no t  bel ieve the Commission' s aff i rmat ive review

21 and approval of future project changes is necessary given that AEPCO is a not-for-profit

22 cooperative and any changes to the projects would require approval by both AEPCO's

23

24
2 The CWPs are voluminous documents that contain confidential information. Copies of these and other
confidential materials will be provided to Staff upon execution of a Protective Agreement.
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1 democratically-elected Board of Directors and RUS. Specifically, before the Cooperative begins

2 construction of a transmission project, the project must be included in a CWP that is approved by

3 both the Board and RUS. AEPCO then funds the construction using cash on hand and its

4 revolving lines of credit. Once the project is completed and placed in-service, the Cooperative

5 returns to RUS to draw on the loan for the amount incurred to construct the project.

6 8. To provide for a more efficient process and in light of the CWP review and

7 approval described above, AEPCO requests that the Commission's order approving this

8 Application authorize AEPCO to use the financing to fund additional transmission projects so

9 long as (a) the total amount financed does not exceed $94,123,056 and (b) the projects are

10 included in a CWP that is approved by both the Cooperative's Board of Directors and RUS.

11 9. AEPCO also requests that no interest rate cap be imposed on the subject

12 financing. This request is based on the fact that - historically - the Commission has not imposed

13 such a limitation on the Cooperative's RUS loans. Additionally, the Cooperative cannot lock in

14 an interest rate, but instead is subject to the rate in effect at the time it draws down on the loan

15 after project completion. Thus, imposition of an interest rate cap could unnecessarily and

16 detrimentally interfere with AEPCO's ability to access the approved funding.

17 10. During its November 2024 Board Meeting, AEPCO's Board of Directors

18 approved the transmission financing described herein and directed management to proceed with

19 seeking RUS and Commission approval. AEPCO submitted its application to RUS in November

20 2024 and is currently awaiting approval.

21 11. AEPCO certifies that the proposed financing meets all the requirements set forth

22 in A.R.S. § 40-302(A): (1) it is within the corporate powers of the Cooperative, (2) it is

23 compatible with the public interest, (3) it is compatible with sound financial practices, and (4) it

24
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1 is compatible with the proper performance of AEPCO's service as a public service corporation

2 and will not impair the Cooperative's ability to perform that service.

3 12. Pursuant to R14-2-802(B)(2), this Application is supported by Exhibits A, B, and

4 C attached hereto.

5 13. So that AEPCO can move forward with the loan as soon as RUS approval is

6 received, the Cooperative requests that the Commission approve this Application no later than

7 the July 9, 2025 Open Meeting.

8 WHEREFORE, having fully stated its Application, AEPCO requests that the

9 Commission enter its Order:

1 0 A. Authorizing AEPCO to secure a long-term loan from the Rural Utilities Service in

11 an amount not to exceed $94,123,056.00 to finance various transmission projects identified in the

12 Cooperative's U45 loan application as well as additional transmission projects included in a

13 Construction Work Plan approved by both the Cooperative's Board of Directors and the Rural

14 Utilities Service,

1 5 B. Providing AEPCO with the flexibility necessary to utilize and draw down on the

16 loan without the imposition of an interest rate cap,

17 c . Authorizing AEPCO to grant liens in its property as required in order to secure

18 the borrowings authorized, and

1 9 D. Authorizing AEPCO to engage in any transactions and to execute any documents

20 necessary to effectuate the authorizations granted.

2 1

22

23

24
4



1 RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 28th day of March, 2025 .

2 GALLAGHER & KENNEDY, P.A.

3 MW
4

5

6

By
Jennifer A. Cranston
2575 East Camelback Road
Phoenix, Arizona 85016-9225
Attorneys for Arizona Electric Power

Cooperative, Inc.
7

8
ORIGINAL of the foregoing eFiled
with Docket Control via ACC Portal
this 28th day of March, 2025.

9

10
Copy of the foregoing emailed
this 28th day of March, 2025, to:

11

1 2

13

1 4

Legal Division
Utilities Division
Arizona Corporation Commission
1200 West Washington Street
Phoenix, Arizona 85007
Lega1Div@azcc.gov
utildivservicebvemail@azcc.gov
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Ca ndi ce  Beeson
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Exhibit A
Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. - Transmission

RUS Arizona 28 U45 Apache Loan Application
2017-2020 & 2021-2024 Construction Work Plans

2017

Project

Number

202092

202060

202063

2432080

202081
202083

202087

202062

202088

202089

202090

202072

202095

2.02105

202103

202109

202053

202051
202052

2432056

202058

LINES.20

SUBS.20

c oMM. 20

COMM.18

LlNES.19

su BS. 19

c oMM. 19

202112

RUS 740c Project Name

800.1 SaguaroNorth Loop Line Procurement

1000.11 Valencia 115 kV Capacitor Bank

1000.12 Dos Condados Capacitor Bank Installation

1000.16 TEP physical Security Upgrades

1000.17 TEP Communication Upgrades

1000.18 TEP Green lee Substation Upgrade

1000.19 TEP South Substation Upgrade

1000.2 201920 Easement Correction Project

1000.2 TEP Westwing Fault Recorder

1000.21 TEP westwing RTU Replacement

1000.22 Rattlesnake 115 kV Breaker

1000.24 Davis DamRiviera Easement Renewal

1000.26 Valencia T101 Transformer Upgrade

1000.27 Winchester and Greenlee Fault Recorders

1000.28 Pinal West to South Anchor Repfacement

1000.29 Three Points Substation Upgrade

1000.3 Greenlee 230/25 kV Substation Upgrade

1000.4 Valencia CAWCD Interconnect

1000.5 APS Bagdad Interconnect

1000.7 Topock Access Road Project

1000.9 Round Valley Interconnect

1102.1 2020 Transmission Renew/Replace

1102.11 2020 Substation Renew/Replace

1102.12 2020 Communication Renew/Replace

1102.6 2018 Communication Renew/Replace

1102.7 2019 Transmission Renew/Replace

1102.8 2019 Substation Renew/Replace

1102.9 2019 Communication Renew/Replace

1104.1 Transmission Aerial Lift Replacement

o r
20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

20172020

$0
$0

$0

$120,400

$0
$0

$1080000

$0
$75000

$149,700

$220000

$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$965000

s o

$1195000

$0

$0
$0

$0

$0
$700000

$0
$500000

$700000

$0
$5705100

CWP Budget

$2900000

$565000

$400000

$120400

5365000

$3794000

$1080000

$300000

$75000

$149700

$220000

$1858600

$682000

$98300

$119500

$1121000

$965000

$2537500

$1195000

$150000

$509000

$500000

$500000

$700,000

$700000

$500000

$s00000

$700000

$1142000

$24447000

M
$2900000

$565,000

$0

$0

$0

$3794000

$0

$300,000

$0

$0

$0

51858600

$682000

$98300

$119500

$1121,000

$0
$2537500

$0

$150000

$0

$500000

$500000

$700,000

$0

$500,000

$0

$0
$1142000

$17467900

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

so

So

$0

$0

s o

$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

so

So

$0

$0

$0
$0

$0
So

$400000

$0

$365000

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0
So

$0
$0

$509000

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0
$1274000

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

20212024

RUS 7401: Project Name

800.1 Boothill to Schieffelin 69 kV Line

800.2 AdonisMarana 115 kV Line

800.4 WAPA Line Segment Procurement Apache

900.1 Schieffelin 230/69 kV Substation

900.2 Adonis Substation

1000.1 Boothill 115/69 kV Substation

1000.2 Bicknell 345/230 kV Transformer Replacement

1000.3 Apache and Bicknell Fault Recorders

1000.4 Apache 115/69 kV Transformer Replacement

1000.5 Marana 115 kV Substation Rebuild Project

1000.6 Saguaro 115 kV Interconnection

1000.7 Greenlee 345/230 kV Transformer Upgrade

1000.13 Bicknell 115 kV Breaker Replacement

1000.14 AEPCO/APS Fiber Install

1000.15 Pantano 230/115 kV Transformer Replacement

1000.16 Topock RTU and Relay Replacement

1000.17 West Wing Vail ASLD Renewal

1000.18 SaguaroAdonis Aoss Fiber Installation

1000.19 Saguaro Adonis Structural Steel

1000.2 Line 125 and Line 133 Easement Acquisition

1000.21 Riviera Meter Upgrade

1000.22 230 kV Ring Bus Apache

1102.1 2021 Transmission Renew/Replace

1102.2 2021 Substation Renew/Replace

1102.3 2021 Communication Renew/Replace

1102.4 202z Transmission Renew/Replace

1102.5 2022 Substation Renew/Replace

1102.6 2022 Communication Renew/Repiace

1102.7 2023 Transmission Renew/Replace

1102.8 2023 Substation Renew/Replace

1102.9 2023 Communication Renew/Replace

1102.1 2024 Transmission Renew/Replace

1102.11 2024 Substation Renew/Replace

1102.12 2024 Communication Renew/Replace

1104.2 Truck Replacement

1104.3 Altec TA55 Bucket Truck

Project

Number

202021

202110

202147

202019

202117

2.02020

202101

202104

202111

202115

202113

202120

202129

202131

202141

202134

202140

202143

202144

z 02149

202133

2.02148

LINES.21

SUBS.21

COMM.21

LINES.22

SUBS.22

c oMM. 22

LINES.23

SUBS.23

COMM.23

LINES.24

SUBS.24

COMM.24

202122

202151

M
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

i s

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

CWP

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

S9

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67 2021z024

68 Grand Total

M
$4054000

So

$359,059

$0

$3669000

$4832000

$0

$0

$0
$0

$1570000

$0
$1090165

$92,500

$0
s o

$331500

$505022

$931083

$788400

$0
s o

$0

$0

s o

$500000

$500000

$700000

$500000

$500000

$700000

$0

$0

$0

$0
$180000

$21,802,729

$27s01,a29

CWP Budget

$4054000

$11,444671

$359059

$5330000

$3669000

$4832000

$3278800

$170100

$1911000

$6187021

$1570000

$4987055

$1090165

$92500

$4874738

$463700

$331500

$505022

5931083

$788400

$228800

$5072442

$500000

$500000

$700000

$500000

$500000

$700000

$s00000

$500000

$700000

$500000

$500000

$700000

$525000

$180000

$69,676,056

$94,123056

M
$0

$11,444671

$0
$0

$0
s o

$0

$0
$1911000

$6187021

$0

$4987055

s o

$0
$4874738

$463700

$0

s o

$0
$0

$0
$5,072442

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

S0

$0

$0

$0
$500000

$500000

$700000

$0
s o

$36,640,627

$54108527

M
$0

$0

$0

$0

$0
So

53278800

$0

$0
$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0
$228800

So

$500000

$500000

$700000

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0
$525000

$0
$5,732,600

$ 7 w 6 s 0 0

M
s o

$0

$0

$5330000

$0
$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

so

So

$0

$0

s o

$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

so

So

$0

$0

s o

$0

$0
$0

$5,330,000

$5,330000
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I a  IArizona 28 U45 A ache LoanA Plication

Arizona

G8TOctober 31, 2024

Touchstone Energy Cooperatives

Cooperatives
»9L><

Deputy Assistant Administrator
The Office of Loan Origination & Approval
USDA/RD/Electric Program

Dear Sir or Madam:

I am forwarding for your consideration through General Field Representative, Larry McGraw, a
loan application in accordance with CFR § 1710.501. Please find enclosed information and
clarifying statements regarding the loan application.

Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. (AEPCO)

AZ28

U45

Borrower's Exact Legal name as
shown in Articles of
Incorporation

RUS Designation:

Requested RUS Loan
Designation:

Requested Loan Amount

Requested loan type

Requested maturity date/term

Taxpayer identification number:

s 94,123,000

Treasury Direct = Transmission

30 years

86-0176697

UNHFD46EUlL4Borrower's Unique Entity
Identifier:

00574189

Arizona and California

Arizona

Organization Number Arizona
Corporation Commission

Authorized/registered place of
business is the state(s) of

All loan funds will be used in the
state of

NoLoan application includes other
sources of financing

BP2=TransmissionLoan Purpose

Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. - Sierra Southwest Cooperative Services, Inc.

R0. Box 2165 - 100o S. Highway80 . Benson, Arizona 85602 - (520)5865000 Phone • www.azgt.coop

4 of 252§ l7l0.50l.A.l - Loan Application Letter



I a IArizona  28 U45 A a c he L o a n A Plication

Counties where real property is
located

Cochise, Gila, Graham, Greenlee, Maricopa, Mohave,
Pima, Pinal, Santa Cruz and Yavapai in the State of
Arizona and 10 mortgage counterparts are necessary for
registering and indexing as a real estate mortgage in the
appropriate offices in which the Bonower owns real
property

10Mortgage counterparts necessary
for recording

Current  property schedule The property descriptions contained in Exhibit A to the
Indenture are legally sufficient in the above specified
States, in form, substance and copy quality, for inclusion
in the granting clause of a mortgage and security
instrument creating a lien on such property.

Corporate Debt Limit AEPCO has no corporate debt limit, but the amount of
secured debt that the Borrower can issue under the
Indenture is limited by the terms of Indenture

Subsidiaries Sierra Southwest Cooperative, Inc.

NoneMaterial Financial Changes or
Other Material Changes since last
loan

None

07/2023 +9.1%

04/2024

Pending Litigation

Last Rate Change

Last Exercised Emergency
Response Plan

Flood Hazard Statement The loan does not include funds to finance the
construction or acquisition of a building identified
as located in a flood hazard area.
Arizona Corporation CommissionState or Tribal regulatory

approval needed

NoneNative American Reservations
Served

In satisfaction of 7CFR I 730.65(b) I, P a t r ick F . Ledger , Execut ive Vice P r esident  and Chief
Execu t ive Officer at AEPCO, certify that AEP C O has an Interconnection of Distributed
Resources (IDR) policy in place that meets all the requirements of 74 FR 32409, published July 8,
2009, amending 7CFR 1730.

I, P a t r ick F . Ledger , have been the Execut ive Vice P r esident  and Chief Execut ive Officer at
AEP C O for 13 years. My prior position was Chief Oper ating Officer  at  Ar izona Electr ic
Power  Cooper at ive Ser vices, Inc. for  one year.

5 of 252§ l7l0.50l.A.l - Loan Application Letter



I a  IArizona 28 U45 A ache LoanA Plication

I, Patrick F. Ledger, Executive Vice President and Chief Executive Officer at AEPCO, based
on my experience and tenure, believe that upon available information there is no reason to
anticipate that any of the facilities included in the Loan Application supported by the 2017-2020
and 2021-2024 Construction Work Plan will be excluded from the rate base of AEPCO, by the
Arizona Corporation Commission. My signature found at the conclusion of this transmittal letter,
is provided as true and accurate and to comply with the requirements of 7 CFR 1710. 150(f).

Wholesale power cost estimates used in the Financial Forecast are based on power supplier
contracts and forward marker prices.

The titles of the officials of AEPCO with the proper authority to execute all loan documents on
behalf of AEPCO and attest to the execution where required, are the President, Secretary,
Treasurer, Executive Vice President and Chief Executive Officer, and Chief Financial
Officer.

My signature found at the conclusion of this transmittal letter authorizes RUS to release
appropriate information and data relating to the loan application to the FFB and any existing
supplemental lenders.

If you need any additional information on our application or supporting documents, please feel
free to contact ine.

Sincerely,

I4=*G7(}»p"\
Patrick F. Ledger
Executive Vice President and Chief Executive Officer
Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
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Arizona

G@TNovember  14, 2024

Touchstone Energy Cooperatives

Cooperatives
,go

Deputy Assistant Administrator
The Office of Loan Origination & Approval
USDA/RD/Electric Program

Dear Sir or Madam:

Please find enclosed information and clarifying statements regarding the loan application in

response to the COVID questions provided by General Field Representative, Larry McGraw.

We have not received a loan through the Small Business Administration (SBA) Paycheck
Protection Program (PPP).

We have not furloughed any full-time or part-time employees due to the COVID-I9 Pandemic.

We have not implemented any updates to current policies or created any new policies on bill
payments due to the COVID-19 Pandemic.

We have not implemented any alterative rate plan(s) to be effective throughout and as a result of
the COVID-19 Pandemic.

We have not implemented any board policies/management actions as a result of the COVID-19
Pandemic.

We have not made any Patronage Capital distribution modifications as a result of the COVID-19
Pandemic.

Year-to-date it is estimated that there has been no significant, negative impact to residential and
large commercial customers' kwh sales as a result of the COVID-19 Pandemic.

Year-to-date it is estimated that there has been no significant, negative impact to accounts
receivables as a result of the COVID-19 Pandemic.

We do not have an RUS approved revenue deferral or margin stabilization plan.

Ar izona Electr ic Power  Cooper ative, Inc. - Sier r a Southwest  Cooper at ive Ser vices, Inc.

P.0. Box 2165 - 1000 S. Hi ghway80 •  Benson, Ari zona 85602 (520)586S000 Phone - www.azgt .coop

7 of 252§ l7l0.50l.A.l - Loan Application Letter
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If you need any additional information on our application or supporting documents, please feel
free to contact ine.

Sincerely,

I4?@¢.
Patrick F. Ledger
Executive Vice President and Chief Executive Officer
Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.

8 o f 252§ l7l0.50l.A.l - Loan Application Letter
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§ 1710.501.A.2 - Special Resolutions (NOT APPLICABLE)

government or Tribal regulatory authority are required by any non-Tribal applicant intending to

Special resolutions. Include ay special resolutions required by Federal, State, or Tribal
Authorities and any others as i entified and required by the R S General Field Representative (for
example, use of contractors, corrective action plans, etc.). Resolutions of support from Tribal

serve Tribal areas before any loan is approved by RUS .

§ 1710.501.A.13 - Seismic Safety Certifications (NOT APPLICABLE) 9 of 252
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§ 1710.501.A.3 - RUS Form 740c, Cost Estimates and Loan Budget

10 of 252§ l710.50l.A.3 - RUS Form 740c, Cost Estimates and Loan Budget
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§ 1710.501.A.4 - Financial and Stat ist ical Report
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.4¢.coI.ding lu flu Paperwork IlezltlcriorI Act bY I 908. (Ill age/ut may /ml or//:duff UI S[1(lllAol and u pp/null is nu/ rcqmrefl fu Ivsp(iII(l lu u vullevliolr 11/ in/bnumiun uulcxx iz rlisplaiw a walk/ OMB
vom/ol mmrhrr The valid OMB ¢nnl/ol number /hr this iujbrImzlion mllvrlirm iv 05720032. Wir time rvqui/cd lo ump/ere 1/ILv infiuvnulmIi vol/cr/io/i is eli/nrnvd ro uvi/ngr 'I hams per
/vsportsv. invlzu/ing :hr time [UV Ie\ieni1rg in.wrurlion.v .Rea/<Iling vvhvling darnsnuruzv gmlu/ing and maintaining the :far notvlrd and conlpleziIIg and Ie\ivn.iIrg /lie co/Icrlio/1 of in/iz/vunlirm

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE BORROWER DESIGNATION
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE Az0028

PFRIOI) ENDED Decerrber 2023 (Prepared wj.l;h Audited Dai.

BORROWER NAME
Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.

FINANCIAL ANI) OPERATING l<l:poRr
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

INSTRUCTIONS Sec help ill the online application.

This information is analyzed and used to determine Lhe submillcrs linnneial situation and feasibility for loans and guuruntecs. You are required by contract and applicable
regulations to provide the intbrmation. The information provided is subject to the Freedom o' Intimation Act (5 U.S.L. 55")

CIIR IIF ICAI. lO N

We recognize that statements contained herein concern a matter within the jurisdiction of an agency of the United States and the making of a
false. fictitious or fraudulent statement may render the nicker subject to prosecution under Title 18. United States Code Section 1001 .

We hereby certify that the entries in this report are in accordance with the accounts and other records
of the system and reflect Ll1 e status of the system to the best of our knowledge and bclici

ALL INSURANCE REQUIRED BY PART 1788 OF 7 CFR CHAPTER XVII. RUS WAS IN FORCE DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD AND RENEWALS HAVE BEEN OBTAINED FOR ALL POLICIES DURING TIIE PERIOD COVERED

BY THIS REPORT PURSUANT To PART 1718 OI" 7 CFR (THAPTER XVII

(check one Qfl/ie following)

II]51 All of the obligations under the RUS loan documents
have been unfilled in all material respects.

There has been a default in the fulfillment of the obligations
under the RUS loan documents. Said defaults) is/are

specifically described in Part A Section C of this report.

4/29/2024Patrick Ledge'
DATE

Revision Date 2013RUS Financial and Operating Report Electric Power Supply
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U N I T E D  S T A T E S  D E P A R T M E N T  O F  A G R I C U L T U R E

R U R A L  U T I L I T I E S  S E R V I C E

BORROWER DESIGNATION
Az0028

FINANC IAL ANI)  0P I.R Al lNG R l : I' ( )R I
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

PART A -  FINANCIAL
PERIOD ENDED

December 2023

INSIRU(TI()NS See help in the online application.

SPCIION A Sl \| num or 0PFR\Il()I\S
YEART() -DATE

IT E M THIS MO NTH
( W

THIS YEAR
(b)

BUDGET

w)
92,498,455 15,666/860

LASYYEAR
(H)

258/836,682
2.

74

32,58,770

225/0;7,225

16,644,460

69/904,035
49,718,797

23,592,153

114,742

874,807

32,395,564

291,232,246

18350197
110,314,434

2 4 ,

2,708,881
18,375,741

1,491,083

6,211,524

2,965,501

2,213,629

698471 391,567 32,642

1,491,122
14,405,501

1321,907
382,633

13,990,065

242342,716
13/4931822
4,255/358

14,219,809

;74,470,82;

14,601,558

4,730,783

7 ,

1,761,735

21,0941076
21823,322

1,661,013

19,410,193
20,631148

206,997

1,9111537
1,768,085

528,447

(967,946)

802/558

6,717,646
(3,087,77U

4,68?,475

4,165,182

(230,613)

2,167,571

127,603

288,613,800

2,6181446

781 533

147,445
225848,014

(830,78%

2,948,008

26,429

18,475,511

(99,770)

278/730

34. 94, 988460, 207( 6 0 1 0 7 3 )r

621 102 69,293348,226

3,14»,132 8,198528 343,241

_- _ _ _
_
_
_
_
_
__ _ _ __ - _ -
_- _ _ __ _ _ _
_
_
_
_- _ _ __ _ _ _
_
_
_- - - _
_
_
__ _ _ _
_
_
_
_- _ _ __ _ _ _
_- _ _ -
__ _ _ _
_

Revision Date 2013

I. Electric Energy Revenues

Income From Leased Propcny (Not)

3. Other Operating Revenue and Income

4. Total Operation Revenues & Patronage Capital (I I/:ru 3)

5. Operating Expense - Production Excluding Fuel

6. Operating Expense - Production Fuel

7. Operating Expense - Other Power Supply

8. Operating Expense - Transmission

9. Operating Expense - RTO/ISO

10. Operating Expense - Distribution

I I . Operating Expense - Customer Accounts

12. Operating Expense - Customer Senice & In formation

13. Operating Expense - Sales

14. Operating Expense - Administrative & General

IS. Total Operation Expense (5 thru I4)

16. Maintenance Expense - Production

17. Maintenance Expense - Transmission

I 8. Maintenance Expense - RTO/ISO

19. Muinteiumee Expense - Distribution

20. Maintenance Expense - General Plant

Zl. Total Maintenance Expense (I6 thru 20)

Depreciation and Amortization expense

23. Taxes

24. Interest on LongTerm Debt

75. Interest Charged to Construction - Credit

26. Other Interest Expense

27. Asset Retirement Obligations

28. Other Deductions

29. Total Cost Of Electric Service (I5 + 21 thru 28)

30. Operating Margins (4 less 29)

3 l. Interest Income

32. Allowance For Funds Used During Construction

33. Income (Loss) tom Equity Investments

Other Nonoperating Income (Nets

35. Generation & Transmission Capital Credits

36. Other Capital Credits and Patronage Dividends

37. Extraordinary Items

38. Net Patronage Capital Or Margins (30 thru 37)

RUS Financial and Operating Report Electric Power Supply - Part A - Financial
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UNI VH) STA r1s DFFAR I.MI1NI. OI A<;RI<UI.lL1Ru

RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

PART A FINANCIAL

_
-

93333.

34.

c .

786,452,566

109/956,714

896,409,280

475/040,123

421,369/157

Total Uiilily Plan in Service

Construction Work in Progress

Total Utility Plant (I + 2)

Acc um. Provision for Depreciation and Amortization

Net Utility Plant ( 3  4)

H
0

2,291,638

35.

86.

37.

38.

187,373,672
0
0

187,373,672

[8,095,397)
830/?89

2,367,738

O

NonUli l i ry  Properly  (Net)

Investments in Subsidize Companies

lnvcsl. in Assoc. Org. Palronagc Capital

Invest. in Awoc. Org Other General Funds m
39.

182,477,732
5,469,990

272,753
AH

3,446,066

1.

7

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

IO.

I I.

lv.

13.

14. 11,480,447

134,=94,929
3

82,476409
9,956,397

H
IS.
16
17.
18.

2,861,616

25,190,389

S
217,071,338

1,455/993

Invest. in Assoc. Org. Other Nongcneral Funds

Investments in Economic Development Projects

Other Investments

Special Funds

Tota l  Other  Properh And Investm ents

(6 l l l ru 13)

Cash . (ncncrul Funds

Cash Construction Funds Trustee

Special Deposits

Tcmpordry Investments

40.

41.

4»

43.

44

45.

46.

47.

48.19. A73,200Notes Receivable (Net)

49.
1,455,993

" 0 .

"I.
24

32,648,535

4,723,927

24,471,866

0

16,303,707

4,582,669

H

"x
74

*9

*a

21 120,812,366

50.

Sl.
iv
53.

54.

55.

50. 216

Memberships

Patronage Capital

a. Assigned and Assignable

b. Retired This year

Retired Prior years

d. Net PatronageCapital ( a  b c)

Operating Margins Friar Years

Operating Margin Current Year

NonOperating Margins

Other Margins and Equities

Total Margins & Equities
(33 +34d thru 38)

LongTcnii Deb! RUS (Net)

LongTcnu Debt FFB RUS Guaranteed

LongTenn Debt Other RUS Guzminteed

LongTenn Debt Other (Net)

Longlcrin Debi RUN lfcon Devil. (Not)

Payments - Unapplied

To ta l  L o n g Te rm Debt (40 thru 44 - 45)

Obligations Under Capital Leases Noncurrcnl

Accumulated Operating Provisions

and Asset Retirement Obligations

Total Other NonCurrent Liabilities
(47+4w

Notes Payable

Accounts Payable

Lu1Tcnl Maturities Longlcrm Debt

Curren1 Maturities LongTcrm Debt Rural Devel.

Cunent Maturities Capital Leases

Taxes Accrued

Interest Accnicd

70,499,226

27,939988
15,289,219

a
384/627

2,390,262

be,

°8. 57. Other Current and Accrued Liabilities 11,409,007

Accounts Receivable Sales o' Energy (Net)

Accounts Receivable Other (Net)

Fuel Stock

Renewable Energy Credits

Materials and Supplies Other

Prepayments

Other Current and Accrued Assets

Total Current And Accrued Assets
(15 thru 26)

Unamorlizcd Debt Discount & Extraordinary
Propcny LDSSCS

58.
°9. 128,?64,54"Regulatory Assets

U
U

50.53,458,690 771750,992

60. n
vH

(al.

30.

31
32. 607,120/6G0 607,120,603

Total Current & Accrued Liabilities
(50flirt 57)

Deferred Credits

Accumulated DelCrred Income Taxes

Total Liabilities and Other Credits
(39+46 +49 + 58 thru 60)

Other Deferred Debits

Accumulated DclCrred Income Taxes

Total Assets and Other Debits
(5+l4+27 lliru 31)

-
Revision Date 2013RUS Financial  and Operating Report Electric Pow er Supply .- Part A - Financial
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION

AZ0028
FINANCIAL ANI) OPERATING REPORT

ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

INSTRUCTIONS See help in the onlineapplication. FERIOD ENDED
December 2023

SECTION C. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revision Date 2013RUS Financial and Operating Report Electric Power Supply
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITI ES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION

AZ0028FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT
£1,Ec1R1c POWER SUPPLY

INSTRUCTIONS . .  See help i n  t h e  o n l i n e  ap p l i c at i o n . PERIOD ENDED
D e c e m b e r  2 0 2 3

SECTION c. CERTIFICATION LOAN DEFAULT NOTES

Revision Datc 2013RUS Financial and Operating Report Electric Powcr Supply
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION

AZ0028FINANCIAL ANI)  OPERATING Rl: l*0Rr
ELECTRIC P()\VER SUPPLY

INSTRUCTIONS Soc help in the online application. PERIOD ENDED
December 2023

PART B SE - SALES OF ELECTRICITY

Sale No. Statistical
Classification

Name Of Company or Public
Authority

Renewable
Energy

Program Name

RUS
Borrower

Designation

Primary
Renewable
Fuel Type

Actual
Average

.\lonthly CP
Demand

Actual
Average
.\lonthly

NCP
Demand)

Average
.\lo nthly
Billing

Demand
( m w

d heba

U Intimate Consumer(s)_
c

Os

RQ2 Anza Electric Cooperative Inc
CA004 I

CA004 l

AZ00238 Duncan Valley Elec Coop Inc
AZ0023

4 Graham Count Elec Coo . Inc

5 Mohave Eleclrie Coop Inc
(AZ0022

6 Sulphur Springs Valley E C Inc
AZ00 I4

AZ002"

AZ00 14

AZ00207 Tricu Electric Cooperative Inc
AZ0020

E
8 Arizona Public Scwicc Com an

BP Encr Com an

10 Burbank Public Scwicc Do t

Central Arizona Water
Cunscrvation District AZ

1" Cit i rou Ener v Inc  TX

13 EDI" Trading North America. LLC
TX

|

o

14 El Paso Electric Com an

15 Echelon Erler Com anv

City ofGIcndalc

17 lm trial Irri align Dis lric l

Los An alas De t of War & Pwr

l*) Mac baric  Encr J LLC TX)

20 Nevada Power Com an

2] PacifiCor Power Marketing Inc

22 Public Service Com an of NM

23 Sell River Procct

24 Public Service Co of Colorado

25 Shell Fncrgy North America lp
TX

76 Southwest Public Power Agency
AZ)

27 Tenaska Power Services

28 TransCanada Power

29 lransAlta Ener v Mkt2(US Inc

30 Tucson Electric Power Com anv

31 Unisource Energy Corporation
AZ)

32 Western Area Power Admin

34 Lincoln Countv Power Dist No l

41 Black Hills Co aeration

42 Electrical Dist N 02 Pinal Cntv

43 Guzman Encr' FL

44 Farmin lon Li hl& Power

46 Morgan Stanley Capital Grp Inc
NY)

RQ

RQ

SF

L F

OS

OS

Os

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

O s

O s

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

l . F

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

48 ConocoPhilli s Com an TX

5] Rainbow Energy Marketing Corp

_ _ _ _ Q _" _ _ -- - - -
4 - - - - -_ - - _ -" _ _ -

_ _ - - Z -
_ _ - - Z -
_ _ - - S -
_ " _ _ -
_ _ - - Z -
_ _ - - _ -
_ _ - - Z -
I _
_ _ - - _ -
_ _ - - Z -
_ _ - - Q -
2 _ - - Z -
2 _ - - Z -
_ _ - - Q -
_ _ - _ _ _
! _
_ _ - - Q -
_ _ - - _ -
_ " _ _ -
_ _ - - _ -
1 _
_ _ - - Q -
_ _ - - Q -
_ " _ _ -
_ _ - - Q -
_ _ - - Z -
_ _ - - Z -
_ _ - - Q -
_ _ - - Z -
_ _ - - Z -
_ _ - - _ -
_ _ - - Z -
_ - - _ _ _
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION

AZ0028FINANCIAL ANI) OPERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

INSTRUCTIONS See help in the online application. PERIOD ENDED
December 2023

PART B SE . SALES OF ELECTRICITY

Sale No. Statistical
Classification Ly

Name Of Company or Public
Authority

Ly

Renewable
Energy

Program Name Primary
Renewable
Fuel Type

RUS
Borrower

Designation

Actual
Average

Monthly CP
Demand

Actual
Average
lonthly
NCP

Demand

Average
lonthly

Billing
Demand
(MW)

l ha b d e

C0004757 TriSlate G & l Assn. Inc
C00047)

53 Utah lvlunici al PowerA enc

54 Uniper Global Commodities North
America IL)

55 Valle Electric Assn Inc

56 Avon rid Rcncwablcs OR)

130757 Basin Electric Power Coop
ND

59 Dvnas lv Power 1110.  AB

60 Powc rcx

61 Constellation Energy Corporation
MD

I

l

c

OS

Os

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

SF

AD

AD

0

0 0

62 Alto Ener 1 Tradin 1 LLC TX

63 J. Aron & Com an

64 The Encr 'v Authoritv

Total for Distribution Borrowers

Total for G&T Borrowers

Total for Other

Grand Total

Dist

G&T

Other

Total

_ _ _ _ _ -
_ _ _ _ _ _
_ _ _ _ _ _
Q -
I -

_ _ _ _ _ _
_ _ _ _ _ _
_ _ _ _ _ _

U
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWFR DF.SIGNATION

AZ0028FINANCIAL ANI) OPERATING REPORT
£;L1;(r.1RI(r POVVER SUPPLY

INSTRUCTIONS Sec help in the online application. PERIOD ENDED
December 2023

PART B SE . SALES ()F ELECTRICITY
Salc No Revenue

Demand Charges
Revenue

Energy Charges
Revenue

Other Charges

I

Electricity
Sold

(M\Vh)
i

Revenue
Total

Ci + k + I)
nlk

_
2

3

4

5

6

7

464 456

28979 I

1.805720

6.346.46 I

5.l47736

4.530.293

2.3 I 3.769

1.1673 18

5(w2 l 948

28.558.425

25.609997

I 131 1.740

9

1 0

( ) 2 .628

3 7 .  l  6 4

1 6 3 5 9 5

7 4 5 . 8 5 0

813.353

4 5 3 . 9 3 3

1 2 0

4 0 2 5  l

15.730

109.339

5 2 1 7 8

4 0 0

1 6 5

4998 .5  I 7

976 .295

4 2 1 8 1 0 1

18.934.699

2 2 7 8 3 7 7 8

I 1 .142.682

4 .3  I5

l 7 7 8 . 9 7 0

l .0 2 2 .7 7 0

3 .790 .098

3.707.765

15.200

5 1 5 4

6.847 880

2.433 804

IIl40.7(19

53.839 585

53.541.51 I

32.993715

4315

I77&970

1.022 770

3.790098

3.707.765

15 200

5.154

12

13

14

15

16

17

127166

l.757.706- 11
389602

8 300

2408

20. I 00

20

6344

125

825 5 1 4 0 9

10.299

332  275

2 3 8 3 9 6

164 188

3 .4 1 4 7 1 0

1.005.774

38  770

6 6 5 7 6

l 12 45 I

10875 I

4 9 8 7 5 8 8

4 9 1  1 0 9

127.]66

1.75/.706

6 0 0

3 8 9 6 0 2

8 .3 0 0

51 .409

\ 0 2 9 9

332.275

2 3 8 8 9 6

l(14. I 38

3 4 1 4 .7  I0

1.005.774

38 .770

( ) 6 5 7 6

I 12.45 I

108.75 I

4 9 8 7 5 3 8

491 . I 09

1.922

8 2 8 0

4 .0 0 0

5 3 3 7 6

17.918

595

1 6 5 3

I I  9 3

L 0 5 3

49 .842

8.51 l

8.30 l

720

78 l

23.204

475

4.036

705

50

351 .987

16.840

3 5 4 1 2

2 .507 .233

1 0 8 2 5

245.752

14.605

1 2 5 0

35 I .987

1 6 8 4 0

3 5 4 1 2

2 .507  233

1 0 8 2 5

245.752

14 605

1 2 5 0

395.880

70.675

395880

70675

6.374

I .250

2 0

2 l

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5

2 6

2 7

28

2 9

3 0

3 I

8 2

3 4

4 1

4 2

4 3

4 4

4 6

4 8

5 I

5 2

5 8

5 4

5 5

5 6

5 7

5 9

6 0

(J l

84720

22.400

548.522

2 4 0 3

692

9 2 5 0

_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ __ _ _ _ _
_ _
_ _
_ _ H
_ _
_ _
_ _

3 - _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _

_
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _

_
_ _
_ __ _ _ _ _
_ _
_ _
_ _

84720

22 400

548522
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION

AZ0028FINANCIAL AND OFERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

INSTRUCTIONS Scc help in the online application. FERIOD ENDED
December 2023

FART B SE . SALES OF ELECTRICITY

Sale No Rcvcnuc
Energy Charges

Rcvcnuc
Other Charges

Revenue
Demand Charges

k

Rcvcnuc
Total

a + k + I)
mI

Elcctricitv
Sold

(MWh)
i

320
43228

62

68

64

18.199

3.708.203
48.894

13.199

8.708203

43.894

10.42139848.I83.934

_ _
_ _

E - __ _ _ _ _
_ H

UC
Dist

G&T

Other
Total

1.292441 I

705

1.507.344

2800460

6.743.247

I 7 I 64.545

82.399.6(\3

80.583.597

35075898
14.605

59.659.808

94.750.31 I

93.681 .130

14605

98.802.718

192.498.453
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I I  IArizona 28 U45 A ache L o an A lication

UNITED STATES DEFARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION

AZ0028FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

INSTRUCTIONS See help in the online application. PERIOD ENDED
December 2023

PART B SE - SALES OF ELECTRICITY
Comments

_
2
3
4

5

7

12

13

17

H

Q
E

H

H

H
20
2 I

22
23

24
25

26

27
28

29

80
3 l

82
34

41
44

43
44

46
48

5 l

52
53

54
55

56

57
59

60
61

62
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I I  IArizona 28 U45 A ache Loan A lication

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTlLITlF.S SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION

AZ0028
FINANCIAL ANI) OPERATING REPORT

ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

INSTRUCTIONS Sec help in the online application. PERIOD ENDED
December 2023

PART B  SE SALES OF ELECTRICITY

CommentsSale
No

63

64

UC
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\  II LoanA licationArizona 28 U45 A ache

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION

AZ0028FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POW ER SUPPLY

INSTRUCTIONS See help in the online application. PERIOD ENDED
December 2023

PART B PP - PURCHASED powi;R
Statistical

Classification
Name Of Company or Public

Authority
Renewable Energy

Program Name
l\

Purch
asc
No.

Primary
Renewable
Fuel Type

RUS
Borrower

Designation

Actual
Average

lonthly NCP
Demand

Actual
Average

Monthly CP
Demand ()

a

Average
Monthly
Billing
Demand
(.\lW)

I hdb c e

CA00411 Anza Electric Cooperative Inc
CA0041

7 EDF Trading North America. LLC
TX

- a

16 Morgan Stanley Capital Grp Inc
NY

23 Southwest Public Power Agency
AZ

_
| _

• _
_

29 Trico Electric Cooperative Inc
AZ0020

AZ0020

CO0047

31 Unisource Energy Corporation
AZ

_
_

l _
_

_
_

63 Brookfield Renewable Trading
and Marketin LP QC

Inc-al
m
-as

AZ0023

19

_ _ _ _ _
_ _ - _ _ _
_ _ _ _ _ -
_ _ _ _ _ _
_ _ _ _ _ _
_ _ _ _ _ _
_ _ _ _ _ _
_ _ _ _ _ -
_ _ - _ _ -
_ _ _ _ _ -
_ _ - _ _ _
_ _ - _ _ _
_ _ - _ _ _
_ _ _ _ _ -
- - - _
_ _ _ _ _ -
_ _ - _ _ _
_ _ _ _ _ -
_ _ _ _ _ _
_ _ - _ _ _
! _
_ _ - - _ -
_ _ - _ _ __ - _ _ __ - _ _ __ - _ _ __ - _ _ _- i -_ _ _ _ -_ - - _ -_ - _ _ __ _ _ _ -_ _ _ _ __ - _ _ _

- -_ _ _ _ -_ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ _
_ _ _ _ _ -
_ _ - _ _ -
_ _ - _ _ _
_ _ _ _ _ -
_ _ - - _ -
_ _ - _ _ _
! -
_ _ - _ _ -

Revision Date 2013

LF

2 Black Hills Cor oration Os

3 BP Ener Com an OS

4 Burbank Public Service De I LF

5 Central Arizona Water OS
Conservation District AZ

Citi rou Ener Inc TX OS

OS

EI Paso Electric Com an OS

10 Cit of Glendale OS

11 Graham Coun Elec Coo Inc OS

12 lm erial Irri ation District OS

13 Los An eles De of Wtr & Pwr OS

14 MacQuarie Ener LLC TX OS

15 Metro olitan Water District OS

OS

17 Nevada Power Com an OS

18 PacifiCo Power Marketin Inc OS

19 Public Service Com an of NM OS

20 Powerex OS

21 Public Service Co of Colorado OS

22 lwxell Energy North America LP OS

IF

24 Salt River Proect OS

25 Tenaska Power Services Os

26 Tucson Electric Power Com an OS

27 TransAIta Ener Mkt  US Inc OS

28 TransCanada Power OS

OS

30 TriState G & T Assn Inc OS
CO0047

OS

32 Valle Electric Assn Inc OS

33 Western Area Power Admin OS

34 Arizona Public Service Com an OS

43 Guzman Ener FL OS

OS

Conoco Power Marketin OS

G5 DTE Ener Tradin . Inc OS

Duncan valley Elec Coop Inc OS
AZ0023

67 Ever Kansas Central KS OS

Farmin ton Li ht 8. Power OS

70 Lincoln Count Power Dist No 1 OS

74 Utah Munici al PowerA enc OS

75 Uniper Global Commodities North OS
America IL

85 California ISO CA OS

Sierra Southwest Cooperative LU
Services Inc. AZ

87 Arizona Power Authority OS
RUS Financial and Operating Report Electric Power Supply
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I  IIArizona 28 U45 A ache LoanA lication

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION

AZ0028FINANCIAL ANI) OFERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POW ER SUPPLY

INSTRUCTIONS Sec help in the online application. PERIOD ENDED
December 2023

FART B FF PURCHASED POWER

Statistical
Classification

Renewable Energy
Program Name

Name Of Company or Public
Authority

Fur cf
asc
No.

Primary
Renewable
Fuel Type

R u s
Borrower

Designation

Actual
Average

Monthly NCP
Demand

Actual
Average

Monthly CP
Demand ()

Average
Monthly
Billing
Demand
(.\lW)

I hedba

88 Rainbow Ener Marketin Cor
93 Town of Marana AZ

AZ001495 Sulphur Springs Valley E C Inc
AZ0014

The Ener Authori

l , _
_

_:za
AZ002297 Mohave Electric Coop Inc

AZ0022

Sempra Gas & Power Marketing
LLC CA

Constellation Energy Corporation
MD

100 Mes uite Power. LLC CO

101 Avan rid Renewables OR

102 Basin Electric Power Coop 1307
ND

103 Bonneville Power Admin

_
!
_
_
_
_
AZ0013105 Navopache Electric Coop Inc

AZ0013

c

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

OS

I

106 Alto Ener Tradin LLC TX

107 J. Aron & Com an

Total for Distribution BorTowers

Total for G&T Borrowers

Total for Other

Grand Total

G&T

Other

Total

_ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ __ - - _ -_ _ _ _ _- i -
- -- i -_ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ __ - - _ -_ - _ _ __ - - _ -

_ _ _ _ _ _
_ _ _ _ _ _- - -- - - -- - - -- - -
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I \  IArizona 28 U45 A ache LoanA lication

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT oF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION

AZ0028FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POW ER SUPPLY

1NSl.RUC.llONS See help in the online application.

PART B PP - PURCHASICD pow:R

Purchase
No

Total
(I + m + n)

Electricity
Received
(mwh)

Electricity
Delivered
(mwh)

k

Electric ity
Furehased

(MVVh)
i

PERIOD ENDED
December 2023

Demand Charges Energy Charges

m 0

Other Charges

nI

678 55.730557301

2

3

5

7

-Ra

2718

14185

95.392

47480

1 .000

5850

823

2.792

3365

102

7858

205580

926664

2.598.573

3259821

37400

372368

38.804

235715

2690

13191

666184

205580

926664

2.598 573

3259821

37400

372368

38804

235715

2690

13.191

666184

20919

678

2

1 230

400

894

210.336

27226

5673

3981

1 108

734

17162

58

2 409571

133786

36

108612

2135

40532

99996

12178178

1 837 869

433614

102.349

153504

56788

1 .514878

6214

2.409 571

133786

36

108612

2135

40532

99996

12178178

1.837 869

433614

102349

153504

56788

1.514878

6.214

1.551.125

3

141403

3539

180

2.000

1 661

1 200

540

3857

3.799.801

83897

9120

274800

179531

46.079

48 234

3857

2248676

83897

9 120

274.800

179531

46079

48234

1 474

5369

9620

1 474

5369

9620

69728

449

144

18845

62197

5419

113197

2 636157

112215

1 13197

2.636 157

181943

12

13

15

17

18

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

43

63

65

67

70

74

75

85

87

88

93

97

15.643

3150

23063

33.600

398 406

15643

3150

23063

33600

398406

1

139

1 400

6 6 9 0

- - _
_ -

- - _
_ _

- - __ ' _ _
- - _
- - _
- - _
_ _
- - _
- - _

- n - - _
- -_ " _ _
_ _ _
- _- r e - - _

- _
- - __ _ _ _
- - _
_ _
- - _
_ _
- - _
- 1 _
- - _
_ _

- - -
- - _
_ _
- - _
- - _

_ _
41 _ * _ _

- - _
_ _- - - -

__ _ _ __ * _ _
- - - -_ _ _ _

- - _
_ H _- - -

- - -
- - _

- __ ' _ _
- _

- a _n
- -100

101
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I I  IArizona 28 U45 A ache LoanA lication

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION

AZ0028FINANCIAL ANI) OFERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

INSTRUCTIONS Sec help in the online application. PERIOD ENDED
December 2023

FART B FF PURCHASED powi:R

Other ChargesDemand Charges Energy ChargesPurchase
No

Total
(I + m + ll)

Electricity
Received
(mwh)

nmI

Electricity
Delivered
( mwm

k

Electricity
Purchased

(mwh)
I 0

102

103

105

106

107

22436
3444332
1 593671

6214
35 603753
37 203 638

608
43302
17979

58
744.423
762460

G&T
Other
Total

1620853
1 620853

22436
3444332
1 593671

6214
37.224 606
38 824 491

- - - -
- - -
- - -

- _
- a _

H H
E E
E S H
H H H
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I \  ILoan A licationArizona 28 U45 A ache

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION

AZ0028FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

INSTRUCTIONS See help in the online application. PERIOD ENDED
December 2023

PART B PP - PURCHASED powi;R

CommentsPurchase
No

1

2

3

4

5

7
g

E
1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 7

1 8

H

E
20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

43

63

e4

65

67

70

74

75

85

87

88

93

95

97

Revision Date 2013

1 0 0

1 0 1

1 0 2

1 0 3
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I I  IArizona 28 U45 A ache Loan A lication

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION

AZ0028FINANCIAL ANI) OFERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

INSTRUCTIONS Sec help in the online application. PERIOD ENDED
December 2023

FART B  FF PURCHASED pow i: R

CommentsFurchasc
No

105

107

Revision Date 2013RUS Financial and Operating Report Electric Power Supply
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION

AZ0028FINANCIAL ANI) OFERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POW ER SUPPLY

INSTRUCTIONS Sec help in the online application PERIOD ENDED
December 2023

PART C RI8 RFINE\VABl.E GENERATING PLANT SUMMARY

Prinic MoverFlant Nanic Renewable Fuel
(%)

Nct Gcncration
(MWh)f)

Capacity
(k\\

Capacity Factor
(%)

db

Frimary
Renewable
Fuel Type

ca c
T o ta l  :

.
- - -
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION

AZ0028FINANCIAL ANI) OPERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

INSTRUCTIONS Sec help in the online application PERIOD ENDED
December 2023

Plant Name Numhcr
of Employees

k

Percentage
Ownership

(%)
Iha

RUN Funding
($l,000)

m

PART C RI8 RFINE\VABl.E GENERATING PLANT SUMMARY

Total O&.\l Power Cost Total Investment
Cost (mils/Net kwh) ($l,000)

(mils/Net kwh)
i

T o ta l  :
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION

AZ0028FINANCIAL ANI) OPERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

INSTRUCTIONS Sec help in the online application PERIOD ENDED
December 2023

Plant Name

PART C RI8 RFINE\VABl.E GENERATING PLANT SUMMARY

Comments
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I a  ILoan A HcadonArizona 28 U45 A ache

BORROWER DESIGNATION
AZG028

reUNI IED SI A lES DE|'ARTMEN.l OF AGRICULTURE

RURALUTHJTWSSERVK

FINANCIAL AND ()PF.RATlNG REPORT
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

PART C - SOURCES ANI) l)lSlRIBUTl()N OF ENERGY
v1;l<I()n FNDH)

Dec em ber 2023

INSTRUCTIONS .. See help in the online application.

NET ENERGY
RE(lE\"F.D BY

SYSTEM (mwh)
(d)

SOURCES OF ENERGY
(H)

NO. OF
PLANTS

(b)

COST
(8)
w>

CAPA(1TY
(kw)
(¢>

Generated in Own Plant (Details on I'arlx D E F I(. F CC and G)

1,544, 612389,406 94,811,789

0

1

0

0

I.

_7.

3 .

14 . 85,500

125,681

0

189, 408

262,721

8,1;4,182

17141610321

0

Fossil Steam

Nuclear

Hydro

Combined Cycle

Imemal (nmbuslion

( ) [ h e r

5 .

6 .

H F
H H

H H
8 003600,587

0

1, 996, 7417 . 16,342,Total in Own Plant (1 thru 6)

Purchased Power

762 4608. Total Purchased Power 38,824,491

Interchanged Power

9 .

1 0 .

l l .

55,269

25,631

29,638

3,798,88L

2,826,902

971,979

Received Into System (Gross)

Delivered Out of Syslcm (Gross)

Net Interchange (9 10)

Transmission For or By Others (Wheeling)

0

0

I Z .

1 3 .

1 4 .

1 5 .

452,563

4391509

13C54

2/8011893

Rece ived  In to  Sys tem

Delivered Out of System

Net Energy Wheeled (I2 13)

Total Energy Available for Sale (7 + 8 + ll + I4)

Distribution of Energy

Total Sales 2,800/460

0

1 6 .

1 7 .

is.

H_

H
19. 2,800460

Energy Furnished lo Others Without Charge

Fnergy Used by Borrower /Fwflufling Slalion (fire)

Total Energy Accounted For (16 thru I8)

1,433

.05-%

Revision Date 2013

20. Energy Losses - MWh (15 19)

21. Energy Losses - Percentage ((20/15) * 100)
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UNHFDSTATESDFPARTMENTOFAGRK1N1URE
RuRAL uHuTms m vmr

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT
EU2CTRIC PUWER SUPPLY

PART D - STEAM PLANT

_
_

- m

1

NO. OTHER
G A S

(1000 C.F. )

e

O IL
(1000 Gals.)

4)

COAL
(1000 Lbs.)

(6)
TOTAL

)

OUT OF SERVICE
SCHED. UNSCH.

. I )

IN ON
SERVICE STANDBY

(ll) ( i

HMI;S
STARTED

b)

uwr r
NO.
(n

8

U 19 9 73317

2

3 632,073.39
1e6v 1,451
1 GO

44
R § ;

5,849,20>.co
98e .7

3.

4.

5.
.

u 9u.Ll4 6;14Total 1 .  re

M

I UQu. l. .

e ; :»
E

8t§::8=1.»;

l V \ 8T

l1U%3 SI

J no 3 . 0 40.00

7. Avcmsze BTU

Total BTU (10")

To\al Del. Cost (S)

ITEMNO. l. lEMNO. no. VALUEVALUE
BTU

PER kwh
(n

UNIT
NO.
(I)

sin; (kW)
(m)

S.001 Load Factor (%)
2 191793
5 194703

No Employees FullTime
(Include Superintendent)

GROSS
GEN. (MWh)

(H)
6 1 8 3 7 4 . 5 0

1 114,081.00

2.2. 50.72Plant Factor (°/b)No Employees PartTime

v

3.

4.

5.
72.76228893 3.

5 8 3 4 4 8

Total Employee
Hours Worked9 7 2 ?Total

Running Plant
Capacity Factor (%)*":uL5".Eu

1653433" I 15 Minute Grass
Max. Demand (kW)

84 /

w e

44311

3i34
S . ;vp up 10,890.46r.14

5.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

Indicated Gross
Max. l)cmand (kW)7563592

7. Slatiun Service (MWh)

Cl Generation
(MWh )

0. Station Service (%)

Operating Plant Puymll (S)

Muintfsnancc Plan Payroll ($)

()lhcr Accts. Plant Pzxyrull (S)

Total Plant Payroll (S)

_
_

MILLS/NET kwh
(II)

AMOliNT (S)
(11)

s/l0° BTU
c)

1 :l 2 588889
2 c  * , i i  r m

*3 ws 4 CO

NO.

(
1

8.

4.

5.
.

3.6=
0.05
2.9v
0.00
7.20

7.

.174

.

838

3  / 9 4

4 571 717

3, 2e3, = us

370
I 0.

ACCOUNT NUMBER

500

501 . I

501 .4

501 .3

501 .4

501

502

505

506

509

507

l- l
_

g

_
_

14 <44

68

12.

13.

14

IS .

,3=21
147278

868,816
1.1,470

430 419

510

511

512

513

514

17.
lx.

5 220.
* \ . 9u9
7 7

4()3.l4lll()
427 ' Il

=

7

2,189,178

1,889,480

1 2 3 9 4 8 6 3

80 541,641

11 426

2360622
14,270148

94 R11 V89 61.38I

_ .  -

: " -I:

23.
24.

Remarks
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UNI Lu STATES DL=PARlMLNl.  o' AGRICULTL'RE

RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC P()\VER SUPPLY

FART E - HYDRO PLANT

naRRowER DESIGNATION

PLANT

PERIOD ENDED

UNSCHEDULEDSCHEDULEDN O .

U N I T
N O .

(14)

ON
STANDBY

(e)

GROSS GENERATION
(MWh)

(v)

SIZE
(kW)
(b)

IN
SERVICE

(4)

2.

Total

3.

4.

5.

7.

0.

II]
v

Fncrgy (Br Pumped Storage
(MW h)

Net Generation after
Pum ed Store e (Nlwh)

VALUEno. ITEM VALUENO. IT E M VALUE

5.

No. Employees Full-Time
I Include Superintendent) Maintenance

Plant Payroll ($)

m l - l
! _ _- _ _ - _ _ _- _ - _ _ _ -- _ _ _ - _ _

n _ _ _ - _ _
_ _

g - __ _ _ _ -

2.
" No. Employees Pan Time

6.
Other Accuunls
Plant Fayroll (S)

Total Employee
Hours Worked

7 lota\I
. Plant Payroll (S)

7. Tail Race Elevation (fL)

Water Spilled Yes E M

NO. l . l l l M

Load Factor (%)

Plant Factor (%)

3. Running Plant Capacity Factor (%)

4. 15 Min. Gross Max. Demand (kW)

S. Indicated Gross Max. Demand (kW)

LyI I LIACCOUNT NUMBERPRODUCTION EXPENSE
.S/NET kwh

(b)
AMOUNT (S)

(ii)

3.

4.

NO.

T

3.

4.

5.

7.

10.

12.
13.

l5.
16.
17.

_ I
_

_ _ _

.
i n

|
I

|
Remarks (including Unschedulerl Oulagcs)
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BORROWER DESIGNATION
A z o v

unr1uD STA.Il;S UUPARrMUNT or AGRICULTURI'
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC vowleu SUPPLY

PART F IC . INTERNAL COMBUSTION PLANT

PLANT
Apache

PFRIOD ENDED
December 2023

N(). TOTAL
UNIT
NO.
(H)

OIL
(l 000 Gals.)

(¢.)

IN ON
SERVICE STANDBY

) (If)

SIZE
(kW)
(b)

o r Hu u
(4)

GAS
u 000 (..r.)

(d)

BTU
PER kwh

(I)

OUT OF SERVICE GROSS
SCHED. uxscn. ( :Ent;R.(mwhl

(i) .) (k)
8 JU

1 4 1]211. U() I
40

1

7 :

890

)

4 63
s

22

19880
64

72"
8093
1 2 9

329.99
l48
1272109.00

3 Y

1 747
]?%9h6

s
3330
3

4.

5.

1 "3x e (Vi-1460.00

.

. * H. ii
0.00

26z7"

4U07w~
q PY

i .m

3.23e.9@9.<7i\

l 000.14

3 31.1n

£1.81.8C

125 691
7. Average BTU
8. Tolul BTU (10")

Total Dcl. Cost (S)

_ _ 3

II.r ;x1 \ .ALUllNO .YALUIINO.

5.

No. Employees Full Time
(Include Superintendent)

1

Maintenance
Plant Payroll (S)

2. No. Employees Part Time

YALUE

e.oe=

24.23

71.395
6.

Other Accounts
Plant Payroll (S)

Total Employee
Hours Worked

7.

NO.

Load Factor (%)

Plan! Factor(%)

3. Running Plan Capacity Factor (%)

4. 15 Min. (iris Max. Demand (kW)

5.

3.

4

Total
Plant Payroll (S)

NO. I'R()I)UCTI()N l€XI'lINSl] A((X)UNT N UM BER Mll.l.S/Nl".l (kwh)
(h>

s/10" BTU
(u)

AMOUN.r (S)
(fl)

0.0<n
3.05
.IC

in4
U.C
.5

1

3

4.

5.

7.

S.

I . 6

QQ 14

I1.
13.
14.
IS.

4 . 5 ;

43. 6

51 .U=l

_ _ | _
_ _ _
_ _ _- _ _ _ _ - - - - _- - - _ _ -

n m Q _
_ _ _ _

n - |

_ _

H
_ _ _ _ _

- _
n -

l _

mIn _

_

m _ _

. -

1
_

17.

l x .

w .

20.

2 I .

Remark s (including Lhzxcheduled Outages)
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I a IArizona 28 U45 A ache Lo anA Plication

BORROWER DESIGNATION Az 0028UNITED STATES DEPARTMFNT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

PART F cc . coxInmsn CYCLE PLANT

PLANT npElCh€

PERIOD ENDED
December ;:;3

INSTRUCTIONS . Sec help in lhc unlinc application.

OPERATING HOURS

OTH ER
BTU

PER kwh
(I)

UNIT
NO.
(11)

IN ON
SERVICE STANDBY SCHED.

(  ) (/I) ( i)

FUEL CONSlIMPTlON
GAS

(l000 CF)
(M (e)

SIZE
(kW)
(b)

GROSS
(JENER. (.\l\Vh)

(k)
l(  ) lA L

m

o i l .
(l000 Gals.)

(u)
15C

go 061

4685
lw 2

UNSC.
)

2978 147
8558 38

2C6761
1

2. ,006.C0
22,951.

1  ) US E

1 0 , 5 0 9

NO.

w.
3.

4

5.
135Q  .nn0 M Y 1;.no 430 QV oz.

NJ l m17.

. .1793.59
Station Service % Of Gross

Q14

aw 409.00

6.64

0.0M

m .

0.09

o.w

1 2 .  $ 3 /

m JU

233799.90

0.04

Avem8e BTU
l01z\l BlU (. l 0")
lolz\l Del. Cost (S)

NO.NO. VALUE

0.088

NO.

Load Factor (%)
5.

No. Employws Full Time
Include. Superintendent) Maintenance

Plant Payroll ($)
27.682

134681

>. Plant Factor(%)
2. No. Fmployees Pan Time

3. .  933 .
)then Accounts
Plant Payroll (S)

3.

_

l l : _ _ _
S _ _ _
_ - - -

- _ - _ _ _ -
n m _ _
n _ _ _ _

n l _  _
l _ - n _ _

Total Employee
Hours Worked

Running Plan! Capacity Factor ("/0)

4. 15 Min. Grow Max Demand (kW)

133352 1.
Total
Plant Payroll (S)

Z sau48
5. Indicated Gross Max. Demand (kW)4 )perating Plant Payroll (5)

_
_

Al\l()UNT (S)
a

M I LLS/N l:T kwh
(bl

$/l06 BTU
( f l

17125

Accounl. NUMBER

500
547. I o.0c

2.61
0.00

NO. PR()l)U("llON EXPENSE

)petition Supervision and Fngineering
2. Fuel ( ) i l
3.
4.
5.

505
506
KM4

6459<),

7.
8.
9.
10.

Flcclric Expenses
I". Miscellaneous S\c41m Power Fxpcnscs
13. Allowances

Nun-Fuel SubTotal (I + 7 thru 13)

55l. 510
IS.
l 6.
l 7.
I S.

MY
17 67

am. .v
/ .

Maintenance Expense (I6 thru I 9)
Total Production Ex erse (15 + 20)

7

.14"7
7.

1 5

636Lw Li1)

l

|l

l l _
_

- - |
_ - g

n l _
_
_

_ _m - g
_

m
I n E
m I l

_

_ _

°3. Interest
24. Total Fixed Cost (22 +23)

25.

Remarks
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I a  ILo anA PlicationArizona 28 U45 A ache

BORROWER DESIGNATIONUNITED S TA TES  DEPA RTMENT OF A GRICUL TURE

RURA L  UTIL IT IES  S ERV ICE

l ' LANlFINANCIAL AND OFERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY
PART G - NUCLEAR PLANT PERIOD ENDED

INSTRUCTIONS .. See help in the online application

NO.

()PERATIN( HOURS

ON
STANDBY

SIZE
(kW)

(0)

Tl YVIES
STARTEI)

(b)

IN
SERVICE

(ff)

()Ul ()F SERVICE
SCHEDULED UNSCHEDULED

) (ll)

UNIT
NO.
(II)

SECTION A. B()ll.FRS AND GENERATING UNITS

GROSS
GENERATION

(.\IWh)
(4)

7

3 .

4 .

5 .

T o t a l

7

8 .

9 .

Slz u ion  Ser v ic e  ( MWI1)

Ne t  ( i e n c r a t i c n  ( MW h )

Stat ion Ser v ic e "+» ( ) t ( ir os s

Sl.CTI()N B. LABOR R1;PORT

NO. IT E MVALUENO. IT E M VALUE

_
_
_
_
_

5 .

Xi. Employees Full Time
(Include Supcrinlcndcnl)

n - - -- _ - _ _ _ _ _- - _ - _ _ _ -
-- _ _ - _ _ _ _
- -

_
_- 1

Ma in t e n a n c e

Plan t  Pay r o l l  ( S)

s r;<Tll0n C. FA(tloRs  & MAXIMUM l)1QMANI)

NO. IT E M VALUE

Load Factor (%)

" . Plan t  Fac to r  ( % )

2 . No .  Emp l o y e e s  Pa n  T i me
3. Running Plant Capacity Factor(%)

6 .
Other  A c c oun ts

Plan t  Pay r o l l  ( S)

4 . 1 5  Min .  Gr o s s  Ma x .  De ma n d  ( kW)
Total Employee
Hou rs Worked

7 .
5 . ln d ic z l lc d  Gr o s s  Ma x .  De ma n d  ( kW)

Total
Plant Payroll (S)

3 .

4 . Oper a t ing  Plan ! Fuy r u l l  ( So

MILLS/NET kwh
(b>

AMOUNT (S)
(a)

n

I
5 IO

5 2 0

52 I

5 2 3

5 2 4

5 2 5

So( l1()f\ l) Lost or Lu k\LR(\ CH\l.RAIll)
N O . P R O D U C T I O N  E X P E N S E A ( ( ( ) l N T  N U M B E R

Qp c r a t io n .  Su p e r v is io n  a n d  En g in c c i in g 5 I 7

2 Fu e l 518. l

3 . Les s  Fue l  A c qu is i t ion  A d jus nuen l 5 1 8 . 2

4 . Ne t  Fu e l  Ex p e n s e  ( 2 3 )

5 . Co o la n t s  a n d  Wa t e r

6 . Steam Fx pens es

7 . Steam Fr om Othe r  Sour c es

S. Flc c t r ic  Ex pens es

9 . Mis c e l laneous  Nuc lea r  Pow er  Ex pens e

Ren t s

I
m
m

5 2 8

s o

5 3 0

53 I

<;w

ml
403.*.4II.10

427
I n

406

_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _
_ _I _ -
_ _
_ -
_ _
_ _
- -_ _ _

_ __ _ _
_ _
_ __ _ _
_ _' _ _

O p e r a t i o n E x p e n s e  ( 1  +  I  t h r u  I 0 )

| * . Ma in lc n a n c c .  Su p e r v is io n  a n d  En g in c c i in g

I 3. Ma in t enanc e  o f  S t mc lu r es

14 Ma in t e n a n c e  o f  Re a c t o r  Pla n ! Eq u ip me n t

15. Mz iin tc nz u ic c  o '  Elec t r ic  Plan t

16. Ma in t e n a n c e  o f  Mis c e l la n e o u s  Nu c le a r  Plu m

17. Ma i n t e n a n c e  Ex p e n s e  ( I2 t h r u  I  6 )

18. Reac to r  Cr ed it s

Total Production Expense (ll + 17 I8)

"0. Depreciation

2 l. Interest

To t a l  F i x e d  Co s t  ( 2 0  +  2 1 )

23. Les s  Plan t  A c qu is i t ion  A d jus t men t

2 4 . Po w e r  Co s t  ( 1 9 +  2 2 2 3 )

RcIrIarks (including Un.vchedu1ed ()ulages/
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a II Loan AArizona 28 U45 A ache Hcadon

BORROWER DESIGNATIONUNIll;l) STA rI=s 1)1=l~ARIm1=n.l or A6I{I(LIL.1URI§

RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE AZ 0028

PIIRIOD ENDFI) December 2023

FINANC IAL ANI)  oH;R Al ln< ;  R l l l ' 0R l
l1Ll.CTRI( POWER SUPPLY

PART H - ANNUAL SUPPLEMENT

INSTRUCTIONS See help in the online applicaliun.

l I I£ M ADDITIONS
(b)

ADJUSTMENTS
Rl mu \ ll N is mu IRANSH RS

(C) (4)

1

(91,748)

20880667 8/8 996454 253 5

SECTION A. UllLlT\ PLANT
BALANCE

BEGINNING OF YEAR
(H)
17,667,914

2

BALANCE
END OF YEAR

M
17,576,171
4762391688484742I

;>

0

947AF ; 65 L

0
52,457,159
528696184

83169
. .22,

2965790
25,846,457

88205
,572,

8,4441671
Q 47q736

498 /162

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

992,;26
792,520

T 784 646

0n,33e
179,604
479,940I I.

74 I
191

561

49,486,333
563=39608
8,444,671
7,479/736

101,416,067
74,689,541
192,030,015
1238641

100420
598,882
328958

101222,
177

324,

1

739

045

191

599
0I

|

328, 958 1,567/599

2

227,811

,280,698

41,244,217

789,409,075

0
1,238,641

0
40/181,310

v54,857,4Q6

1,372,022

26,054576

536,934

2,783,745

O

IZ.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

zo.
"I
22.

0
0

2,915,606
0

2 321 8552/529698

5,10560028,584,274
92585744

_ _

- _ _ _

_ _ __ _ _

_ _- - u 1

_ _
4

_ _ _
_ _ __ _ __ _ _

__ _ -
_

10:

17,651
3110,284

0
786,452,566
109956/V14
896,408,280r

8

D

7600693,194
29,504407
790,197,601

2,280698
(12,133,437)
(918b2,/39)

2

24

°5

°6

21

*x

24

Total Intangible Plant (301 theft 303)

Total Steam Production Plant (3/I) thru 3/7)

Total Nuclear Production Plant (320 r/tru326)

Total H dro Production Plant (331) thru 337)

Total Other Production Plant (340 I/uw 347)

Total Production Plant (2 thru 5)

Land and Land Rights (350)

Structures and lm rovcmcnts (3.82)

Station Equipment (353)

Other Transmission Plant (354 thru 359.1 )

Total Transmission Plant (7 thru I0)
Land and Land Ri fhts (360)

Structures and lm movements (361)

Station E ui meet (362)

Other Distribution Plant (3631/tru 374)

Total Distribution Plant 12 thru 15

RTO/ISO Plant (380 thru 386)

Total General Plant (389 thru 399.1 )

Electric Plant in Service
(I + 6 1 ll + 16 fhfll I8)

Flectric Plant Purchased or Sold (102)
Electric Plant Leased to Others (III4)

Electric Plant Ileld for Future Use (105) 2 915 I 606

Coin lctcd Consmtction Not Classified (106 G

Ac uisition Adjustments ( I /4) 1 M 651

Other Utility Plant (1/8) 2 902 44 1

Nuclear Fuel Assemblies (I 70.1Ihru ]"0.4)

Total Utility Plant in Service (19 thru 26)

Constn1ction Work in Progress (/07)

Total unlirv Plant (27 + 28) 1 21 . 1 .10 01 8

SECTION B. ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION .

ITEM BALANCE
ENl) OF YEAR

600

\ND AMORTIZATION . LTlLlTY PLANT
RETIREMENTS

LESS NET
SALVAGE

Cd)

CONIR
RATE
(%)
@>

ANNUAL
ACCRUALS

(¢>
12052,1811.

ADJ USTM IINTS
ANDTRANSFERS

W)
(86/485)

BALANCE
BEGINNING OF

YEAR
(11)

285327471 (999,348)
2.

0

2:36 MQ
iC,65i
875 519

1,459,216
7

209 1784,604)

3.

4.

5.

6.

7. 37,

298,292,515

0
0

32,050,078
101571,237

0
25,987519

30,601,513
100,210077

0
25,165,7C6

457(86,485)4411304,767

231/67615 557277

267 (958876)061)( l I

De r. of Steam Prod. Plant (1()8.l l

De Ar. of Nuclear Prod. Plant (l()8.2)

De r. o1H draulic Prod. Plant (l08.3)

Do r. olOther Prod. Plant (l08.4)

Dcpr. of Transmission Plant ( l 08.5)

Do r. of Distribution Plant (l08.6)

Dcpr. ofGcncral Plant (l08.7)

Retirement Work in Progress (l08.8)
Total Depr. for Elec. Plant in Serv.
(I thru 8)

De r. of Plant Leased to Others (109)

DC r. of Plant Held for Future Use (l IO)

Anion. ofElcc. Plant in Service (l I I)

Amen. of Leased Plant (I IZ)

Amort. of Plant Held for Fulurc Use

Amort. of/\cqLlisition Adj. (1 15)

De r. & Amen. ()her Plant (l 19)

Amen. of Nuclear Fuel (l*0.5)

,9011349

0
0

15788953
0
(I

.651
1,332,170

0

475,040123(86,485)(1 856858)

17,651
1,640,355

0

458/520/050 14749,700

8.

9.

10.

l l .
12.

13.

14

I i

16.

17.

IS.

_
- _ _ _ _
_ _
_ _
j - _ _

_
u

- _ - _

-
_ _ - _
_ _
_ _ _ -

Total Prov. for Depr. & Amory.
(9 flxru I7
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I a  IL o an A HcadonArizona 28 U45 A ache

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OI AGRICULTURL

RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE
BORROWER DFSIGNATION

AZ0028

l'FRl()D ENDED
December 2023

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

PART H - ANNUAL SUPPLEMENT

INSTRUCTIONS Scc help in the online upplicalion.

SECTION B. ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION UTILITY PLANT (Continued)
19. Amount of Annual Accrual Charged lo Expense 20. Amount of Annual Accrual Charged no Other Accounts * I. Book Costof Property Retired

s s s

23. Salvage Material from Property Retired
s

2 4 . Renewal and Replacement Cost

S

22. Removal Cost of Property Retired
s

ITEM

SECTION C. NONUTILITY PLANT
BALANCE

BEGINNING OF YEAR
( u l

BALANCE
ENDOFYEAR

(of)

ADDN10NS
(b)

RETIREMENTS
( 0 )

ADJ UST MENTS
AND TRANSFERS

(d)
I .

I9
NonUlilit Pm ert (l2l)
Provision For De r. & Anion. (l"" )

_ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ _
MONTH DATE

SECTION D. DEMAND AND ENERGY AT PO\VER SOURCES
PEAK DEMAND MONTHLY PEAKS

(mw) TIMF.
(a (0)

E NE RG Y  O UTP UT

(xlvvh)

(1 9

423 8

403

509

803
777

§

19
19
13
18

18
18

18
18

(b
01/24/2023
02/16/2023

03/02/2023
04/30/2023

05/22/2023
06/26/2023

07/28/2023
08/05/2023
09/09/2023

10/08/2023
11/06/2023
12/14/2023

January
February
March
April
May
June
July
August

Scplembcr
October
November
December

Annual Peak

365

803

I .

2 .

3 .

4 .

s .

6 .

7 .

8 .

9 .

1 0 .

I  I .

| » .

1 3 .

20 f,950

190350
222,221
147/891
165,431
28v,9@h

335,905
318/874
2v0,310

248,973
1871305
218,689

2,801,894
H

_

MONTH )
I ) l l E \ I . ' \ N I )

( A i m

( c )

ENERGY
(xiwm>

(4)

TOTAl. l>EI.lw;Rr;l>
DEMAND ENERGY
(nl\vl ()1 VVh)

(H)

J

237
730
2;0
289

3;2

4°,.luly
August

September
October

;@

173
169
l 5o
181

193
284

308
309

252
181
147

149
308

69/673

53,742
81,294

58966

45,448
76,466

076

36,400
40,802

62,824
61,354
57,814
693/860

410

399
369
470

505
693
785
753
672
506
352

339
785 8 CO 461

199,686
;86,017
213667
. } 9 I 6 2 4

188728
292,056
347,888
313,164
262,936
250 809

840

223,076

2
Rcwision Date 2013

I  . January

F e b n l a r y

3 . M a r c h

4 . A pr x l

5 . M a y

6 . .I unc

7. 477
S. 4 50
q. 420

I 0. 325
I I . November > l O

12. December 190
13. Peak or Total 477

RUS Financial and ()pcrating Report Electric Power Supp

TYPE OF READING
d>
Coincident
"own¢ident

Coincident
Coincident
"oincidenr

Woincidenr
Coincident

Coincident
"oincidenL

534 Coincident
363 Coincident

Coincident

Annual 1btM

S E C H O N E L D E M A N D A N D E N E R G Y A T D E L M E R Y P O W T S

l)El.l\l".REl) T() RUN B()RR()Wl€RS m;llvt:Rt;n T() ()TllllRS
DEMAND l;n1;lu;y

(MW) (!\.lWh)
(11) (b)

130,013
l32,2?5
132,372
80658
143,280
215590
298,782

976,764
222,134
187985
321,486
165,762

2,106,601

ly - Part H - Annual Supplement
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I a ILo anA PlicationArizona 28 U45 A ache

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION
AZ0028

PF. R IOI) EN DE D
December 2023

FINANCIAL ANI) OPERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

PART H - ANNUAL SIJPPLEM ENT

Reporting of investments is required by 7 CFR 1717 Subpart N. Investment categories reported on this Part correspond to Balance Sheet items in PartINSTRUCTIONS .
A Section B. Identify all investments in Rural Development with an 'X in column (e). Both Included and Excluded' Investments must be reported. See help in the online
a licalion.

SECTION F. INVESTMENTS, LOAN GUARANTEES ANI) LOANS
SUB SECTION l. INVESTMENTS

No Included
(S)
b

Rural Development

e

Excluded
(8)
c

Income Or Loss
(5)
d

|

I

I

1(J7490

412

894

926 l

3. l 34

74<>.5 I3

25294 I

306.48 l

1650

2000

4.093.022

66000

799864

6452662

72000

96 I .610

275358

1308.968

X272758

272753

2.809 686

686.379

3.446.065

9.104

9.104

9947 293

9947293

I

1,143.390

I .050.42°

667804

2.86 I .616

|

277082

24.9 I 3308

24.913.308 277082

Description

a

Investments in Assuciatcd Or animations

Sul hur S in s  Valle Elec tric  Coo

lrico Electric Coo

Anna Electric C00

Duncan Valle Electric Coo

Graham County Electric Coo

NRUCFC

Federated Rural

CoBank

Touchstone Fner

CoBank CFC Membershi Fees

CFC Ca ital Term Ccrtilicatcs

CFC Solid Waste Dis osal Certificate

Sierra Southwest C00 elative Services

ACES Power Marketing

(irnnd Can on State electric Coo elative

Totals

3 Investments in Economic Develo men Proects

USDA Rural Economic Develo men Ford

Totals

S ecial Funds

SWD Bond Debt Service

Deferred Com cnszition

FSA Sus else

Totals

Cas h General

Pell Cash

General Fund

Totals

7 S ecial Do osits

Southwest Public Power

Metro Water District

S ec ial De oils

Totals

Tem orarv Investments

Ckmmmcrciul PP or

Mono f Market

Totals

Accounts and Notes Receivable NET

Miscellaneous Accounts Receivable

Totals

TOTAL INVESTMENTS l thru 10

4797127

4.797.127

43.828.312 10457666

_ _ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ _

_ __ _ __ _ _
_ -_ _ _ _

_ _
_ _ __ _ _ _
_ _ _
_ _ __ _ _ _
_ _ __ _ _ _
_ _ __ - _

_ __ _ _ _- _ __ _ __ _ __ _ __ _ - _
_ _ __ _ _

_ __ - _ -_ _ __ _ _
_ _

Revision Date 2013RUS Financial and Operating Report Electric Power Supply .. Part ll - Annual Supplement
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I  IIArizona 28 U45 A ache Loan A lication

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION
AZ0028

PERIOD ENDED
December 2023

FINANCIAL ANI) OPERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

PART H ANNUAL SUPPLEMENT

INSTRUCTIONS Reporting of investments is required by 7 CFR 1717 Subpart N. Investment categories reported on this Pan correspond to Balance Sheet items in Part
A Section B. Identify all investments in Rural Development with an X in column (e). Both Included' and Excluded Investments must be reported. See help in the online
a lication.

No Organization Rural Development

a e

Loan Balance
(S)
d

SECTION F. INVESIl\lENIS, LOAN GUARANTEES AND LOANS
SUB SECTION ii. LOAN CUARANTEES

Maturity Date Original Amount
($)
cb

TOTAL
TOTAL Included Loan Guarantees Onlv

_ _ _ __ _ _ _
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

BORROWER DESIGNATION
AZ0028

FERIOD ENDED
Dcccmbcr 2023

FINANCIAL ANI) OPERATING REPORT
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY

PART H ANNUAL SUPPLEMENT

INSTRUCTIONS Rcponing of investments is required by 7 CFR 17 I 7 Subpart N. Investment categories reported on this Pan correspond to Balance Shcct items in Part
A Section B. Identify all investments in Rural Development with an X in column (e). Both "Included" and "Excluded Investments must be reported. See help in the
online a lication.

SECTlON F. INVESrMENrS, LOAN GUARANTEES AND LOANS
SUB SECTION Ill. RATIO

4.89 %

I

RATIO OF INVESTMENTS AND LOAN GUARANTEES TO UTILITY PLANT
[Total ofIncluded Investments (Sub Section I I lb) and Loan Guarantees Loan Balance (Sub Section ll Sd) lo Total Utility Plant
Part A. Section B. Linc 3 of this re ort

SECTION F. INVESTMENTS, LOAN GUARANTEES AND LOANS
SUB SECTION tv. LOAN

No Rural DevelopmentOrganization Loan Balance
($)
d

Maturity Date

b

Original Amount
($)
c ea

Em lo is Officers Directors

2 Encrg Resources Conservation Loans

TO TAL

l l _ _ _ __ _ _ __ _ _ _
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U N I T E D  S T A T E S  D E P A R T M E N T  O F  A G R I C U L T U R E

R U R A L  U T I L I T I E S  S E R V I C E
BGR ROVVFR DFSIGNAT ION

AZO 028

PERIOD ENDFI)

FINANCIAL ANI) OPERATING REPORT
Eu~:c lRI( POW ER SUPPLY

PART H - ANNUAL SUPPLEMENT December 2023
INSTRUCTIONS - Sec help in :he online application.

IT E M

SECTION G. MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES INVENTORY
BALANCE PURCIIASED &

BEGINNING OF YEAR SALVAGED
a (h
1

BALANCE
ENDOFYEAR

d
24,471,866

3
76"

5 9 9

USFH)&zS(H.D
4

20,74l,32C
37,976,397
7599,27C
257531
217,643
296206

67,088,367
118301990

24,416,503

9,792,
1,423264
1,838,692
Z -j3 8 2 €

29/660,410

346=0,323
37,929,558
8,361,510
60063?
231,104

082
82332,274

Revision Date 2013

I. Coal 016021863

2. (JtherFuel 46 ,839

3. Production Plant Pans and Supplies 9, 030, 4 62
4. Station Transformers and Equipment 1 , 080 , 158

5. Line Materials and Supplies 1 I 825, 231

(v. Other Materials and Supplies

7. Total (I thru a)
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I  IIArizona 28 U45 A ache LoanA lication

BORROWER DESIGNATION
AZ0028

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

PERIOD ENDED
December 2023OPERAT ING REPORT -

ANNUAL SUPPLEMENT

INSTRUCTIONS See help in the online application. This data will be used to review your financial situation. Your response is
required (7 U.S.C. 901 ct. scq.) and may be confidential

UIREMENTS
No Principal

(Billed This Year)
c

SECTION Ii. LONG-TERM DEBT AND DEBT SERVICE RE
Balance End Of Year Interest

(a) (Billed This Year)
b

Total
(Billed This Year)

d
Rural Ulililics Scrvicc (Excludes RUS
Economic Dcvelo men Loans

X35034823136l L8982 National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance
Co oration

147.684 148 16.296064l2.219.3184 076746

O

I  |

3 CoBank. ACB

4 Federal Financier I Bank

5 RUS [economic Dcvclo men Loans

Pa merits Una liedl a
7 Principal Payments Received from Ultimate

Rcci aicnts of IRP Loans

Frincipal Payments Rcccivcd from Ultimate
Reci ienls ofREDL Loans

l

Principal Faymenls Received from Ultimate
Rcci icnts atEE Loans

"I - - _ --_ _ _ _
_ _ _ __ _ _ __ - - -_ _ _ __ - - -

I10 Solid Waste Dis osal Bonds

Debt Issuance Costs

TOTAL

127176
2501826
6717646

2.200000

642.7 l I

149241 437

2000000

0

I 5.042454

2.127176

2.501826

21.760100

Revision Date 2013RUS Financial and Operating Report Electric Power Supply - Part H - Annual Supplement

§ 1710.501.A.4 - Financial and Statistical Report 55 of 252
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UNITFD STATES DEPARTM ENT OF AGRICULTURE

RURAI. UTILllIES SERVICF

BORROWER DESIGNATION
Az0028

PERIOD ENDED
December 2023

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT
EI.F.CTRIC POWER SUPPLY

PART H - ANNUAL Sl'PPI.El\IENl
INSTRUCTIONS See help in the online application.

I. Dane of Last Annual
Meeting l l

SECTION I. ANNUAL MEF.T1N¢. ANI) BOARD DATA
2. Total Number of Members 3. Number of Members Present at Meeting

105/10/2928

4. Was Quorum Present"

Yes

8. Docs Manager Have
Written Contract"

6. Total Number of Board
Members

S. Number of Members
Voting by Froxy or Mail

18 NoC 209

7. Total Amount of Fees and
Expenses for Board Members

3 5 Is Q ,

SE(.TI()N J. MAN-HOUR AND P \\ ROLL STATISTICSz

13, 552, 913234I. Number of Full Time Employees 4. PayrolIExpensed

443,8802. Man-Hours Worked - Regular Time 5. Payroll Capitalized

3. Man-Hours Worked - Qvertime 20,527 6. Payroll()ther

2
-
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BORROWER DESIGNATION
AZ0028

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT
ELECT RIC POWER SUPPLY

PART  H -  ANNUAL SUPPLEMENT

INSTRUCTIONS See help in the online application. PERIOD ENDED
December 2023

SECTION K. LONG-TERM LEASES
No Type Of Property

b
Rental This Year

c
Name Of Lessor

a

I

Vcrtical Brid c CC. LLC

2 S u l  hu t s  i n  s

3 Sierra Southwest Coo crativc Services

Tower and Land Lcasc

Land Lease

Land Lcasc

T()TAL

42336

6 l 75

9294

57805
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U N I T E D  S T A T E S  D E P A R T M E N T  O F  A G R I C U L T U R E

R U R A L  U T I L I T I E S  S E R V I C E

BORROWER DFSIGNATION
AZ0028

PERIOD ENDED
FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT

ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY
PART H - ANNUAL SUPPLEMENT December 2023

INSTRUCTIONS See help in the online application.

ITEM
BALANCE

END OF YEAR
(0)

ADJUSTMENTS
AND TRANSFER

(dl
RETIREMENTS

(v)
ADDITIONS

(b)

SECTION L. RENEWABLI1 EN ERGY CREDITS

BALANCE
BEGINNING OF YEAR

(4)_ _ _ _ _
Revision Date 2013

I. Renewable Fnergy Credits
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BORRUWER DESIGNATIONUNITED STATES I)EPARTMI*NI OF AGRI(ULlURF
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE AZ0028

PERIOD ENDED
FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REPORT

ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY
PART I - LINES AND SIAII()NS December 2023

INSTRUCTIONS See help in the online application.

SECTION A. EXPENSES AND COSTS
ACC()UNl
NUMBER

LINES
( H )

STATIONS
(b)

I

|I. 2,045,43C
2

1,097,69
?6,791

l,517,86C
814,572

Cu _
I

560

561

562

563

564

566
v7

814
81
,527

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.
505

567
|lo.

437123
2675673
21,208,587

51,719
29 935 979

C
4,377 817

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
lllllllllllllll

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
llllllllllllllll

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

664, 358

I

783,925

2 283
I 707°f0

I 9b l
C

Q
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

l l .

p .

13.

14.

15.

16.

568

569

570

57 I

572

573

2 2

i1/5l*
,195,230

32,181,209

l5l,363)

513.52
6 913 369

II

I
575.1575.8

576.1576.5
u

17.
is .

19.

20.

21.

5240589

590598
o

TO

~1

24

25. 32,131,209 6,913,369

111111111111111111111111111111111
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
_ _
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

284 838 2035,5431

387,6766 / 3 , 1 ; z

403.5
403.6
427

427

llllllllllllllllllllllllllllll

llllllllllllllllllllllllllllll

lllllllllllllllllll.....................................

34,039,759 9,336,588

,c39,

°6
*7
°s

"Q

so

3L

3L 9,338,383

LINES STAT l ONS

34 15 9
sl»;cT1on c. LABOR AND MATERIAL SUMMARY

I . Number of Employees
ITEM

SUBSTATIONS

C.\PA(TITY(k\A)

0 . CO13. Distribution Lines 466,919 070,049" . Oper. labor

200,846 236/9933. Mains. Lubber870 . 1214. TOWIU2+/3)

l.ll'.:\.l

Transmission 0 elation
Su envision and En ineerin
Load Dis atchin
Station Ex cnscs

Overhead Line Ex eroses
Und; fund Line Ex eroses

Miscellaneous Ex coses
Subtotal (I thru 6)

Transmission ollllcelricil b Others

Rents
Total Transmission 0 elation (7 thru 9

Transmission Maintenance

Supervision and Engineering

Structures
Station E ui rent

Overhead Lines
Und und Lines

Miscellaneous Transmission Flail

TotalTransmission .Maintenance (ll thru I6)
Total Transmission Ex Erse (I0 + I7)

RTO/ISO Ex erse - O elation

RTO/ISO Ex erse - Maintenance
Total RTO/ISO Ex Erse 19 + 20)

Distribution Fxpense Operation

Distribution Ex Erse Maintenance
Total Distribution lLx erse (27 + 23)

Total Operation And Maintenance (18 + 2] + 24)

Fixed Costs
Do >reciation - Transmission
Dc rccialion - Distribution
Interest - Transmission

Interest - Distribution

Total Transmission (I8 + 26 + 28 )

Total Distribution 24 + 27 + 29 )
Total Lines And Stations (21 + 30 + 31)

SECTION B. FACILITIES IN SERVICE
TRANSMISSION LINES

VOLTAGE (k\) minas TYPE
345 KV 230.94

500 KV 52 . 28

720 K\ ] 281 . 59
69 KV 106 . 4 5

115 KV l 99 . * 6 17 0459,1474. Open. Material
15. Stepup at

Generating Plants

16. Transmission 196, 8323. 370, 338 5. Mains. Material

I.
>

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.
166, 688

SLCI ION I) OL IA(,Lb
17. Distribution

U

-

_
llllllllllll
IIIIIIIIIIII

1u11111111111111111111111
Inm1111111111I1I1111111111
Q - 3/370,33818. Total (15 rlxru I 7)

840.12

I. Total

'. Avg. No. of Distribution Consumers Served

3. Avg. No. of Hours Out Per Consumer

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
_
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Revision Date 2013

IZ. Total ( I thru II)
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§ 1710.501.A.5 - Load Forecast Study
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§ 1710.501.A.6 - Long Range Financial Forecast and Assumptions

118 of 252§ l710.50l.A.6 - Long Range Financial Forecast  and Assumpt ions























































a IIArizona 28 U45 A ache L o a n A Plication

§ 1710.501.A.7 - Rate Disparity and Consumer Income Data
(NOT APPLICABLE)

consumer income tests for either a municipal rate loan subject to the interest rate cap or a hardshi
Rate disparity and consumer income data. If the borrower is applying under the rate disparity and

rate
loan, the application must provide a breakdown of residential consumers either b county, Tribal land,
or by census tract. In addition, if the borrower serves in 2 or more States, the application must include a
breakdown of all ultimate consumers by State. This breakdown may be a copy of Form EIA 861
submitted b the Borrower to the Department of Energy or in a similar form. See 7 CFR l7l4.7(b) and
l7l4.8(a). 'lo expedite the processing of loan gplicatrons, RUS strongly encourages distribution
borrowers to provide this information to the G prior to submitting t e application.
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§ 1710.501.A.8 - Standard Form 100 - Equal Employment
Opportunity Employer Report
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U.S. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION (EEOC)
2022 EMPLOYER INFORMATION REPORT (EEO1 COMPONENT 1)

EEOC Standard Form 100 SF 10X0
Revised 08/2023

OMB Conlml Number; 30460049
Expiration Dale: 08/31/2024

OFS COMPANY ID

D152363

STATE

AZ

ClTYfIOWN

BENSON

ZIP CODE

85602

HQ/ESTABLlSHMENTLEVEL UNIT ID

STATECITY/TOWN ZIP CODE

_ .

_

SECTION F - FEDERAL CONTRACTOR DESIGNATION ( i r applicable)
Unique Enlilv ID (UEI): UNHFD46EU1 L4

U YES (SingleEstablishment Employer is Federal Contractor) [Xl YES (MultiEstablishmcnt Employer is Federal Contractor)

El YES (Headquarters is Federal Contractor) I] YES (NonHcadquancrs Establishment is Federal Contractor)

Q YES (One or More NonHeadquarters Establishments is Federal Contractor)

His panic
or  Lat ino

JOB CATEGORIES
Row
Total

m
o
o
m

in =5 '5 cc
E z8

I
o:

c
8Z :

*  N
<.f=.>

L .

'5 a>
x  E
o <
2
m

o
o
3

c
N

.2

a
'3 <
2  c
m  m

*

<

a .
| -o
£ 0a.>
UEE z
C n
N X
u m
3 2E <
<

.a I.
° 2 o
c : d o
m y \ v >
5 _
; .9 g
(B F : E c u

1 0 m y E
. UW a.
3 2

GJ E <
< | -

•1
o
o
N
I
as
x .
o
E
| -
o

8
| -

B  Q
o E
8 2
: :  f aa  _
3  o
co ._

8
41 Q.
>  ;4 m
N . :Z 4

o

0 8
8 »
0

M . :
26IIHI II

I

1

37
8728

27

7
3
3

ort Workers
1G

1 13

Executive/Senior Level Officials and Mana ers
First/MidLevel Officials and Mana ers
Professionals
Technicians
Sales Workers
Administrative Su
Craft Workers
O elatives
Laborers and Hel ers
Service Workers

7 140 23 1 232CURRENT 2022 REPORTING YEAR TOTAL

m h m h l i m i l u m h m l l u i h l i l u m i m l m x - 1lim! -Ilululmmhlimllulumilmliumliil :mlm lunimilmmlI nmilumilnmilmmllumilnlulumllumzm!!!m!lmm!mlm!lnlmm!m!!ululu!milmmlliimmhzmiimhnmlmmiminmhlmmililmminu milumhxulumilulmmhlimilululumimimilmlumhluzhmilmmilmmimimnmhlxlnlmlmlmmi-3
1PRIOR 2021 REPORTING YEAR TOTAL

SECTION J .-  HEADQUARTERS OR ESTABLISHMENTLEVEL COMMENTS (optional)
Not Applicable
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U.S. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION (EEOC)
2022 EMPLOYER INFORMATION REPORT (EEO-1 COMPONENT 1)

EEOC Standard Form IU() (SF 100)
Revised 08/2023

OMB Control Number: 30460049
Expinmion Dam: 08/31/2024

SECTION K - OFFICIAL CERTIFICATION OF SUBMISSION
EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION

EMPLOYER NAME
ARIZONA ELECTRIC POWER COOP INC

OFS COMPANY [D
D152363

ADDRESS

1000 s. HIGHWAY 80

CITY/TOWN

BENSON

STATE

AZ

ZIP CODE

85602

CERTIFICATION COMMENTS (0 tonal)

No Certification Comments Provided

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT
Y cwrfifv that the infbrmurion. including any we/r/qforce zlenmgrap/lic 1/aM prmfizled in this report is correct and tme to the best of my knowledge

and was prepared in confonniry with the directions .verir/I1 in 1/ze inn and accornpcmying insrrucfinns. "
Knowingly and willfully false statements on this report are punishable by law, US Code, Title 18, Section 1001 .

DATE OF CERTIFICATION

12/5/2023 5:48 PM [EST]

EMPLOY1MS CERTIFYING OFFICIAL
Name of Employers Certifying Official

Charlene Harris

Title of Certifying Official

Manager of Human Resources

Telephone Number of Certifying Official

5205865070

Email Address of Certifying Official

charris@azgt.coop

PRIMARY POINT OF CONTACT (POC) FOR EEOl COMPONENT 1 REPORTING
Name of Primary POC Tillc and Employer of Primary POC

Lanel Valenc ia HR Generalis t Ill

Arizona Power Electric Coop Inc

Tclcphonc Number of Primary F(XY

5205865423

Email Address ulPrimary PIXT

lvalencia@azgt.coop
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1710.501.A.9 - Uniform Relocation Act Assurance Statement§
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Arizona

G@T
Touchstone Energy Cooperatives

Cooperatives
,go

ASSURANCES RE UIRED BY 49 CFR SECTION 24.2 A

The Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. assures that it will comply with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and
Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended (Uniform Act), 42 U.S.C. 4601 4655, and with
implementing Federal regulations in 49 C.F.R. Part 24 and 7 C.F.R. Part 2 l .

Specifically, the Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. assures that:

(1) Whenever Federal Financial assistance is used to pay for any part of the cost of a program or project which
will result in the displacement of any person,

(21) Fair and reasonable relocation payments and assistance will be provided to or for displaced persons
in accordance with sections 202, 203 and 204 of the Uniform Act;

(b) Relocation assistance programs offering the services described in section 205 of the Uniform Act
shall be provided to displaced persons; and,

(c) Within a reasonable period of time prior to displacement, comparable replacement dwellings will
be available to displaced persons in accordance with section 205 (c) (3) of the Uniform Act.

I4-?6?
Executive Vice President and Chief Executive Officer

10/31/2024
Date

Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. - Sierra Southwest Ccoperatlve Services, Inc.
R0. Box670 1000 S. Highway80 Benson, Arlzona 85602 - (520)5863631 Phone . www.azgt.coop

150 of 252§ l710.50l.A.9 - Uniform Relocation Act Assurance Statement
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§ 1710.501.A.10 - Certification Regarding Lobbying
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Arizona

G@T
L UB B YING CERTIFICA TION

Touchstone Energy Cooperatives

Cooperatives
,go

Certification for Contracts. Grants. Loans. and Cooperative Agreements

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and
the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant,
loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall
complete and submit Standard Forrn-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance
with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who
fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and
not more than S100,000 for each such failure.

Arizona Electric Power Cooperative. Inc.
Organization Name

Patrick F. Ledger
Name of Authorized Official

-?4.~
10/31/2024

DateSignature

Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.. Sierra Southwest (00peratlve5ervl4:es, Inc.

R0. Box670 • 1000 S. Highway80 • Benson, Ar izona 85602 (520)586-3631 Phone • www.azgt.coop
AzGT is an eq ual opportunity providerand employer
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§ 1710.501.A.11 - Federal Debt Delinquency Certification
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Arizona

G@T
Touchstone Energy Cooperatives

Cooperatives
,go

FEDERAL DEBT DELINQUENCY CERTIFICATION

xYES NOIS THE APPLICANT DELINQUENT ON ANY FEDERAL DEBT?

Note: Example of debts include, but are not limited to, delinquent taxes, guaranteed or direct government
loans (more than 31 days past due) and other administrative debts.

If Yes, provide explanatory information.

APPLICANT CERTIFICATION
FEDERAL COLLECTION POLICIES FOR COMMERCIAL DEBT

The Federal Government is authorized by law to take any or all of the following actions in the event that a borrower's
loan payments become delinquent or the borrower defaults on its loan: (I) Report the borrower's delinquent account
to a credit bureau, (2) Assess additional interest and penalty charges for the period of time that payment is not made,
(3) Assess charges to cover additional administrative costs incurred by the Government to service the borrower's
account, (4) OffSet amounts owed to the borrower under other Federal programs, (5) Refer the borrower's debt to
the Internal Revenue Service for offset against any amount owed to the borrower as an income tax refund, (6) Refer
the borower's account to a private collection agency to collect the amount due, and (7) Refer the borrower's account
to the Department of Justice for litigation in the courts.

All of these actions can and will be used to recover any debts owed when it is determined to be in the interest of the
Government to do so.

Certif ication

l have read and understand the actions the Federal Government can take in the event that l fail to meet my
scheduled payments in accordance with the terms and conditions of my agreements.

I4¢9(}"%.\
Signed:

Name and Title: Patrick F. Ledger. Executive Vice President and Chief Executive Officer

Borrower Legal Name: Arizona Electric Power Cooperative. inc.

10/31/2024Date:

Arlzona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.. Sierra Southwest Cooperative Services, Inc.

R0. Box670 - 1000 S. Highway80 - Benson, Arizona 85602 • (520)586-3631 Phone - www.azgt.coop
AzGT is an eq ual opportunity provider and employer
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FORM APPROVED
OMB No. 0575020 l
Exp. Date: 07/31/2025

Position 3

ASSURANCE AGREEMENT

USDA
Form RD 400-4
(Rev. 08-22)

(Under Title Vl, Civil Rights Act of 1964)

The Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.

(name Qfrecipienr)

1000 s Highway 80, Benson, AZ 85602

(address)

As a condition of receipt of Federal financial assistance. you acknowledge and agree that you must comply (and require any
subgrantees, subrecipients contractors. successors, transferees, and assignees to comply) with applicable provisions of national
laws and policies prohibiting discrimination, including but not limited to:

I. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended which prohibits you from discriminating on the basis of race,
color, or national origin (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.), and 7 CFR Part 15, 7 CFR 1901, Subpart E.

As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and
resulting agency (Rural Housing Service, Rural Business and Cooperative Service, and Rural Utilities Service) guidance
national origin discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your
programs [in accordance with USDA RD LEP Guidance for RD Funded (Assisted) Programsl. Meaningful access may
entail providing language assistance services, including oral and written translation where necessary. You are encouraged
to consider the need for language services for LEP persons served or encountered both in developing your budgets and in
conducting your programs and activities. For assistance and information regarding your LEP obligations, go to
http://www.lep.gov,

2. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating on the basis of
sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq.)[as implemented by 7 CFR Part 15, 7 CFR 1901,
Subpart E];

3. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 as amended which prohibits you loin discriminating on the basis of age
(42 U.S.C. 610] et seq.) [as implemented by 7 CFR Pan 15, 7 CFR 1901, Subpart El;

4. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating on the basis of
disability (29 U.S.C. 794) [as implemented by 7 CFR Part 15, 7 CFR Part l5b, 7 CFR 1901, Subpart El;

5. Tit le VIII of the Civil Rights Act, which prohibits you from discriminating in thesale, rental Financing, and advertising
of dwellings or in the provision of services in connection therewith on the basis of race color national origin religion
disability, familial status, and sex (42 U.S.C. 3601 et seq.) as implemented by the Department of IIousing and Urban
Development at 24 CFR part 100. The prohibition on disability discrimination includes the requirement that new
multifamily housing with four or more dwelling units, i.e., the public and common use areas and individual apartment
units (all units in buildings with elevators and ground-floor units in buildings without elevators) be designed and
constructed with certain accessible features, see 24 CFR Part 100.201 , and

6. Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit you from discriminating on the basis of
disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems places of public accommodation
and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as implemented by Department oflustice regulations at
28 C.F.R. parts 35 and 36, and 7 CFR Part 15, 7 CFR Part 15b. 7 CFR 1901, Subpart E.

.4./édera/ agency marv nor conduct IN sponsor and a pension is not required to respond in. nor shall u pelson be snbjevl lo a penalrvjbrjizilure to comply wil/1 ll collection Q/infOrmation
subject In /he Iequiremennv 0fr/Ic Pr://cnmrk  Reduction Ar! unless llxul collection q/ill/brmrllion clip/Jluvs a currenrli valizl OM8 Control Number. llw OMB Conlrnl Nzunberjin. Il1Lv
in/izrmalion collection is 05750201. Public reporlingjilr this collection o/.in/blvnution is vslilnrlled to be up/noximulf.lv 15 lninmes per response. inclur/ing flw Iirne./Or revieuving
in.vtruclirni.v .searching cxhvling (later snuI1.¢S. gathering and mninfaining the data needed. completing and reviewing the ¢.olle¢1ir1n n/infnrlnulinn. A11 Iavprnisav to this rn/lecrivn : J
in/br/nation are \.olunra1jv. Hon¢uv.r. in order la obtain or retain u heIfejil. jin: in/brnmtion in Ihisforni ix Iequirerl In 7 CFR I90/E. Rural Develop/nwfl has no plmrx lo publish
in/orInalion ¢ol[8¢l¢(l under /he pro\i.vinn.v of//:iv program. SemI con:/ue/1l.v regarding /his burden exlinmlf: nr am ulliur aspect oflhis collection ofinfoIvnalion invlzuling xuggnavlionxfor
reducing :his bn1.d¢n ro: In/hivnmion Co/lvrrion Clearance ()ft(vI.. Rural I)v\v/npnlcin Innovation Cenle1. Regt/rnions Mn/iagelnenl Division al I(RMTRr iIesavéiuxrln. or.
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You also acknowledge and agree that you must comply (and require any subgrantees, subrecipients, contractors, successors,
transierees, and assignees to comply) with applicable provisions governing USDA Rural Development (Rural Housing Service,
Rural Business and Cooperative Service, and Rural Utilities Service) access to records, accounts, documents, information
facilities, and staff :

1. You must cooperate with any compliance review or complaint investigation conducted by USDA Rural Development
(Rural Housing Service Rural Business and Cooperative Service, and Rural Utilities Service).

2. You must give USDA Rural Development (Rural Housing Service Rural Business and Cooperative Service and Rural
Utilities Service) access to and the right to examine and copy records accounts, and other documents and sources of
information related to the grant and permit access to facilities, personnel, and other individuals and information as may
be necessary, as required by Title VI Title IX, Age, and Section 504 implementing regulations and other applicable
laws or program guidance.

3. You must keep such records and submit to the responsible Department official or designee timely, complete, and
accurate compliance reports at such times, and in such form and containing such information, as the responsible
Department oflieial or his designee may determine to be necessary to ascertain whether you have complied or are
complying with relevant obligations.

4. You must comply with all other reporting, data collection, and evaluation requirements, as prescribed by law or detailed
in program guidance.

5. Make available to users, participants, beneficiaries and other interested persons such information regarding the
provisions of this agreement and the regulations, and in such manner as the Rural Development or the U.S. Department
of Agriculture Finds necessary to inform such persons of the protection assured them against discrimination.

6. If. during the past three years you (the recipient) have been accused of discrirnination on the grounds of race, color,
national origin (including limited English proficiency), sex, age, disability religion, or familial status, you must provide
a list of all such proceedings, pending or completed including outcome and copies of settlement agreements.

7. In the event any court or administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination on grounds of race, color, national
origin (including limited English proficiency), sex, age, disability, religion, or familial status against you, or you settle
a case or matter alleging such discrimination, you must forward a copy of the complaint and findings to USDA Rural
Development (Rural Housing Service, Rural Business and Cooperative Service and Rural Utilities Service) Office of
Civil Rights.

The United States has the right to seek judicial enforcement of these obligations.

You also acknowledge and agree that you must comply (and require any subgrantees, subrecipients, contractors, successors, trans-
ferees, and assignees to comply) with applicable provisions of program-specific nondiscrimination policy requirements found at
CFR Part 15, 7 CFR Part 15 b, 12 CFR Part 202, 7 CFR 1901, Subpart E., DR4300-003 DR4330-0300, DR4330-005.

Period of Obligation
In the case of any service financial aid covered employment equipment property, or structure provided leased, or improved with
federal assistance extended to the Recipient by Rural Development (Rural Housing Service Rural Business and Cooperative Ser-
vice and Rural Utilities Service), this assurance obligates the Recipient for the period during which federal assistance is extended.
In the case of any transfer of such service. financial aid, equipment, property, or structure. this assurance obligates the transferee
for the period during which federal assistance is extended. If any personal properly is so provided, this assurance obligates the
Recipient for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property. in all other cases, this assurance obligates
the Recipient for the period during which the federal assistance is extended to the Recipient by Rural Development (Rural Housing
Service Rural Business and Cooperative Service, and Rural Utilities Service).

Employment Practices
Where a primary objective of the federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Recipient's employment practices affect
the delivery of services in programs or activities resulting from federal assistance extended by Rural Development (Rural Hous-
ing Service, Rural Business and Cooperative Service, and Rural Utilities Service), the Recipient agrees not to discriminate on the
grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such employment practices may include,
but are not limited to, recruitment, advertising, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay, training
and participation in upward mobility programs or other forms of compensation and use of facilities.
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Data Collection
The Recipient agrees to compile and maintain information pertaining Io programs or activities developed as a result of the
Recipient's receipt of federal assistance from Rural Development (Rural Housing Service, Rural Business and Cooperative Service,
and Rural Utilities Service). Such information shall include, but is not limited to the following: (l) the manner in which services
are or will be provided and related data necessary for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the
basis of prohibited discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sex, age, and disability;
(3) data regarding covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving beneficiaries
of the program where necessary lo permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak or understand English (4) the
location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related inlbnnation adequate for determining whether the
location has or will have the effect of unnecessarily denying access to any person on the basis of prohibited discrimination: (5) the
present or proposed membership by race, color, national origin, sex, age and disability in any planning or advisory body which is an
integral part of the program; and (6) any additional written data determined by Rural Development (Rural Housing Service, Rural
Business and Cooperative Service. and Rural Utilities Service) to be relevant to the obligation to assure compliance by recipients
with laws cited in this assurance agreement.

Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned officials certify that they have read and understand their obligations as herein described,
that the inlbrmation submitted in conjunction with this Document is accurate and complete and that the recipient is in compliance
with the nondiscrimination requirements set out above.

In c  .

Rights and remedies provided for under this agreement shall be cumulative.

Arizona Electric Power Cooperative,
on thisIn wihtess whereof,

(name Qfrecipient)
date has caused this agreement to be executed by its duly authorized officers and its seal affixed hereto, or, if a natural person has
hereunto executed this agreement.

9
(SEAL) Recipient

10-31-2024

Date

Executive Vice President and CEOA Nest: Qtt
Title

CFO

Title
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§ 1710.501.A.13 - Seismic Safety Cer t ificat ions (NOT
AP P LI C ABLE)

Seismic safety certifications. This certification shall be included, if required under 7 CFR part 1792.
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§ 1710.501.A.14 - Other Forms as Required by Law or as Requested

(NOT APPLICABLE)
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May 10, 2023
BYLAWS

of
ARIZONA ELECTRIC POWER COUPERATIVE, INC.

ARTICLE 1
MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 1.01. Members and Patrons. Classes and Eligibility:  A Member of Arizona
Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "this Cooperative") shall be an electric
utility. An electric utility is any corporation, firm, business, trust, association, cooperative, state
governmental agency, political subdivision or other entity or combination of such entities which
generates electricity for or sells, transmits or distributes electricity to another electric utility or to
a user of electricity or which has the authority to sell, transmit or distribute electricity for its own
operational purposes (hereinafter referred to individually as an "electric utility" Ol collectively as
"electric utilities").

There shall be four classifications of Members, all of which shall have and continue to
maintain the qualifications set forth in this Section: Class A, Class B, Class C, and Class D as
follows:

Class A Members shall consist of electric utilities:

(a) which are or have been beneficiaries of the Rural Electrification Act of
1936, within the meaning of such Act, as it may be amended from time to
time (hereinafter referred to as "REAct"), and

(b) which have entered into or will be entering into long-term generation
agreements of not less than twenty (20) years with this Cooperative to
provide all or a substantial portion of their power requirements, at
wholesale, and

(c) whose power purchased from this Cooperative is delivered by this
Cooperative, pursuant to transmission agreements of not less than ten (10)
years entered into with this Cooperative, and

(d) which have entered into long-term agreements with this Cooperative for
energy services, which must include scheduling and trading services for all
of their power requirements, subject to exceptions as detailed in this
Cooperative's Board policies or as provided by contract provisions jointly
negotiated among or accepted by Class A Members, or as approved by this
Cooperative's Board.

Class B Members shall consist of electric utilities, other than Class A, C, or D Members as
defined herein, which currently have written agreements on conditions acceptable to this
Cooperative under which this Cooperative furnishes or will furnish either a substantial portion of
their power net of any federal hydropower, or power in a total amount of 15,000 kilowatts or more
of firm capacity, on an annual basis together with associated energy to such Members for a term
of not less than ten (10) years and in accordance with the terms and conditions of such agreements.
hups://trc.az<1Lcoop/CREdiling/PandG/Policies/AEPCO Bylaws Final.docx May 10 2023
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Class C Members shall consist of electric utilities other than Class A, B, or D Members as
defined herein, which currently have, or will have, written agreements on conditions acceptable to
this Cooperative, under which this Cooperative furnishes, will furnish, or contracts for network
electric transmission services and capacity to  serve all of such Member 's load within this
Cooperative's metered sub-system for a term of not less than five (5) years in accordance with the
terms and conditions of such agreements.

Class D Members shall consist of electric utilities, other than Class A, B, or C Members as
defined herein, which culTently have written agreements on conditions acceptable to this
Cooperative, under which this Cooperative furnishes, will furnish, or contracts for power services,
energy services, Ol other substantial services to such Members for a term of not less than five (5)
years in accordance with the terms and conditions of such agreements.

Class A, B, C, and D Members may from time to time be referred to herein as "Member(s)."
A "substantial portion" of power requirements shall mean that a Member shall annually take more
than fifty (50) percent of their power requirements from this Cooperative, to include any federal
hydropower that is scheduled on behalf of such Member for the benefit of all Class A Members of
the Cooperative pursuant to Section 1.06.

There may also be other patrons and users who are those persons, firms, associations,
corporations, bodies politic or subdivisions thereof, who purchase power and energy from this
Cooperative under other purchase agreements who may not become Members (collectively,
"Patrons").

SECTION 1.02. Membership Procedures: Any electric utility may become a Member of
this Cooperative by :

(ii) executing a written application for Membership, and

(b) agreeing to execute on conditions acceptable to this Cooperative Ol by
executing appropriate written agreements for the purchase from this
Cooperative of electric power and/or electric transmission capacity and
or/services as herein specified, and

(c) executing a written agreement to comply with and be bound by the
Governing Documents as def ined  in  Section  1.05,  and ,  in  a manner
specified by this Cooperative or in agreements with this Cooperative, to pay
this Cooperative for all cooperative services used, received or purchased by
the Member and to pay any dues, fees, deposits, contributions or other
amounts required by these Bylaws or the Board, and

(d) paying its Membership fee hereinafter specified, after its application is
accepted by the Board.

May 10. 2023

No applicant shall have the right to become a Member nor shall it achieve Membership
status, unless and until it has been accepted for Membership by the Board or by the Members in
the manner set forth below. No Member may hold more than one Membership in this Cooperative
and no Membership in this Cooperative shall be transferable. Any act of transfer Ol attempt to
transfer whether voluntarily, involuntarily, or by operation of law, shall automatically terminate
https://trc.azguzoop/CREdiling/PandG/Policies/AEPCO Bylaws Final.docx
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the Membership as to the transferee, such transfer or attempt to transfer shall be void and the
Membership of the transferor or attempted transferor shall be suspended in accordance with
Section l.07(c) of these Bylaws.

The Secretaiy of this Cooperative shall submit to the Members all applications that have
not been accepted or have been rejected by the Board at least ninety (90) days prior to the meeting
of the Members. Subject to compliance by the applicant with the requirements for Membership,
any such application may be accepted by a majority of the authorized voting shares represented by
the delegates of the Members. The Secretary shall give each such applicant written notice of the
date of the Members' meeting, mailed at least ten days before the date of the Members' meeting
at which its application will be submitted, such applicants shall be entitled to be present and heard
at the appropriate portion of the meeting.

SECTION 1.03. Membership Cer tificates: Membership in this Cooperative shall be
evidenced by a Membership Certificate, which shall be in such form and shall contain such
provisions as shall be determined by the Board. Such Certificate shall be signed by the President
and by the Secretary of this Cooperative, and the corporate seal shall be affixed thereto. No
Membership Certificate shall be issued for less than the Membership fee fixed in these Bylaws,
nor until such Membership fee has been fully paid.

SECTION 1.04. Membership Fee: The Membership fee shall be a fee of $100.00 due and
payable upon entry into Membership.

SECTION 1.05. Governing Documents: Every Member shall follow, abide by and be
legally bound by:

to) this Cooperative's Articles of Incorporation,

(b) these Bylaws,

(c) this Cooperative's service rules,

(d) this Cooperative's rate or price schedules and open access transmission
tariffs,

( e ) any policy, resolution, action, or amendment adopted by this Cooperative's
Board or Membership, and,

to any other contract or agreement entered into by the Member with this
Cooperative, as any of these materials currently exist, and as they may be
later amended (collectively, "Governing Documents").

SECTION 1.06. Purchase of Power , Energv, Transmission Capacity or  Services: Each
Class A, Class B, Class C, and Class D Member shall purchase electric power, network electric
transmission services and capacity, or energy services specified in its agreement on the terms and
conditions set forth therein. Each Class A Member that purchases all of its power requirements at
wholesale from this Cooperative shall assign to this Cooperative any contracts or rights which it
has for the purchase of power from any other supplier and shall thereupon enter agreements to
purchase from this Cooperative all the power used by that Class A Member, provided, however,
https://trc.azgLcoop/CREdiiing/PandG/Policies/AEPCO Bylaws Final.docx May 10 2023
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that a Class A Member who has a contract for federal hydropower is not required to assign such
contract to this Cooperative, but shall be required to enter into a written agreement to allow such
federal hydropower resource to be scheduled by this Cooperative, within the requirements of the
Member's contract for federal hydropower, for the benefit of all Class A Members of this
Cooperative that purchase all of their power requirements at wholesale from this Cooperative, and
provided further the economic benefit of a Class A Member's federal hydropower allocation shall
be credited to the Class A Member.

"Power requirements" shall be defined as the nameplate capacity of power resources
subscribed by the Member with AEPCO, compared to the Member's annual gross peak load (total
net load forecast plus simultaneous Member utility-scale distributed energy resource capacity).

Without altering any of the aforementioned obligations, each Class A Member that elects
not to participate in any future electric power resources of this Cooperative, however, is not
obligated to assign to this Cooperative any contracts or nights for its future electric power resources
or to enter agreements to purchase from this Cooperative all the electric power used by that Class
A Member for its future electric power requirements following the effective date of a Partial
Requirements Capacity and Energy Agreement entered into with this Cooperative.

Each Member shall pay for monthly power, network electric transmission services and
capacity, or energy services at rates or on a basis to be determined from time to time in accordance
with the agreements heretofore 01 hereafter entered into between the Member and this Cooperative.
I t is expressly understood that portions of  the amounts paid  for  power,  network electr ic
transmission services and capacity, or energy services by Members and patrons are furnished as
capital in the manner provided in these Bylaws.

SECTION 1.07. Suspension, Termina tion of Membership.

(a) Voluntary Withdrawal. Any Member may withdraw from Membership
upon compliance with  such  terms and conditions as the Board  may
prescribe,  provided, however,  that no Member shall be permitted to
voluntarily withdraw until it has met all of its contractual obligations to this
Cooperative. Withdrawal of a Class A Member shall be governed by the
Withdrawal Agreement attached as an exhibit to the Member Agreement
entered into between the Member and this Cooperative.

(b) Involuntary Suspension or Expulsion. The Board may, by the affirmative
vote of  not less than two-thirds of  all the Directors,  recommend the
suspension or expulsion of any Member who fails to comply with any of
the provisions of the Governing Documents or who ceases to maintain the
qualif ications in  Section 1.01, which made such Member eligible for
Membership in this Cooperative, O1 take such other disciplinary actions as
the Board may find appropriate, but only if such Member shall have been
given written notice by the Secretary of this Cooperative that such failure
makes the Member liable to suspension or expulsion from Membership,
such failure shall have continued for at least thirty (30) days after such
notice was given and good faith attempts at reconciliation or resolution of
the matter through mediation have failed. Suspension of a Member shall
result in a suspension of such Member's vote through a Director or delegate

https://lrc.azgLcoop/CREditing/PandG/Policies/AEPCO Bylaws Final.docx May 10 2023
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and ofits Director's representation and attendance at meetings of the Board.
Within sixty (60) days after the Board shall have recommended suspension
or expulsion of a Member, a meeting of the Members shall be held at which
such Member shall be given an opportunity to present its case by counsel or
otherwise, and the Board shall have the same opportunity, after which a vote
shall be taken  on  the suspension  or  expulsion  of  such  Member .  An
affirmative vote by two-thirds of the authorized voting shares represented
by the delegates of the Members present at the meeting shall be required in
order to suspend or expel a Member. The resolution of suspension or
expulsion shall set forth the reasons therefore and shall state the conditions,
if any, on which the suspended or expelled Member may be re-admitted to
Membership .  The Directors of  the Member subject to  suspension or
expulsion shall not count towards any numerical requirements in this
Section 1.07(b), and shall be considered Interested Directors for Conflicts
of Interest purposes such that the Director of  the Member subject to
suspension or expulsion may not vote with the Board on the subject of
suspension or expulsion.

(c) Automatic Suspension. Termination. Any act of transfer or attempt to
transfer Membership, whether voluntarily, involuntarily or by operation of
law shall automatically suspend Membership. Membership of a Member
shall terminate au tomatically upon  the termination ,  cancellation  or
expiration of all written agreements of such Member for the purchase from
this Cooperative of power, network electric transmission services and
capacity, or energy services. Automatic termination under this subsection
shall  no t be governed  by subsection  (b )  o f  th is  Section  1.07,  and
reinstatement may be permitted only upon reapplication in the manner
provided in Article l.

(d) Designation of Alternate Directors. Upon the suspension of any Class C or
Class D Member, the remaining Members in that class, as appropriate, shall
collectively designate an alternate Director in accordance with Section 4.02
of these Bylaws.

(s) Cessation of Membership. Upon the withdrawal, expulsion, termination, or
cessation of existence of a Member, the Membership of such Member shall
thereupon cease, and the Membership Certificate of such Member shall
become void. The cessation of Membership shall also cause the termination
of that Member's Directorship. The cessation of Membership in any manner
shall no t release such  par ty o r  its  corporate successor(s)  f rom any
outstanding obligations whatsoever to this Cooperative, including losses of
this Cooperative allocated pursuant to Article 7 hereof, existing at the time
of such cessation of Membership. However, if  the Member's Director
represents a class of Members and not just the individual Member, then the
remaining Members in that class shall designate an alternate Director, as
provided iii Section 1.07 (d).
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SECTION 1.08. Membership List:

(a) This Cooperative, or an agent duly appointed by this Cooperative, shall
maintain a record of current Members in a form permitting this Cooperative
to alphabetically list by class of Member the names, addresses, and federal
tax identification numbers of all Members and indicate the number of votes
each Member is entitled to cast (hereinafter referred to as "Membership
List"). The federal tax identification number of any Member shall, in no
event, be made public.

(b) Upoh five business days' prior written notice and at a reasonable time and
location specified by this Cooperative, a Member may inspect the names,
addresses, and Member classifications included in the Membership List, but
not the federal tax identification numbers.

ARTICLE II
RIGHTS AND LIABILITIES OF MEMBERS

SECTION 2.01. Proper tv Interest of Members: Upon dissolution, after (a) all debts and
liabilities of this Cooperative shall have been paid, and (b) all capital furnished through patronage
shall have been retired as provided in these Bylaws, the remaining property and assets of this
Cooperative shall be distributed among the Members and former Members in the proportion which
the aggregate patronage of each bears to the total patronage of all such Members as further set
forth in Section 7.02 unless otherwise provided by law.

SECTION 2.02. Non-liabililv for  Debts of the Coopera tive: The private property of the
Members shall be exempt from execution or other liability for the debts of this Cooperative, and
no Member shall be liable or responsible for any debts of liabilities of this Cooperative, unless the
Member otherwise agrees in writing.

SECTION 2.03. Additional Capita l Contributions: No Member shall be obligated to make
any additional capital contributions, unless agreed to by such Member pursuant to an agreement
other than these Bylaws.

ARTICLE 111
MEETING OF MEMBERS

SECTION 3.01. Annual Meeting. Once per calendar year, a meeting of the Members shall
be held at such date, place, and time as the Board may by Resolution establish in the notice of the
meeting, for the purposes of seating Directors, passing upon reports for the previous fiscal year
and transacting such other business as may come before the meeting. It shall be the responsibility
of the Board to make adequate plans and preparations for the annual meeting. Failure to hold the
annual meeting at the designated time shall not constitute a forfeiture or dissolution of this
Cooperative.

SECTION 3.02. Specia l Meetings: Special meetings of the Members may be called by
Resolution of the Board or upon a written notice signed by any three Directors, by the President,
or by not less than 25 percent of the voting delegates designated at the most recent meeting of the
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Members, and it shall thereupon be the duty of the Secretary to cause notice of such meeting to be
given as hereinafter provided. Special meetings of the Members may be held at any place specified
in the notice of the special meeting.

SECTION 3.03. Video Conference Meetings: To the extent authorized by the Board of
Directors and subject to any guidelines and procedures adopted by the Board of Directors, an
annual meeting or special meeting of the Members of the Cooperative may be held without a
geographic location if the meeting is held utilizing the internet or other electronic communications
technology in a manner: (a) pemtitting the Cooperative to verify that a person is the duly authorized
representative of a Member, and (b) permitting the duly authorized representatives of the Members
the opportunity to read and hear the proceedings substantially concurrently as they occur, vote on
matters submitted to the Membership, ask questions, and make comments.

SECTION 3.04. Notice of The Members' Meetin2. A written or printed notice stating the
place, day, and hour of the meeting and, in the case of a special meeting or an annual meeting at
which business requiring special notice is to be transacted, the purpose or purposes for which the
meeting is called, shall be given not less than ten (10) days nor more than ninety (90) days before
the date of the meeting, either personally or by mail, to each Member and to each person serving
as a voting delegate in accordance with the provisions of Section 3.07 of this Article. If mailed,
such notice, Ol any other notice required or permitted by these Bylaws, shall be deemed to be given
when deposited in the United States mail, addressed to the Member or to the voting delegate at the
address as it appears on the records of this Cooperative, with first class postage thereon prepaid.
A quorum, as defined in Section 3.08, being present at such meeting, the failure of any Member
or voting delegate to receive notice of an annual or special meeting of the Members shall not
invalidate any action which may be taken by the Members at any such meeting.

SECTION 3.05. Record Date: The Board shall fix a  da te for determining the total
Membership of this Cooperative and the Members entitled to receive a notice of a Members'
meeting and participate at the Members' meeting (hereinafter referred to as "Record Date").
Unless otherwise fixed by the Board, the Record Date for determining the total Membership and
the Members entitled to receive a notice is the 19th day prior to the date of the Members' meeting.

SECTION 3.06. Member Meeting List:

(21) After fixing the Record Date, this Cooperative shall prepare, update, and
maintain an alphabetical list (hereinafter referred to as "Member Meeting
List") indicating the Members entitled to notice of the Member meeting,
and the name and address of the Member delegates, and the number of
voting shares entitled to be cast on behalf of each Member by its delegates
to the Members' meeting.

(b) Following the Record Date, the Member Meeting List shall be made
available to any Member upon request.
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SECTION 3.07. Delegates and Voting Shares: Whenever these Bylaws require or allow a
Member to vote, it shall do so only through its duly authorized voting delegate(s). Each Member
shall designate voting delegates to cast votes for and to represent such Member at meetings of the
Members of this Cooperative as follows: each Class A Member shall designate two delegates, each
with one undivided voting share, each Class B Member shall designate one delegate with one
undivided voting share, Class C Members shall jointly designate one delegate with one undivided
voting share, and Class D Members shall jointly designate one delegate with one undivided voting
share. No delegate shall be authorized to exercise more than one voting share. A Member may also
designate alternate voting delegates to represent it in the absence of an authorized voting delegate.

Not more than ninety (90) days prior to each annual meeting of the Members of this
Cooperative, each Member shall certify to the Secretary of this Cooperative the names and
addresses of the voting delegate(s) and alternate delegate(s) who will represent such Member at
the meeting. However, if a voting delegate that is certified to represent a Member is unable to
attend the annual meeting, then the Member shall be entitled to designate an alternate prior to the
annual meeting. Not more than 10 days prior to each annual meeting of the Members, this
Cooperative shall provide written notice to each Member of the names and addresses of the voting
delegates and alternate delegates who have been designated to represent the Members at the
meeting.

SECTION 3.08. Ouorum: The presence of delegates representing a majority of the voting
shares represented by the delegates of the Members shall constitute a quorum. If less than a quorum
is present at any meeting, a majority of those present in person may adjourn the meeting or continue
it. However, in such event no vote may be taken on any matter.

SECTION 3.09. Vofin2. Ar all meetings of the Members at which a quorum is present, all
questions shall be decided by a vote of a majority of the voting shares represented by the delegates
voting thereon except as otherwise provided by law, the Articles of Incorporation Ol by the Bylaws.
Each voting delegate shall be entitled to a single vote of the delegate's voting share, and no more,
upon each matter submitted to a vote at a meeting of the Members.

The Members shall cast votes only through duly authorized voting delegates or, in the
absence of an authorized voting delegate, through a duly authorized alternate voting delegate. At
all meetings of the Members of this Cooperative, the Members shall be entitled to have voting
delegates and alternate voting delegates present, and through the voting delegates, or the alternate
voting delegates acting in place of the authorized voting delegates, vote upon each matter
submitted to a vote at such meetings which were properly noticed and at which a quorum is present.

Nothing contained in this Section shall be construed to grant to any Member more votes
than it is entitled to by reason of its Class.

SECTION 3. 10. Proxy and Mail Voting: Voting by delegates by proxy or by mail shall not
be permitted.

SECTION 3.1 I. Order  of Business: The order of business at the annual meeting of the
Members and, so far as practicable, at all other meetings of the Members, shall be set by the Board.
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ARTICLE IV
DIRECTORS

SECTION4.01. Genera l Powers and Responsibilities:

(a) The conduct of the business and affairs of this Cooperative shall be invested
in and be the responsibility of the Board. The Board shall exercise all the
powers of this Cooperative except such as are by law, contract, policy, the
Articles of Incorporation Of these Bylaws conferred upon Ol reserved to
others from time to time. The Board may employ such employees of this
Cooperative as may be necessary 111 conying out its responsibilities.

(b) Committees. The Board upon its appropriate Resolution, may establish such
standing or special committees as it may deem necessary in accordance with
the provisions of Sections 5.07 and 5.08.

(c) Policies and Rules. The Board shall have power to make and adopt such
policies and rules, not inconsistent with the law, contractual commitments,
the Articles of Incorporation Ol these Bylaws, as it may deem advisable for
the management of the business and affairs of this Cooperative.

(d) Accounting Svstem and Reports. The Board shall cause to be established
and maintained by this Cooperative's management, a complete accounting
system that, among other things, and subject to applicable laws and rules of
any regulatory body of competent jurisdiction, shall conform to such
accounting system as required  by applicable lenders,  governmental
authorities, or regulators. The Board shall also, after the close of each fiscal
year, cause to be made a full and complete audit of the accounts, books, and
financial condition of this Cooperative as of the end of such fiscal year.
Such audit reports shall be submitted to the Members at the next following
annual meeting.

SECTION 4.02. Composition: The Board shall include two Directors from each Class A
Member. The Class B Members shall be represented by one Director for each Member. The Class
C Members shall be jointly represented by one Director for the class. The Class D Members shall
be jointly represented by one Director for the class.

SECTION 4.03. Director Qualifica tions: No person shall be eligible to become or remain
a Director of this Cooperative if such person is, or within the immediately past one year has been:

(a) a Close Relative (as hereinafter defined in Section 4.10) of any existing
Director, other than an existing Director who will cease being a Director
within one year,

(b) an existing, or a Close Relative of an existing, non-Director officer,
employee, agent, or representative of this Cooperative, or
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(c) the Executive Vice President and Chief Executive Officer of this
Cooperative.

SECTION 4.04. Designa tions: Each Class A Member shall designate the Directors who
will represent that Class A Member. Each Class B Member shall designate the Director who will
represent that Class B Member. The Class C Members shall collectively designate a Director who
will represent all the Class C Members. The Class D Members shall collectively designate a
Director who will represent all the Class D Members. If the Class C or D Members are unable to
designate their respective Di1ector(s) by unanimous agreement of the authorized class Members,
then such Director(s) shall be selected by a majority vote of the authorized class Members, and
any tie vote shall be broken by random selection, such as by the flip of a coin. A Director
designated by the Class C Members or Class D Members shall, upon the expiration or the
termination of the cont1act(s) between Class C or Class D Members with whom the Director is
affiliated and this Cooperative, no longer be qualified to represent such Members.

In the event of the temporary vacancy, caused by sickness or disability, among other things,
resulting in the inability of a Director to discharge the duties of the office, including, but not limited
to attending meetings of the Board of Directors, the Member originally designating such Director
may, by written notice to the President, designate an alternate Director to serve until such Director
originally designated is able to resume the duties of the office. Such alternate Director shall have
the same rights, responsibilities, and obligations as the disabled Director for the term of such
service.

SECTION 4.05. Tenure ofOfI'ice. The Directors of each Class A Member shall be seated
for a two-year tenn at annual meetings in alternating years and shall serve until the second
following annual meeting or until their successors shall have been designated and shall have
qualified. Similarly, the Director(s) representing the Class B Member(s), Class C Member(s), or
Class D Member(s) shall be seated for a two year term at annual meetings and shall serve until the
second following annual meeting 01 until a successor(s) shall have been designated and shall have
qualified, or until the agreements(s) between the Class B, Class C, of Class D Member with whom
the Director is affiliated and this Cooperative has expired (with respect to Directors representing
that class Member), whichever event occurs first. At each annual meeting of Members, Directors
shall be designated and seated to fill the expired terms.

If the Directors shall not have been seated to fill the expired terms on the day designated
herein for the annual meeting, or at any adjournment thereof, the Board shall cause the designation
and seating of Directors to be held at a special meeting of the Members within a reasonable time
thereafter consistent with the provisions of these Bylaws.

SECTION 4.06. Removal of Dir ector s by Members. Any Member may bring charges
against any Director and may request the removal of such Director by filing with the Secretary of
this Cooperative such charges in writing together with a petition signed by delegates designated at
the most recent meeting of the Members representing at least twenty (20) percent of the voting
shares of the Members. Any such Director or Directors shall be informed by notice in writing of
the charges at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting of the Members at which the charges are to
be considered and shall have the opportunity at the meeting to be present in person and/or
represented by counsel and to present evidence in respect of the charges, and the Member or
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Members bringing the charges against him shall have the same opportunity. The question of the
removal of such Director OI Directors shall be considered and voted upon at the meeting of the
Members and any vacancy created by such removal may be filled for the unexpired portion of the
term in accordance with Section 4.04 of these Bylaws.

SECTION 4.07. Removal of Director  by Board:  A Director may be removed from the
Board by an affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the total Membership of the Board if: (a) such
Director is absent without just cause from four consecutive meetings of the Board, or (b) such
Director has continually and repeatedly, after prior written warning from the President or the
President's designee: (i) violated established Board policies, (ii) conducted himself or herself in a
manner which is adverse or detrimental to the best interests of this Cooperative, (iii) failed or
refused to perform the duties and obligations of a Director as required by the Bylaws and policies
of this Cooperative, or (iv) has acted in such a manner as to disrupt, obstruct or otherwise prevent
the orderly transaction of business by the Board during any of its business meetings.

Written notice of intent to remove and a statement of the reason(s) therefor, along with any
documentation supporting the removal, must be given to the subject Director by the Secretary or
such other person as designated by the President not less than ten (10) days prior to the date of the
scheduled meeting. Such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United
States mail, addressed to the Director at the Director's address as it appears on the records of this
Cooperative, with first class postage thereon prepaid and postmarked at least ten (10) days prior
to the meeting date. The Director subject to removal shall be provided the opportunity to be heard
before the vote on removal. The Director subject to removal shall not count towards any numerical
requirements in this Section 4.07, and shall be considered an Interested Director for Conflicts of
Interest purposes such that the Director may not vote on the removal .

SECTION 4.08. Vacancies:  Subject to the provisions of these Bylaws with respect to the
filling of permanent vacancies caused by, among other things, the removal of Directors by
Members or the Board, or by the death Ol resignation of a Director, or the suspension of a Class
B, Class C, O1 Class D Member, a vacancy occurring in the Board shall be filled for the unexpired
portion of the temp in accordance with Section 4.04 of these Bylaws. Such Director shall be
designated by and represent the same Class A Member, Class B Member, Class C Members or
Class D Members as did the Director's predecessor and shall be seated by the Board to fill the
unexpired term of the Director's predecessor and, notwithstanding Section 4.05, such new Director
shall have the same rights, responsibilities and obligations as the Director's predecessor.

SECTION4.09. Compensa tion of Directors: Directors shall receive a fixed fee for services
performed as Directors. Expenses of attendance, if any, may be allowed for attendance at each
meeting of the Board, or a committee thereof. Expenses of attendance may be authorized for
officers or Directors acting as an authorized delegate of the Board. Payment of expenses may also
be authorized for officers or Directors who perform services between meetings. No Director shall
receive compensation for personal service to this Cooperative in any other capacity, nor shall any
Close Relative of a Director receive compensation for serving this Cooperative in any capacity,
unless the payment and amount of compensation shall be specifically authorized by a vote of the
Members through their delegates or the service by such Director or Close Relative shall have been
certified by the Board as an emergency measure. These provisions may be set forth more
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particularly in applicable Board Policy, as may be modified or amended from time to time,
consistent with this Section 4.09.

SECTION4.10. Close Rela tive: As used in these Bylaws, the term "Close Relative" means
an individual who, with respect to any person:

(a) is, either by blood, law or marriage, including half, step, foster and adoptive
relations, a spouse, child, grandchild, parent, grandparent or sibling of such
natural person, or

(b) principally resides in the salne residence as such natural person.

Any individual properly qualified and elected or appointed to any position in this
Cooperative shall not be deemed to be a Close Relative while serving in such position merely as a
result of any manage or legal action to which the individual was not a party.

ARTICLE V
MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 5.01. Red ula  Meetings: A regular meeting of the Board shall be held without
notice after the annual meeting of the Members. A regular meeting of the Board shall also be held
on a periodic basis, either monthly or as needed, at such time and place as the Board may provide
by Resolution. Such regular meetings may be held without notice other than such Resolution fixing
the time and place thereof.

SECTION 5.02. Specia l Meetings: Special meetings of the Board may be called by the
President or by any three Directors, and it shall thereupon be the duty of the Secretary to cause
notice of such meeting to be given as hereinafter provided. The President or the Directors calling
the meeting shall fix the time and place for the holding of the meeting.

SECTION 5.03. Notice of Directors ' Specia l Meetings: Written notice of the time, place
and purpose of any special meeting of the Board shall be delivered to each Director not less than
three days prior thereto, personally, electronically or by facsimile, mail or any other method
designed to give notice by Ol at the direction of the Secretary, or upon a default in duty by the
Secretary, by the President or a Director calling the meeting.

SECTION 5.04. Presence a r Meetings: Any or all Directors may participate in any regular
or special meeting of the Board of Directors, or of any duly constituted committee thereof, by any
means of communication through which the Directors may simultaneously hear and speak to each
other during such meeting. Unless otherwise provided herein, for the purpose of establishing a
quorum and taking any action, such Directors participating pursuant to this Section 5.04 shall be
deemed present in person at the meeting.

SECTION5.05. Conduct of Director Meetings: Unless otherwise provided in these Bylaws,
any regular meeting or special meeting of the Board may be:
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(a) held at such date, place and time as the Board may by Resolution establish,
and,

(b) conducted with absent Directors participating, and deemed present in
person, through any means of communication by which all Directors
participating in the Director meeting may simultaneously hear, reasonably
and verifiably identify themselves, and simultaneously and approximately
instantaneously communicate with each other during the Director meeting.

If a Director quorum, as defined by Section 5.07, is present at any Director meeting, then:

(a) in descending priority, the following officers may preside at the Director
meeting: President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, and,

(b) if no officer is present or desires to preside over any Director meeting, then
the Directors attending the Director meeting shall elect a Director to preside
over the Director meeting.

SECTION5.06. Voting by Directors
(a) Unless specifically required otherwise by these Bylaws, contractual

provision, cooperative Policy, or law, the vote by a majority of the Directors
present and voting at a Director meeting at which a quorum is present in
accordance with Section 5.07 hereof shall constitute approval of an action
or choice by the Board.

(b) A majority vote shall mean more than half of the votes cast by persons
legally entitled to vote and authorized to do so pursuant to these Bylaws,
excluding blank ballots, abstentions, Of recusals at a regular Ol properly
called Director meeting at which a Director quorum, as defined by Section
5.07, is present.

SECTION 5.07. Ouorum: Except as may be otherwise provided by these Bylaws, a quorum at a
meeting of the Board, or any committee established pursuant to Section 4.0l(b) hereof, shall
consist of a majority of the Directors provided, that if less than such a quorum is present at such
meeting, a majority of the Directors present may adjourn the meeting or continue it. However, if
the meeting continues, no vote may be taken on any matter. The Secretary shall notify any absent
Directors of the time and place of any adjourned meeting.

SECTION 5.08. Committees: The Board may create committees of the Board (hereinafter
referred to as "Board Colnmittees"). The President shall appoint Directors to serve on all Board
Committees. The Board Committees shall serve at the Board's discretion. The Board may create
special purpose committees of the Members (hereinafter referred to as "Member Committees")
and appoint Members, including Directors, to serve on the Member Committees.
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(a) Conduct of Committee Meetings. The Bylaws addressing regular Director
meetings, special Director meetings, conduct of Director meetings, waiver
of Director meetings notice, Board action by written consent, and Director
quorum and voting shall apply to Board Committees and Directors serving
on Board Committees, and to Member Committees and Members serving
on Member Committees.

(b) Committee Authoiity. Although a Board Committee may so recommend, a
Board Committee may not act to:

1. retire and refund capital credits,

2 . approve this Cooperative's dissolution or merger, or the sale, pledge
o r  tr an sfer  o f  a l l ,  o r  su b s tan tia lly all ,  o f  th e assets  o f  th is
Cooperative,

3 . elect, appoint, or remove Directors, or fill any Board or Board
Committee vacancy, or

4. adopt, amend, or repeal these Bylaws.

Member Committees may act as specified by the Board but may not exercise Board
authority.

SECTION 5.09. Board Executive Committee. Unless otherwise determined by the Board:
(i) the Board Executive Committee is comprised of the President, Vice President, Secretary, and
Treasurer (hereinafter referred to as "Board Executive Committee"), and (ii) when it is not
practicable for the Board to meet to consider a matter, and except as prohibited by law, the Articles
of Incorporation, Ol these Bylaws, including without limitation Section 5.08(b) herein, the Board
Executive Committee may exercise all Board authority regarding a matter, as so delegated by the
Board. Such exercise of Board Authority shall be reported at the next Director Meeting.

SECTION5. 10. Conflict of lnterest Transaction:

(a) Determination of a Conflict of Interest Transaction. A conflict of interest
transaction is a transaction with this Cooperative in which the Board of a
Board Committee, applicable, determines that a Director has a substantial
interest (hereinafter refereed to as "Conflict of Interest Transaction"). A
Director shall be found to have a substantial interest in a transaction
(hereinafter referred to as "Interested Director") and therefore that a
Conflict of Interest exists if a majority of disinterested Directors or Board
Committee Members determines that:

1. at  least  one o ther  party to  the t ransact ion is an ent i ty in which the
Director, or a Close Relative of the Director, as defined in Section
4.10 herein, has a substantial interest or is a director, officer,
manager, partner  o r  t rustee thereo f. However, a Directo r  shal l  no t
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have an interest in a Conflict of Interest Transaction solely because
the Director is also a director of manager of an electric cooperative
that is a Member of this Cooperative unless Section 5. 10 (a)2 below
applies, or

2 . the Cooperative contemplates entering into any other transaction
whereby the interests of the Director substantially diverge from the
interests of the electric cooperative of which the Director is also a
director or manager, so that (1) such director cannot carry out his or
her fiduciary duties to this Cooperative without being at risk of
violating his or her fiduciary duties to the electric cooperative of
which the Director is also a director or manager, of (2) there is good
cause to believe that such Director cannot reasonably be expected to
exercise independen t bus iness  judgmen t on  the pan  o f  th is
Cooperative.

(b) Disclosure of a Conflict of Interest Transaction. In connection with any
actual or possible Conflict of Interest Transaction, a Director shall disclose
the existence and nature of  such in terest to  the Board .  I f  the Board
determines that a Director is an Interested Director and has failed to disclose
an interest in  a Conflict of  Interest Transaction,  the Board may take
appropriate corrective actions after providing a Director with a reasonable
opportunity to respond. Any Director or Board Committee Member shall
have the right to request that the Board or Board Committee, as applicable,
consider and vote upon whether or not a Conflict of Interest Transaction
exists.

(c) Effect o f  a Conf lict o f  In terest Transaction .  I f  the Board  o r  Board
Committee determines that a Conflict of Interest Transaction exists, the
Interested Director shall be precluded from voting on the matter in question,
unless a majority of  the disinterested Directors Ol Board Committee
Members vote to  approve the Conflict of  Interest Transaction under
Section 5.l0(d) below. In addition, an Interested Director shall, upon the
request o f  the Chairman or  o f  the Board ,  o r  in  the case of  a Board
Committee, upon the request of the Chair or of the Committee, leave any
meeting wherein any matters relating to the Conflict of Interest Transaction
are discussed or voted upon.

(d) Approval of a Conflict of Interest Transaction. Regardless of the presence
or vote of an Interested Director, a Conflict of Interest Transaction may be
approved, and any related Director quorum Of Member quorum satisfied,
if the Conflict of Interest Transaction's material facts and the Director's
interest are :

May 10. 2023https://trc .azgLcoop/CREditing/PandG/Policies/AEPCO Bylaws Final.docx

176 of 252§ l7l0.50l.B.l - A Copy of the Borrower 's Current Bylaws



I a IArizona 28 U45 A ache L o a n A Plication

1. disclosed or known to the Board or Board Committee directly before
a vote is taken; and a majority, or super majority, if required, plus
one of the Directors or Board Committee Members with no interest
in the Conflict of Interest Transaction votes to approve the Conflict
of Interest Transaction, Ol

2. disclosed or known to the Members, directly before a vote is taken,
and a majority of votes cast by Members not voting under the control
o f  a Directo r  o f  en tity in terested  in  the Conf lict o f  In terest
Transaction approves the Conflict of Interest Transaction.

(s) Other Conflicts of Interest. The Board may, by policy, designate other
conflict of interest situations, such as between classes of Members receiving
different services from this Cooperative, and develop methods of resolution
in accordance with this Section 5. 10, including precluding a Director from
participating or voting on matters relating to AEPCO power facilities or
services for which the Member he or she represents has no contractual
interest.

ARTICLE VI
OFFICERS

SECTION 6.01. Number: The officers of this Cooperative shall be a President, Vice
President, Secretary, Treasurer and such other officers as may be determined by the Board from
time to time. The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be held by the same person.

SECTION 6.02. Election and Term of Ofi9ce: The officers shall be elected by secret ballot
annually by the Board at the next meeting of the Board held after the meeting of the Members in
which the Directors are seated. The President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer shall be
Members of the Board. No person shall be able to serve in the same elected office of this
Cooperative for a period of longer than three consecutive years. A Director must declare his or her
availability to serve in any of the elected offices of this Cooperative at any regularly scheduled
Director meeting at least one month prior to the election. Exceptions to this requirement must be
approved by the vote of at least three-fourths of the Directors present at the meeting when elections
are held. Each officer shall hold office until the first meeting of the Board following the next
succeeding meeting of the Members at which Directors are seated Ol until his or her successor
shall have been elected and shall have qualified, whichever is later. A vacancy in any office shall
be filled by the Board for the unexpired portion of the term.

SECTION 6.03. Removal of Ofi9cers by Directors: Any officer elected or appointed by the
Board may be removed by the Board whenever in its judgment the best interests of this Cooperative
will be served thereby. In addition, any Member of this Cooperative may bring charges against
any officer, by filing with the Secretary such charges in writing. (If the officer is the Secretary,
then by filing with the President). The officer against whom such charges have been brought shall
be informed in writing of the charges at least ten (10) days prior to the Director's meeting at which
the charges are to be considered and shall have an opportunity to be present and represented by
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counsel  at  the meeting and to  present  evidence in respect  o f the charge, and the person or persons
bringing the charges against  the officer shall  have the same opportunity.

SECTION 6.04. President: The President shall:

(a) be the principal executive officer of this Cooperative and shall preside at all
meetings of the Members and the Board,

(b) sign any deeds, mortgages, deeds of trust, notes, bonds, contracts or other
instruments authorized by the Board to be executed, except in cases in
which the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the
Board or by these Bylaws to some other officer, employee or agent of this
Cooperative, Ol shall be required by law to be otherwise signed or executed ,
and,

(c) in general, perform all duties incident to the office of President and such
other duties as may be prescribed by the Board from time to time.

SECTION 6.05. Vice President: In the absence of the President, or in the event of the
President's inability or refusal to act, the Vice President shall perform the duties of the President,
and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the
President. The Vice President shall also perform such other duties as from time to time may be
assigned by the Board.

SECTION 6.06. Secrerarv: The Secretary shall be responsible for performing all duties
incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by
the Board.

SECTION6.07. Treasurer : The Treasurer shall be responsible for performing all the duties
incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by
the Board. The Treasurer shall be designated as an Assistant Secretary.

SECTION 6.08. Executive Vice President and Chief Executive Officer : The Board is
empowered to employ, pursuant to contract, an Executive Vice President and Chief Executive
Officer (hereinafter referred to as "CEO") to conduct the business of this Cooperative and shall
delegate to the CEO such authority, responsibility and accountability as it may deem necessary for
the successful operation of the business. The CEO shall not be eligible to serve as a Director of
this Cooperative.

SECTION 6.09. Reports: The officers of this Cooperative shall submit at each annual
meeting of the Members reports covering the business of this Cooperative for the previous fiscal
year. Such reports shall set forth the condition of this Cooperative consistent with Section 4.01 (d)
of these Bylaws, at the close of such fiscal year.
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ARTICLE VII
NON-PROFIT OPERATION

SECTION 7.01. Interest or Dividends on Capita l Prohibited: This Cooperative shall at all
times be operated as a non-profit cooperative, pursuant to applicable legal requirements, for the
mutual benefit of its Members. No interest or dividends shall be paid or payable by this
Cooperative on any capital furnished by its Members.

SECTION 7.02. Patronage Capita l in Connection with the Sale of EIectric Power, Electric
Network Tra nsmission Services a nd Ca pa city, a nd Energy Services: In the sale or delivery of
electric power, network electric transmission services and capacity, and energy services, this
Cooperative's operations will be so conducted that Members and non-members alike, will through
their patronage furnish capital for this Cooperative.

(a) In order to induce patronage and to ensure that this Cooperative will operate
on a non-profit basis, this Cooperative is obligated to account, on a
patronage basis, to all its Members for all amounts received and receivable
from the sale and/or delivery of electric power, network electric
transmission services and capacity, and energy services in excess of the sum
of:

1. operating costs and expenses, including interest on debt service,
properly chargeable against the sale and/or delivery of electric
power and other services, and,

2. amounts required to offset any losses incurred during the current or
any prior fiscal years.

All such amounts in excess of operating costs, expenses and prior losses at the moment
of receipt by this Cooperative are received with the understanding that they are furnished by the
Members as capital. This Cooperative is hereby obligated to pay by credits to a capital account for
each Member for all such amounts as credits in proportion to the value or quantity of this
Cooperative's service used, received or purchased by each Member during the applicable fiscal
year in excess of operating costs and expenses, and prior losses. The books and records of this
Cooperative shall, consistent with Section 4.0l(d) hereof, be set up and kept in such manner that
at the end of each fiscal year the amount of capital, if any, so furnished by each Member is clearly
reflected and credited in an appropriate record to the capital account of each Member, and this
Cooperative shall within a reasonable time after the close of the fiscal year notify each Member of
the amount of capital in the dollar amount so credited to its account. All such amounts credited to
the capital account of any Member shall have the same status as though they had been paid to the
Member in cash in accordance with a legal obligation to do so and the Member had then furnished
this Cooperative corresponding amounts of capital. Notwithstanding any provision of this
Article 7, the amount to be credited to the capital of Members on account of their patronage shall
be determined based upon the greater of an alternative minimum tax or regular tax as determined
under Federal income tax law.
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(a) F u nds  a nd  a m o u n t s ,  o t he r  t ha n  o pe r a t i ng  m a r g i n s ,  r e c e i ve d  by t h i s
Co o pera t i ve  t ha t  exceed t hi s  Co o pera t i ve ' s  co s t s  and expenses  may be
a l l o c a t e d  a s  c a p i t a l  c r e d i t s  t o  Me m b e r s  i n  t h e  s a m e  m a n n e r  a s  t h i s
Cooperative al locates capital  credits to  Members.

(b) In the event of the dissolution or liquidation of this Cooperative, after all
outstanding indebtedness of  th is Cooperative shall have been  paid ,
outstanding capital contributions, credits and Membership fees shall be
retired on a pro rata basis within the classes and in such order, before any
payments are made on account of property rights of Members. If, at any
time prior to dissolution or liquidation, the Board shall determine that the
financial condition of this Cooperative will not be impaired thereby, the
capital then credited to accounts of Members may be retired in full or in
part. Such retirements shall consider the need to maintain reserves in
accordance with prudent utility practice and the financial requirements and
obligations imposed by lenders. The Board shall determine the method,
basis, priority and order of retirement, if any, for all amounts heretofore and
hereaf ter  fu rn ished  as cap ital,  p rov ided ,  however ,  that any cap ital
con tr ibu tions,  cred its ,  and  Membersh ip  fees retu rned ,  refunded  or
distributed for any given time period shall be paid out to the Members in
proportion to the contributions, credits or fees paid or earned by each
Member in the relevant time period.

(d) Capital credited to the account of each Member shall be assignable only on
the books of this Cooperative pursuant to written instruction from the
assignor and only to successors in interest in the business or the physical
assets of such Member unless the Board, acting under policies of general
application, shall determine otherwise.

(6) The Members of  th is Cooperative,  by dealing with  this Cooperative,
acknowledge that the terms and provisions of the Articles of Incorporation
and Bylaws shall constitute and be an agreement between this Cooperative
and the Members and both this Cooperative and the Members are bound by
such an agreement, as fully as though each Member had individually signed
a separate instrument containing such terms and provisions, but such
agreement shall not constitute the written agreement required by Article I
for Membership.

(6) As a condition of using, receiving or purchasing any services of this
Cooperative, and unless otherwise determined by the Board: Patrons who
are not Members (hereinafter referred to as "non-member patrons") and
persons using, or receiving cooperative service who are neither Members
nor patrons (hereinafter referred to as "non-member non-patrons") shall
abide by, and be bound to ,  all the duties,  obligations,  liabilities and
responsibilities imposed by the applicable contract terms, tariffs and service
rules.

https://lrc.azgLcoop/CREditing/PandG/Policies/AEPCO Bylaws Final.docx May l(). 2023
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(D Non-member patrons and former non-member patrons shall have none of
the rights granted specifically to Members by the Governing Documents.

(8) Non-member non-patrons shall have none of the rights granted specifically
to Members by the Governing Documents.

ARTICLE VIII
DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

SECTION 8.01. Unless otherwise provided by law, this Cooperative may not sell, lease or
otherwise dispose of all or a substantial portion of its property unless such sale, lease or other
disposition is: (i) first, proposed by Resolution of the Board, and (ii) second, authorized at a
meeting of the Members thereof by the affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds of the voting
delegates representing the Members of this Cooperative, provided that the notice of such proposed
sale, lease or other disposition shall have been contained in the notice of the meeting, provided
further, that notwithstanding anything herein contained, the Board of this Cooperative, without
authorization of the Members thereof, shall have full power and authority to authorize the
execution and delivery of a mortgage or mortgages or a deed of trust upon, or the pledging or
encumbering of, any or all the property, assets, lights, privileges, licenses, franchises and permits
of this Cooperative, whether acquired or to be acquired, and wherever situated, as well as the
revenues and income therefrom, all upon such terms and conditions as the Board shall determine,
to secure any indebtedness of this Cooperative.

ARTICLE IX
SEAL

SECTION 9.01. This Cooperative shall not be required to have of use a seal, but may do so
if desired. The corporate seal of this Cooperative, if any, shall be in the form of a circle and shall
have inscribed thereon the name of this Cooperative and the words "Corporate Seal, Arizona."

ARTICLE X
FINANCIAL TRANSA CTIONS

SECTION 10.01. Contracts. Checks. Drafts and Other Instruments: This Cooperative shall
not enter into any written agreements to furnish electric power , network electric transmission
services and capacity, or energy services to any applicant for Class B, Class C, or Class D
Membership unless the CEO determines on sufficient inquiry and affirmatively demonstrates to
the Board that, with reasonable certainty and reasonable margin for error, this Cooperative will be
able to fulfill such commitment without threatening performance of its other commitments. The
CEO shall not embark upon any course of conduct with regard to any Member that commits this
Cooperative for any period longer than is authorized by the Board.

Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the Board may, by Resolution, authorize
any officer, employee or agent to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in
the name and on behalf of this Cooperative, and such authority may be general or confined to a
specific instance. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money and all notes, bonds

May 10. 2023https://lrc .azgLcoop/CREditing/PandG/Policies/AEPCO Bylaws Final.docx
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or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of this Cooperative shall be signed by a
designated officer, employee or agent of this Cooperative.

SECTION 10.02. Deposits: All funds of this Cooperative shall be deposited from time to
time to the credit of this Cooperative in such bank Ol banks as the Board may select.

SECTION 10.03. Change in Ra tes: Written notice shall be given to the Administrator of
the RUS, in accordance with RUS rules, of any proposed change in the rates charged by this
Cooperative for electric energy for so long as this Cooperative is a RUS borrower.

SECTION 10.04. Fisca l Year: The fiscal year of this Cooperative shall begin on the first
day of January of each year and shall end on the 3 1st day of December of the same year.

ARTICLE XI
MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 11.01. Membership in Other  Organiza tions. This Cooperative may become a
Member of or purchase an interest in any other organization unless otherwise limited by law.

SECTION I1.02. Waiver  ofNofice: At any time, a Member, delegate or Director may waive
notice of any meeting required to be given by these Bylaws by delivering to this Cooperative a
written waiver of notice signed by the Member, delegate Ol Director and later filed with the
meeting minutes of this Cooperative's records. Unless a Member, delegate or Director:

( a ) upon giving at the meeting or prior to the vote on a particular matter,
objects to lack of, or defective notice of the meeting or a matter being
considered at the meeting, and

(b) does not vote for, or assent to, an objected matter, then the Member's,
delegate's or Director's attendance at, or participation in, a meeting waives
notice of the meeting and any matter considered at the meeting.

SECTION 11.03. No Joint Venture: These Bylaws shall not be interpreted or construed
to create a joint venture, agency relationship or partnership between this Cooperative and any
Member, or to impose any partnership obligation or partnership liability upon this cooperative or
any Member.

SECTION 11.04. Indemnifica tion: This Cooperative shall indemnify an individual who is,
or was, a Director, officer or employee of this Cooperative against liability asserted against, Ol
incurred by, that individual in that capacity or arising from the individual's status as such to the
maximum extent permitted by and in accordance with Arizona law for indemnification by
non-profit corporations. Indemnification as between the Cooperative and any Member shall be
governed by the terms of any contracts between the Cooperative and the Member or, if no contract
exists, as authorized by Arizona law.

May 10. 2023https://lrc .azgLcoop/CREditing/PandG/Policies/AEPCO Bylaws Final.docx
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SECTION I1.05. Insurance: Regardless of any indemnification authority or requirements,
this Cooperative may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any individual who is, or was,
a Director, officer, employee, agent or representative of this Cooperative against any: (a) liability,
including judgment, settlement or odierwise, or (b) reasonable expenses, including reasonable
attorney fees, asserted against, or incurred by, the individual in that individual's capacity, or arising
from the individual's status as this Cooperative's Director, officer, employee, agent or
representative.

ARTICLE XII
AMENDMENTS

SECTION 12.01. These Bylaws may only be altered, amended or repealed by the majority
of the authorized voting shares represented by the delegates of Members at any regular or special
meeting, provided the notice of such meeting shall have contained a copy of the proposed,
alteration, amendment or repeal .

I, J. Tyler Carlson, Secretary of A RIZONA  EL ECTRIC POWER COOPERA TIVE,
INC., an Arizona nonprofit corporation, do hereby certify that the foregoing Bylaws were duly
adopted at a meeting of the Members of said corporation held on the 10'h day of May 2023, and
that the same do constitute the Bylaws of said corporation.

let Carlson, Secretary

May 10, 2023https://trc.azgrcoop/CREditing/PandG/Policies/AEPCO Bylaws - Finaldocx
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i. FRANCIS J. BYRNES SECRETARY UF THE ARIZONA CDRPDRATIDN COMMISSION

oo HERESY cz..2TIFy THAT the annexed is a true and complete copy of the ARTTGLES

_ @Eé; 1LOt ARIZONA ELECTRIC POWER COOPERATIVE, inc., which were filed

in the office of the Arizona Corporation Commission on the 20bh day of February,

1961, at 1oo p. H., as provided by law.

J

/
/

. /
. /

. /
1 /

/
/

/

/

I

/ r

. " /

./

HN `€%'I"H".N§*l'S§5 %'§§ERE@F, 1 HAVE HEREIJNTU
58T MY HAND AND AFFlXED THE DFFICIAL SEAL
UF THE ARIZONA CORPORATION commission. AT
THE CAPITOL» IN THE CITY DF PHDENIX, THIS 2  t
DAY UF Fe bru A. D. 1961

\ w""r ,.. .
. . - .

.. ; _.-J
1 ~ .4 ..4..
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ARIZGIEEA EL8GTRIC .gggg CGOP8ZR.4.TI"JE, INC.

W e, the undersigned, do hereby execute the within Articles for

the purpose of organizing a ceogerative, non-pxofit, reennbership coopera-

tive Chereinafizer eesigeateé as the "Ceoperative°} under the laws of the

State of arizona, pursuant to "An Aer: relating to electric, cooperative,

non-prcfit, membership curperatien," etc., epprasred Hatch 211, 1942 , and

lxrzown as the Electric Cooperative act.

1 .

The cane of the Ceopetative is érizene Electric Power Soeperative,

In c  •

I I  0

The address cf the principal office of the Cecperacive is W illcox,

Cochise County, Arizona, and such ether places in Cochise Ceuzxty, Piura

County, Graham county and Greentree Carty, Arizeoa, as the Board of Bir-

ectors may frenz time No time designate.

I I I  ¢

The names and addresses of the incorporators of the Cooperative

a r e :

w. B* Loving, 209 W. El Paso Avenue, Willcox, Arizona

Howard Helmets , Bunyan, Arizona2025 Relation Street,

Ernest V. Romney, Jr. Duncan, Arizona

A. o. Bicknell, 641 Calls Overdo, Tucson, Arizona

Junes F. Hcélulty, Jr. Yuma Drive , Bisbee, Arizona

iv A

The private property of the directors, members and incorporators

shall be exempt from corporate debts and the names and addresses of the

persons who shall constitute the first Board of Directors axe:
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289 s. 181 Paso Avenue,
St:.David, Arizona
W illcox, Arizona
Duncan, Arizona
Duncan, Arizona

J » 8 0 Kartehner,
W, B. Loving,
Larue Ailre8,
Ernest V. Rodney, Mr.
R. G. Buckelew,

Tucson, Arizona
Tucson, Arizona

Sells Star Route,
Box 263

641 Cable Lerdo,A. o. Bicknel l ,

8 Flu s

IN wrrzrsss WHEKEQF, we have set sir: hands mud affixed our seals
4/R

fzbis 8 y o f 1961.

w. B. Lovz1:G

. me@ <-©®¢/

I44»¢/

30434819 HELMERS

ERNEST v. Rummy, JR.

L

///4) _ . t4
A. 0. BIC8TELL

z .
/

TY, JR.
I

J/}8;83 F. rm.

STATE 08 AR1Z<N:A :
:  ss

coznrry GF COCHISE :

e B M t o 1961, before me, tire4
Go this, the 8_j'____¢1ay of

undersigned officer, personally appeared JAMES F. Fict¥ULTY, JR., and

w. B. LOWTING, known to me to be the persons whose names are subscribed to

the within instrzzzzient, and acknowledged that they executed the same for

the purpose therein contained.

In WT.T1~1ESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

4
Eotary public

1.5y coezmissialn expires :

3 4 /4 r 4 94
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o n  t h i s ,  t h e * 'in 4d a y  o f f  . . 7
1

s 1961,  before use,  the 1mder~=

signed afficcr, personally appeared Herman Haumzs, Inman to use to be the

person whose name is subscribe*ed to the within :I.natr1ment, and acknswleég-

ed that he executed the sis for the purpose therein cootaioeé.

IN WIT28BSS uzmmeev, I, hereunto set my hand and o f f i c i al  s eal .

/ .
- " / . . P

\ ~ -  x , . : / : ' ( ¢<
Rotary 9ublidMy commission expires:

/ ,  1 . 91 /4. // / ' 7 0/ / / 4

sw»8:~:  or  Anzzem
@17///74' ]/

C(.*38TY as s siawsa /

of
/ /7

, 1961, before one, the under-

:  s  s

the dayan this,

signed officer, personally appeared EBI'-3S'I' V. aam8y,, JR. , knlowwa to one to

be the perzmn whose name is su¥rs¢ri.bed to the within instnzsnent, and

acknowledged that he executed the same four the purpose therein con1:aine¢i~

IN wvsvsss WM8E8, I lrxereuntc set my hand ans! official seal.

W E
biotargr ?u`b1iezfsy commission 81qsirwa

/ '

SilAIE up ,axiom
s s

••

1

.
.coarmz of# PIMA

on this, the LE day cf 37-elt"~""7_____a 1961, before 1514 the

unziersigraeé officer, personally appeared s.. O. Bzazamu., known co we to

be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument, and

acknowledged that he executed the same for the purpose therein cantairneci.

HE w1n~1Ess ¥!BI§R_E<5E', I hereunto set my hand and o f f i c i a l  6 ¢ 8 1 »

Metmry Public .8My coaumissiazz expires.  :
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CORPORATION COMMISSION

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING

I, the undersigned Executive Director of the Arizona Corporation Commission do hereby certify that:

ARIZONA ELECTRIC POWER COOPERATIVE, INC.

ACC tile number: 00574189

was incorporated under the laws of the State of Arizona on 02/20/1961 ,

That all annual reports owed to date by said corporation have been tiled or delivered for filing. and all annual tiling fees
owed to date have been paid; and

That according to the records of the Arizona Corporation Commission, said corporation is in good standing in the State
of Arizona as of the dale this Certificate is issued.

This Certificate relates only to the legal existence of the above named entity as of the date this Certificate is issued, and
is not an endorsement. recommendation. or approval of the entitys condition, business activities, affairs, or practices.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. 1 have hereunto set my hand. aflixcd the official seal of the

Arizona Corporation Commission arid issued this Certificate on this date: 08/07/2024
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Douglas R. Clark, Executive Director

\.)
N b 44

195 of 252§ l710.50l.B.3 - Provide Evidence of Where Borrower is Registered to do Business



I I  IL o a n A licationAr izona 28 U45 A ache

§ 1710.501.B.4 - Copies of Borrower's Audited GAAP Financials for
the Past 1-3 Years

196 of 252§ l710.50l.B.4 - Copies of Borrower's Audited GAAP Financials for the Past 1-3 Years



I  IlArizona 28 U45 A ache L o an A lication

X

+
Z

Report of Independent Auditors and
Financial Statements

Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.

December 31, 2023 and 2022

MOSSADAMS@
i  I t 1-3 Years 197 of 252§ 171 0.50l.B.4 - Copies of Borrower's Audited



I  II L o an A licationArizona 28 U45 A ache

Table of Contents

Page

1Report of Independent Auditors

Financial Statements

4Balance Sheets

6Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Unallocated Accumulated Margins

7Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements 8

29

Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

198 o f  252§ l710.50l.B.4 - Copies of Borrower's Audited GAAP Financials for the Past 1-3 Years



I a  IAr izona 28 U45 A ache LoanA Plication

MOSSA_DAMS@

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors

Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.

Report on the Audit  of the Financial Statements

Op i n i o n

We have audited the f inancial statements of Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. (the

Cooperative), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31 2023 and 2022, and the

related statements of revenues, expenses, and unallocated accumulated margins, and cash f lows for
the years then ended, and the related notes to the f inancial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
f inancial position of Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and
the results of its operations and its cash f lows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Bas i s  fo r Op i n i o n

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (U.S. GAAS) and the standards applicable to f inancial audits contained in

Government Auditing Standards (Government Auditing Standards), issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the Cooperative and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in

accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is suff icient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Respons i b i l i t i es  o_fM anagem ent.fo r  the Fi nanc i al  Statem ents

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the f inancial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the

design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of f inancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Cooperative's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the f inancial statement

date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

1
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Aud i to r 's  Respons i b i l i t i es  fo r  the Aud i t  o f the Fi nanc i al  Statem ents

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute

assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. GAAS
and GovernmenfAuditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material it there is a substantial likelihood

that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the f inancial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the f inancial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Cooperative's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is

expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of signif icant

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Cooperatives ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Report ing Required by Governm ent Audi t ing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 29,
2024 on our consideration of Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, lnc.'s internal control over f inancial

reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over f inancial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, lnc.'s internal

control over f inancial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Arizona Electric Power

Cooperative, lnc.'s internal control over f inancial reporting and compliance.

LIP"WZ"74
Portland, Oregon

March 29, 2024

2
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Financial Statements
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Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Balance Sheets

December 31, 2023 and 2022

20222023
ASSETS

$$ 786452566
109956,714

760,693,194
29,504,407

UTILITY PLANT
Plant in service
Construction work in progress

896,409,280
475,040,123

790,197,601
458,520,050

Total utility plant
Less accumulated depreciation

421,369,157 331,677,551Utility plant, net

INVESTMENTS
Restricted
Unrestricted

6,968708
4238,986

7,169,808
3,827,067

Total investments 11,207,694 10,996,875

34,599,219
3,409,183

39211 237

31 ,279,858
2,717,707

66,246,451

31,147,334

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

General unrestricted
Restricted

Accounts receivable
Accumulated under-recovered fuel and purchased

power costs
Inventories, at average cost

Coal and natural gas
Materials and supplies

Prepayments and other current assets
Notes receivable

24471 ,866
16,303707

4,582,669
345,953

10,649,701
14,788,973

3,787,830
375,632

Total current assets 122923,834 160,993,486

DEFERRED DEBITS 51,619,914

Total assets $ 607,120,599

37,116,241

$ 540,784,153

See accompanying notes.
4
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Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Balance Sheets

December 31, 2023 and 2022

20222023

MEMBERSHI P CAPI TAL AND LI ABI LI TI ES

$$ 830

170,853,120

8 , 739869

930

179,278,276

3,198,527

MEMBERSHI P CAPI TAL

Membership fees
Patronage capi tal

Unalloc ated ac c umulated margins

179,593,819182,477,733Total membership capi tal

134783 , 087 139,093,621

2200 , 000

16,500,000

(371 ,801 )
1,100,409

69,799,931
12,948,819

(642,711 )

1,455,993

LONG- TERM D EBT

Federal Financ ing Bank

Solid W aste Disposal Revenue Bonds

Cooperative Finance Corporation

CoBank

Debt issuance costs

Financ ing lease obligation

218,345,119 15a,522,229Total longter m debt

36,606,003

884,627
15,307,627

29,069,038

2,390,262

58, 216

59,029,412

28,276,574

697, 519
15,036,954

55,654,507

2,388,009

76,758

6 6 0 0 0 0 0 0

CURRENT LI ABI LI TI ES
Member  advanc es and other  investments

Current matur i ties of  f inanc ing lease obligation
Current matur i ties of  long- term debt

Accounts payable

Accrued proper ty  and business taxes

Accrued interest

Line of credit

Ac c umulated over rec overed fuel and purc hase

power  c osts

Other  accrued liabi li ties

5,001 ,085

5,164,512

Total current liabi li ties

3,616,037

171 ,746,358153,510,782

DEFERRED CREDI TS AND OTHER LI ABI LI TI ES 52,786,965 30,921 ,747

$ 540784,153$ 507,120,599Total membership capital and liabilities

See accompanying notes.
5
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Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Unallocated Accumulated Margins

Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022

$$ 178,199,951
19,430,320

170,689,638
16328,145

OPERATING REVENUES
Electric energy and transmission

Members
Class A
Class D
Under-recovery of fuel and purchase

power costs
Nonmembers

Other, net

66500,800
25,473700

1 ,627,476

16,817,092
19975,329

1 ,207,020

291 ,232,247225,017,224Total operating revenues

125,650,389
5,126,849

83,744,895
5,460,376

14,560,835
4,760,365

74114,743
14,744,854
20,631 ,148
18,412,214
4,438,980

15695,815
5,316,448

49,718,797
14,666,729
21 ,823,322
16,817,582

4,199,608

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations:

Production
Transmission

Maintenance:
Production
Transmission

Other power supply
Administration and general
Depreciation, amortization and accretion
Wheeling and ancillary charges
Property and other taxes

282440,377Total operating expenses

OPERATING MARGIN 8791 870

217,443,572

7,573,652

(8,404442)
4029,317

Interest and interest related expenses, net
Other, net

(6,173424)
528,686

NET MARGIN 3,147,1323,198,527

UNALLOCATED ACCUMULATED MARGINS,
beginning of year

PATRONAGE CAPITAL ALLOCATION
8,739,869
(8,739,869)

9,649,968
(4,057,231 )

$ $3,198,527 8739,869UNALLOCATED ACCUMULATED MARGINS, end of year

See accompanying notes.
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Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022

3147,1323,198,527 $$

20631 .148
(348,226)

240

21 823323
(621 ,102)

240
20160,801

(39,134,231 )
(8,730,213)
(1 ,637,667)

265,031
(11 ,964,600)
30,440,026

64964

27,064,893
31 ,147,334

(15,336,899)
(794839)

(14,503,913)
(26,585469)

(18542)
5,001 ,085
1 550,728

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Margin
Adjustments to reconcile net margin to net cash from

operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Patronage capital allocations
Amortization of deferred charges
Liabilities fncurred on Asset Retirement Obligation
Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts and notes receivable
Accumulated underrecovered fuel and purchased power costs
inventories
Prepayments and other current assets
Deferred debits
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Accumulated overrecovered fuel and purchased power costs
Accrued property and business taxes and other 52086,167 794,104

(6,472292)Net cash from operating activities

(32,639,970)
179,337

(109,810,512)
95670

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Construction expenditures, net
Purchases and redemptions of investments, net

(109,714,842)Net cash from investing activities (32,460,633)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Member advances and other investments net
Proceeds from longterm debt
Borrowing on line of credit
Payments on long-term debt and financing lease obligation

8,329,429
72,845,619
(6,970,588)

(12,564948)

11,411 197
27,351 ,731
22,022396

(14,255568)

Net cash from financing activities

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS

61 ,639,512

4010837

33,997,565

38008402 $$

46,529,761

7,596836

26,400,729

33997,565

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Right of use assets acquired in exchange for lease liabilities $

$

2315439

8,385,900

5,806,201

6108,220

$

$Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized

See accompanying notes.
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Note 1 - Or gan ization

Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. (the Cooperative or AEPCO) is a member owned, nonprofit

Arizona rural generation and transmission electric cooperative organized in 1961 to provide wholesale
electric power and transmission and ancillary services to its member distribution cooperatives,

municipalities and other customers.

Membership of the Cooperative is restricted to electric utilities. The Cooperative has four classes of

members. Class A members consist of three distribution cooperatives with all requirements contracts and
three distribution cooperatives with partial requirements contracts. Currently there are no Class B or C

members. There are f ive Class D members, representing electric utilities other than Class A, B, or C, with
a written agreement for power and/or energy and/or substantial service, represented jointly by one
director. Class A, Class B, Class C, and Class D members are collectively referred to herein as Members.

Note 2 - Summary  o f Sign if ican t Accoun ting  Po l ic ies

Sys tem o f accounts - The Cooperative maintains its accounts in accordance with policies and
procedures as prescribed by the Rural Utilities Service (RUS) in conformity with the Uniform System of
Accounts. The Cooperative's accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America as applied in the case of regulated public utilities and are in accordance with
the accounting requirements and rate-making practices of the RUS and the Arizona Corporation
Commission (ACC), the regulatory authorities having jurisdiction.

Accounting for  the effec ts  o f regu lation -. Due to the regulation of its rates by the ACC, the

Cooperative prepares its f inancial statements in accordance with ASC 980 Regulated Operations. This
accounting requires a cost-based, regulated enterprise to recognize revenues and expenses in the time
periods when the revenues and expenses are included in rates. This may result in regulatory assets and

liabilities until such time that the related revenues and expenses are included in rates.

Indenture - As of March 1, 2016, AEPCO has an Indenture of Deed of Trust, Security Agreement and

Financing Statement (Indenture), approved by RUS that will allow the Cooperative to explore alternative
f inancing providers in addition to RUS. The indenture consolidates all of AEPCO's secured debt under

one trustee, who will manage the debt portfolio for RUS, reducing RUS reporting requirements, while still
maintaining RUS oversight.

Utility plant - Utility plant, consisting primarily of coal and natural gas electric generation facilities and
transmission facilities, is stated at historical cost and includes the costs of outside contractors, direct labor
and materials, allocable overhead and interest charged during construction.

In accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts, the Cooperative capitalizes the interest costs

associated with the borrowing of funds used to f inance construction work in progress (CWIP). Interest
income from construction funds held in trust, if any, is credited to CWIP. Interest costs capitalized on

construction projects was approximately $3,088,000 and $231 ,000 for 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of depreciable property in
accordance with rates prescribed by RUS, averaging 2.56% and 2.60% in 202s and 2022, respectively.
Minor replacements and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. When utility plant is retired, sold, or
otherwise disposed of, the original cost plus the cost of removal less salvage value is charged to
accumulated depreciation, along with any corresponding gain or loss.

The Cooperative assesses its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the fair value is less than the
carrying amount of the asset, a loss is recognized for the difference. The Cooperative has not recorded
any losses resulting from impairment of its long-lived assets.

Asset retirement obligations - Accounting standards require the recognition of an Asset Retirement
Obligation (ARO), measured at estimated fair value, for legal obligations related to decommissioning and
restoration costs associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets in the period in which the
liability is incurred. The initial capitalized asset retirement costs are depreciated over the life of the related
asset, with accretion of the ARO liability classified as an operating expense (see Note 10 - Asset
retirement obligation).

Investments - The Cooperative accounts for its investments in accordance with accounting for certain
investments in debt and equity securities. At December 31, 2023 and 2022, all investment balances are
recorded at fair market value (see Note 3), with the exception of investments in associated organizations
and patronage capital. Investments in associated organizations and patronage capital are carried at cost,
plus capital credits allocated and not retired.

Cash equivalents - The Cooperative considers all investments with an original maturity of 90 days or
less to be cash equivalents. The Cooperative maintains its cash in bank accounts, which, at times,
exceed federally insured limits and has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Restricted cash
consists of special deposits and economic development funds, which are restricted in use.

Receivables - Receivables are recorded when invoices are issued and are written off when they are
determined to be uncollectible. The allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated based on historical
losses, review of specific problem accounts, the existing economic conditions in the industry and the
financial stability of customers. Generally, accounts receivable are considered past due after 30 days. No
allowance was deemed necessary at December 31 , 2023 and 2022.

Inventories -. Inventories consisting of coal, natural gas and materials and supplies, are carried at
average cost.

Deferred debits and credits .- Deferred debits and credits are recorded at cost and either: (1) amortized
over their expected period of benefit or alternate period of time as may be mandated by ACC order or
other regulatory order, if different, or (2) eliminated upon determination of their ultimate disposition.

Debt issuance costs - Debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability are presented on the
balance sheet as a direct reduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability. These costs are
amortized to interest expense over the life of the related debt using the effective interest method. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the total debt issuance costs net of debt was $642,711 and $371 ,801 ,
respectively.

9
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Overhau l costs - The Cooperative accounts for major and minor overhauls using the deferral method.
Accordingly, incurred overhaul costs are deferred and amortized over the overhaul benefit period,

generally three years for minor overhauls and six years for major overhauls. The frequency of overhauls
is based on the operating characteristics and operating profiles of each generating unit (see Note 7).

Leases - The Cooperative determines whether the arrangement is or contains a lease at inception.
Operating and f inance leases will be recognized on the balance sheets as rightof-use (ROU) assets and

lease liabilities. ROU assets represent the Cooperative's right to use an underlying asset for the lease
term and lease liabilities represent the Cooperative's obligation to make lease payments arising from the
lease. Lease liabilities and their corresponding ROU assets are recorded based on the present value of

lease payments over the expected remaining lease term. For this purpose, the Cooperative considers
only payments that are f ixed and determinable at the time of commencement. The lease ROU assets also

include any lease payments made and adjustments for prepayments and lease incentives. The interest

rate implicit in lease contracts is typically not readily determinable. As a result, the Cooperative will utilize
a weighted average cost of capital rate, as permitted by Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 842 - Leases. Lease terms may include options to
extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Cooperative will exercise that option.

Income tax  s tatus - The Cooperative is exempt from income taxes under the provisions of

Section 501 (c)(12) of the Internal Revenue Code, except to the extent of unrelated business income, if
any. The Cooperative follows FASB ASC 740-10, relating to accounting for uncertain tax positions. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Cooperative does not have any uncertain tax positions. The

Cooperative f iles an exempt organization and unrelated business income tax return in the U.S. federal
jurisdiction and the states of Arizona and California. Based upon its equity membership in ACES (see

Note 3), returns are filed with the states of Arkansas, Georgia, Indiana, Maryland, Minnesota and North
Carolina.

Revenue recognition .-. Revenues are recognized as electric power, electric transmission and other
energy service products and are delivered at rates approved by the ACC. The Cooperative recognizes

operating revenues from wholesale electricity sales and electricity transmission services in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Cooperative expects to be entitled in exchange for those sales

and services.

The Cooperative supplies power requirements (energy and demand) to its Members, subject to

substantially identical wholesale power contracts. The Cooperative also supplies power (energy and
demand) to Nonmembers subject to wholesale power contracts. Class A Member revenue is recorded at

either ACC authorized rates or contractual rates and Class D Member and Nonmember revenue is
generally recorded at contractual rates. Based on the invoice practical expedient, revenue is recognized
equal to the amount the Cooperative has the right to invoice. The Cooperative bills its Members monthly,

and payments are due monthly. Substantially all of the Cooperative's accounts receivable relate to
revenues under its contracts with Members and Non-members.
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Purchased power and fuel costs ... Purchased power and fuel costs are charged to expense as
incurred. In its October 25, 2013 rate order, the ACC approved a new purchased power and fuel cost
adjustor (the adjustor) for the Cooperative. Starting on November 1, 2018, the new adjustor enables the
Cooperative to accumulate its over and undercollection of fuel and purchased power costs and
subsequently, as approved by the ACC, refund or collect from its Members the amount of over or
undercollection of fuel and purchased power costs. Such amounts are recorded as revenue in the period
the costs are incurred.

Fair value of financial instruments - All of the Cooperatives financial instruments are recorded at fair
market value or carrying value, which approximates fair market value. Investments in associated
organizations and patronage capital are not considered financial instruments because they represent
nontransferable interests in associated organizations. The Cooperative has determined that its financial
instruments fall into the Level 1 category. Level 1 asset valuations are based on assets at the quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets, Level 2 asset valuations are based on quoted prices in
markets that are not active or for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly,
and Level 3 asset valuations are based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair
value measurement (see Note 3).

Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Significant estimates include the adjustor, depreciation, asset retirement obligation and overhaul
amortization. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Recently issued and adopted accounting pronouncements - The Cooperative adopted FASB
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 201613 Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, which replaces the incurred loss methodology
with an expected loss methodology that is referred to as the current loss (CECL) methodology. The
measurement of expected credit losses under the CECL methodology is applicable to financial assets
measured at amortized cost, including trade receivables and held-to-maturity debt securities. The
Cooperative adopted the standard on January 1, 2023, utilizing the modified retrospective transition
approach. This standard did not have a material impact on the financial statements.

Subsequent events - Accounting standards require disclosure of the date through which subsequent
events have been evaluated, as well as whether the date is the date the financial statements were issued
or the date the financial statements were available to be issued. The Cooperative has evaluated
subsequent events through March 29, 2024, the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.
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Note 3 - Inves tmen ts

Investments at December 31 consist of the following:

$$Restricted - municipal bonds
Restricted - term certif icates
Investment in associated organizations
Patronage capital
Other

2023
2,809,686
4,219,022
1 ,310,968
2,291 ,639

636,379

2022
2,950,786
4,278,022
1 ,312,768
2,022,545

491 ,754

11 ,267,694
60,000

11 ,050,875
54,000

Subtotal
Less current portion of restricted investments

$ 10,996,875Total $ 11 ,207,694

Contractual maturities of restricted investments at December 31 are as follows:

$$
2022
2,896,786
4,327,022

2023
2,809,686
4,219,022

Due from one year to five years
Due after 10 years

Total $$ 7,028,708 7,223808

Munic ipal bonds - As a condition of National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation's (CFC)
guarantee of the Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds (see Note 8), the Cooperative purchased a
noninterest bearing Debt Service Reserve Certif icate (the certif icate) maturing in 2024 upon f inal

payment of the debt. The proceeds of the certif icate are held by CFC in a Debt Service Reserve Fund

(DSRF). At December 31, 2023, the investment included two municipal bonds for approximately
$1 ,054,000, which bear interest at 5% per annum, respectively and cash of approximately $1 ,755,000. At

December 31, 2022, the investment included three municipal bonds for approximately $2,873,000, which

bear interest at 5% per annum, respectively and cash of approximately $77,000.

Municipal bonds are valued based on quoted market prices for those or similar investments.

Term cer tif icates - The Cooperative is a member of CFC, a notforprofit cooperative financing
institution. As a condition of membership, the Cooperative purchased Subscription Capital Term
Certif icates (SCTCs). The SCTCs, totaling $4,093,022 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively,

bear interest at 5.00% per annum and have maturity dates ranging from 2070 to 2080.

As a condition of the Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds (see Note 8), which are guaranteed by CFC,
the Cooperative purchased a Subordinated Term Certif icate (STC). The STC, totaling $126,000 and

$183,000 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, bears interest at 7.57% per annum and matures
in full in 2024 upon final payment of the related debt. At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the current portion

of the STC loan guarantee valued at $60,000 and $54,000, respectively, is recorded in current assets as

an accounts receivable.

The SCTCs and STCs are unrated, uncollateralized debt securities of CFC.

12

210 of 252§ l710.50l.B .4 - Cop ies  o f Bor rower 's  Aud ited  GAAP Financ ials  fo r  the Pas t 1-3 Years



I t IArizona 28 U45 A ache LoanA lication

Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Investment in associated organizations - The Cooperative is a member of Sierra. The Cooperative's
membership fee in Sierra was $2,000 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and is carried at
cost. The Cooperative's investment in Sierra was $72,000 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, and is carried at cost (see Note 16).

The Cooperative is an equity member of Alliance for Cooperative Energy Services Power Marketing LLC
(ACES). The Cooperative's investment in ACES was $961 ,610 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, and is accounted for under the cost method of accounting.

The Cooperative invested in the capital of Grand Canyon State Electric Cooperative Association
(GCSECA), which is accounted for under the cost method of accounting. The Cooperative's investment in
GCSECA was $275,358 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Cooperative is a member of CoBank AFB (CoBank). The membership fee is $1 ,000 and is carried at
cost.

The Cooperative is a member of CFC. The membership fee is $1 ,000 and is carried at cost.

The Cooperative holds investments made in the Board of Directors deferred compensation plan program
in Homestead Funds (see Note 5 - Deferred Compensation Plans). The balance in the account at
December 31, 2023 and 2022 was $491 ,754 and $500,084, respectively, and is carried at fair market
value.

Patronage capital - Patronage capital represents capital credit allocation of margins due to the
Cooperative. Such amounts are returned to the Cooperative in accordance with the associated
organization's bylaws and/or at their discretion.

Note 4 - Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents at December 31 consist of the following:

2023 2022

$$ 510,992
2,206,715

547,567
2,861 ,616

Rural economic development revolving loan program
Other deposits on account

$$ 3,409,183 2,717,707Total restricted cash and cash equivalents
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Note 5 - Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable at December 31 consist of the following :

20222023

$35 42,502,689
1 ,880,804

11 ,399,923

Member energy sales
Electric transmission sales
Nonmember energy sales
Due from related party
Other 10,463,035

17,263,588
1 ,891 ,872

13,220,563
510,825

6,324,389

Total accounts receivable $ 66,246,451$ 39,211,237

Member energy sales - Member energy sales consist of sales to Members under their wholesale power
sales contracts (see Note 11) and generally are not collateralized.

Electric transmission sales - Electric transmission sales consist of sales to Members and
Non-members under transmission service agreements (see Note 11) and are generally not collateralized.

Non-member energy sales - Nonmember energy sales consist of nonfirm sales to unrelated electric
utilities and are generally not collateralized.

Note 6 - Notes and Other Receivables

Related-party promissory notes .- The Cooperative replaced the balance of the shortterm note to
Sierra to finance construction of solar photovoltaic distributed generation facilities with two promissory
notes (see Note 16). Each note between Sierra and AEPCO has an annual interest rate of 3.00% and a
term of 25 years. The combined notes receivable was $1 ,074,502 and $1 ,145,542 as of December 31 ,
2023 and 2022, respectively.

RUS Rural Economic Development Grant .- In 1998, the Cooperative was awarded a $400,000 RUS
Rural Economic Development Grant. The Cooperative contributed matching funds in the amount of
$80,000. In 2020, the Cooperative was awarded an additional $182,213 RUS Rural Economic
Development Grant. In accordance with grant guidelines, initial loans made to qualifying recipients at a
zerointerest rate were repaid over a ten-year period. The loan repayments were used to establish a
revolving loan fund, which in turn, is used for providing loans to foster rural economic development. Loans
made from repayments of the initial loans may carry an interest rate. In November 2010, March 2012,
June 2015, March 2017, and February 2020, the Cooperative issued loans in the amount of $800000,
$80,000, $280,000, $100,000, and $360,000, respectively, at an interest rate of 3.00%. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Cooperative has $547,567 and $510,992, respectively, of cash and
cash equivalents restricted for use in this program (see Note 4).
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Note 7 - Defer r ed  Deb its

Deferred debits at December 31 consist of the following:

20222023

$ $17,566,204
30,487,919

3565791

9,931 ,224
23,070,643

4,1 14,374

Deferred overhaul costs
Preliminary survey and investigation and other deferred debits
RS plan prepayment (See Note 14)

Total deferred debits $ 51,619,914 $ 37,116,241

Defer red overhaul cos ts - The Cooperative accrues for overhaul costs on the generation equipment by

charging a proportion of the estimated cost of the overhaul, over the period covered by the overhaul

cycle, to maintenance expense.

Preliminary  surveys investigation - Deferred preliminary survey and investigation costs are capitalized
to construction in progress when the construction phase begins or expensed if the project is abandoned.

Note 8 - Long-Ter m Deb t

Federal Financ ing Bank (FFB) - Longterm debt due to FFB is payable at interest rates based on

longterm obligations of the United States Government as determined on the date of advance. Interest
rates on existing FFB debt ranged from 0.645% to 4.88% in 2023 and 2022. Quarterly principal and

interest installments on these obligations extend through 2035. The obligations are guaranteed by RUS.

The Cooperative may prepay all outstanding notes by paying the principal amount plus either 1) the
difference between the outstanding principal balance of the loan being refinanced and the present value
of the loan discounted at a rate equal to the then current cost of funds to the Department of the Treasury

for obligations of comparable maturity, 2) 100% of the amount of interest tor one year on the outstanding
principal balance of the loan being refinanced multiplied by the ratio of a) number of quarterly payment

dates remaining to maturity bears to b) number of quarterly payment dates between year 13 of the loan
and the maturity date, or 3) present value of 100% of the amount of interest for one year on the
outstanding principal balance of the loan.

Solid  Was te Disposal Revenue bonds -. These bonds are repriced and sold semi-annually at six month
intervals, on March 1st and September 1st, and AEPCO has the option to redeem at each repricing.

Principal on these bonds is due in annual installments through 2024. Interest rates on the bonds are

variable and subject to revision semiannually. The interest rates in effect at December 31, 2023 and 2022

were 4.375% and 3.30%, respectively. Interest is paid semiannually. These bonds are guaranteed by
CFC and are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity.
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Cooperative Finance Corporation - On November 9, 2022, the Cooperative entered into a longterm
bridge loan debt agreement with CFC to fund new generation. The loan is subject to a variable interest

rate that is established monthly and effective on the first day of each month. There was a $57,851 ,112
and $16,500,000 outstanding balance as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The average

variable interest rate in effect at December 31, 2023 and 2022 was 7.01% and 5.75°/0, respectively.
Quarterly principal and interest payments on these obligations extend through 2027. The variable interest

rate on the debt is convertible to a fixed rate. The fixed rate would be equal to the rate of interest offered
by CFC at the time of the conversion request. The Cooperative may prepay f ixed rate notes in whole or in
part, subject to a prepayment premium prescribed by CFC. As of December 31, 2023, the loan is interest

only and no long-term maturities have been established.

On November 1, 2023, the Cooperative entered into a new five-year unsecured non-revolving bridge

Loan debt agreement with CFC to fund additional generation projects. The interest rate on advances is

calculated at a rate per annum as may be f ixed by CFC from time to time or in the case of a Secured

Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) advance, at a f ixed rate per annum equal to Adjusted Term SOFR plus
the Applicable Margin. There was a $1 1 ,948,819 outstanding balance as of December 31, 2023. The

interest rate on this line of credit notes averaged 6.46% as of December 31, 2023. Both bridge loans may
be converted to permanent f inancing with the bank or RUS without penalty. As of December 31, 2023, the
loan is interest only and no long-term maturities have been established.

CoBank - On November 1, 2023, the Cooperative entered into a fiveyear unsecured non-revolving
bridge Loan debt agreement with CoBank to fund additional generation projects. The interest rate on

advances is calculated at a variable or f ixed rate per annum as may be determined by CoBank from time
to time or in the case of a SOFR advance, at a f ixed rate per annum equal to Adjusted Term SOFR plus

the Applicable Margin. Subject to certain limitations, rates types may be converted. There was a
$12,948,819 outstanding balance as of December 31, 2023. The interest rate on this line of credit notes

averaged 6.626% as of December 31, 2023. The bridge loan may be converted to permanent f inancing
with the bank or RUS without penalty. As of December 31, 2023, the loan is interest only and no long-

term maturities have been established.

Matur ities  o f long-term debt - Maturities of long-term debt, excluding CoBank for $12,948,819 and CFC

for $69,799,831, for the next f ive years and thereafter are as follows as of December 31, 2023:

$2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
Thereafter

14,853,029
11 ,452,952
11 ,750,755
12,034,960
12,381 ,801
86,974,506

33 149,448,003Total long-term debt, net
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On March 1, 2016, AEPCO replaced the RUS Mortgage with the Indenture, pursuant to which AEPCO
has granted a lien and a security interest in substantially all of its real and personal property to secure
current indebtedness and other obligations and to secure other indebtedness (see Note 2 - Indenture). In
connection with the adoption of the Indenture as a replacement for the RUS Mortgage, AEPCO and RUS
amended and restated the existing loan contracts as the Amended and Restated Loan Contract
(Contract), dated March 1, 2016 between AEPCO and the Government acting by and through the
Administrator of the RUS. Under the covenants of the Contract, the Cooperative must, among other
things, maintain a credit rating from at least h/vo rating agencies and comply with covenants in the
Indenture, which includes establishment and collection of rates for the use or sale of output, capacity, or
service of the system that together with other revenues available to the Cooperative are reasonably
expected to yield margins for interest equal to at least 1.10 times secured interest charges. Management
believes these financial covenants have been achieved as of December 31, 2023.

Note 9 - Member Advances and Other Investments

Member investment program .- The Cooperative offers all Members the ability to invest funds with the
Cooperative on a shortterm basis for periods of up to nine months. The Cooperative had recorded
liabilities for notes of $11 ,463,814 and $10,000,000 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The
interest rate on these notes averaged 5.298% and 1.519% in 2023 and 2022, respectively. Interest
expense on these notes was approximately $97,000 and $218,000 for the years ended December 31 ,
2023 and 2022, respectively.

Prepaid billing program - The Cooperative also offers a program for all Members whereby the Members
may make interest-bearing prepayments of their monthly power and transmission billings. The
prepayment and accrued interest are applied to the Members' power and transmission billings on the date
such billings become due. The Cooperative recorded no liabilities for prepayments at December 31, 2023
and 2022.

Southwest Public Power Agency - The Cooperative entered into an Energy Management Services
Agreement (Agreement) with Southwest Public Power Agency (SPPA), a Class D member of AEPCO, on
March 31, 2015, to provide accounting, reporting, scheduling, selling, purchasing, and gas hedging
services with respect to the energy available to SPPA under the Agreement. To enable AEPCO to
provide credit services necessary to this Agreement, SPPA has provided a deposit to AEPCO in the
amount of $1 ,000,000, which AEPCO has placed and will maintain in an interest bearing account
separate from other sources. SPPA is entitled to all interest that accumulates in the deposit account. The
balance in the deposit account was $1 ,143,390 and $1 ,087,383 for the years ended December 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively.
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Metropolitan Water District of Southern California - The Cooperative entered into a Scheduling and
Trading Sen/ices Agreement (Agreement) with the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California
(MWD), a class D member of AEPCO, on August 28, 2017, to provide accounting, reporting, scheduling,
selling, and purchasing services as defined in the agreement through December 31, 2035, unless
terminated under provisions within the agreement. To enable AEPCO to provide credit services
necessary to this Agreement, MWD has provided a deposit to AEPCO in the amount of $1 ,000,000
which AEPCO has placed and will maintain in an interest bearing account separate from other sources.
MWD is entitled to all interest that accumulates in the deposit account. The balance in the deposit
account was $24,767,129 and $12,486,297 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

Note 10 - Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities

Deferred credits at December 31 consist of the following:

2023 2022

$ 26,663,501
4,076,033

182,218

$ 48,445,926
4,158,826

182,213

Asset retirement obligation
Regulatory liability - ARO
Pension distribution liability

Total deferred credits and other liabilities $ 30,921,747$ 52,786,965

Asset retirement obligation - The Cooperative completed the ARO calculation for the Apache Station
Generation Plant in Cochise, Arizona, with the assumption that the assets will be in service through the
year 2035. The useful life expectations used in the calculations of the ARO are based on the assumption
that operations will continue without deviation from historical trends.

The asset retirement obligation related to generation assets at December 31 consists of the following:

20222023

$$ 25,519476
1,144,025

Liability at January 1
Decommission expense recognized
Liabilities incurred

26,663,501
1,621 ,624

20,160,801

$ 48,445,926 $ 26663,501Liability at December 31
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The regulatory liability related to the asset retirement obligation calculation at December 31 consists of
the following :

2023 2022

$$ 3,846,346
1,978,704

(1 ,749,017)

Liability at January 1
Estimated recovery
Less accretion & depreciation expense

4,076,033
107,003
(24,210)

$ $ 4,076,0334,158,826Liability at December 31

Note 11 - Commitments  and  Con tingenc ies

Class  A Member  power  sales  contrac ts  - Wholesale power  sales  contrac ts - The Cooperatve holds
allrequirements wholesale power sales contracts with three of its six Class A member cooperatives
pursuant to which each Class A member agrees to purchase from the Cooperative all of its electric power

requirements. These all-requirements power contracts expire December 31, 2035, and will remain in
effect thereafter until terminated by either party upon six months' notice. Management believes the
Cooperative will be able to fulfill its requirements on these longterm contracts.

Class  A Member  power  sales  contrac ts  - Par tial requ irements  who lesale power  contrac ts - The
Cooperative holds partial requirements wholesale power sales contracts, expiring December 31, 2035,

with three of its Class A member cooperatives pursuant to which the Class A members have agreed to

purchase from the Cooperative electric energy up to and capacity at the member's allocated capacity

percentage in the Cooperative's total resources existing at the time of execution of the contract.

Class  A Member  network  serv ice agreements - The Cooperative has agreements to provide network

integration transmission service to deliver power to the allrequirements Class A distribution cooperative
members. The Cooperative previously entered into separate agreements to provide network integration

and point-to-point transmission services to the partial requirements Class A members. These agreements
had a termination date of December 31, 2035. In 2023, the Cooperative and its Class A Members
amended these agreements and extended the initial term to December 31, 2052, with the term

automatically renewing for four successive additional 5year renewal periods and a termination date on

December 31, 2072, absent any nonrenewals. In the opinion of management, the Cooperative will be
able to provide service in accordance with these agreements.

Class  B and Class  C Member  power  sales  contrac ts - There are no Class B or C member contracts at
December 31 , 2023.

Class D Member  serv ice contrac ts - Class D membership requires the Member to enter into a service

contract for a minimum term of 2 years. The service contracts with each Cooperative's Class D members
are renewed annually until terminated by either party upon a six months written notice. At December 31 ,
2023, the Cooperative had five Class D members.

Non-member  power  and serv ices  agreements - The Cooperative holds one non-member power and
service agreement.
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Wholesale power  purchase contrac ts - The Cooperative's current power supply includes the following
purchase power agreements:

Hydroelectric power purchases from Western Area Power Administration (Western), a federal
power marketing agency. Under the terms of its Salt Lake City Integrated Project (formerly

Colorado River Storage Project) contract, which expires September 30, 2024, the Cooperative can

receive up to 2.4 MW during October through March, and up to 11.7 MW during April through
September, for service to its Class A members. Additionally, under the terms of a contract with the

Parker Davis Project, which expires September 30, 2028, the Cooperative receives 18.3 MW
during October through February, and 23.6 MW during March through September. Hoover (Boulder
Canyon Project) hydroelectric power purchase from Arizona Power Authority and Western of

approximately 4 MW each month October 2017-September 30, 2067.

. Power purchase agreement with Salt River Project to purchase up to 15 MW capacity and energy
at a maximum of 44% capacity factor per month and priced at less than the market price for Peak

Hours with a term to begin in January 2016 and ending 20 years thereafter. Beginning January
2017 through the remaining term of the contract, 1.755 MW will be allocated to Navopache Electric

Cooperative.

Solar  serv ices agreements - The Cooperative's current power supply includes the following solar

services agreements:

Solar services agreement with Sierra to purchase up to 20 MW alternating current electricity at a
maximum of 100% capacity factor per month with a term to begin on October 10, 2017 and ending

on October 9, 2026. Unless either party provides ninety days written notice of intent not to renew,
the agreement shall be renewed for additional f ive year terms provided no renewal term extends

beyond the termination date of the corresponding interconnection agreement.

Solar services agreement with Sierra to purchase up to 2 MW alternating current electricity at a
maximum of 100% capacity factor per month with a term to begin on August 17, 2017 and ending
on August 16, 2026. Unless either party provides ninety days written notice of intent not to renew,

the agreement shall be renewed for additional f ive year terms provided no renewal term extends

beyond the termination date of the corresponding interconnection agreement.

Solar services agreement with Sierra to purchase up to 1.35 MW alternating current electricity at a
maximum of 100% capacity factor per month and the capacity from a 2 MW/ 4 MWh battery energy
storage system with a term to begin on December 9, 2020 and ending on December 8, 2027.

Unless either party provides ninety days written notice of intent not to renew, the agreement shall

be renewed for additional f ive year terms provided no renewal term extends beyond the termination

date of the corresponding interconnection agreement.

. Energy storage services agreement with Sierra to purchase the capacity from a 2.4 MW/ 5.2 MWh

battery energy storage system with a term to begin on October 25, 2022 and ending on October

24, 2027. Unless either party provides ninety days written notice of intent not to renew, the
agreement shall be renewed for additional f ive year terms provided no renewal term extends

beyond the termination date of the corresponding interconnection agreement.
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Wholesale transmission contracts - The Cooperative holds three separate pointto~point transmission
agreements to provide point-to-point transmission services for delivering to other Southwest Reserve
Sharing Group (SRSG) members under the SRSG Agreement and for the Joint Generation Contingency
Reserve Plan (N1 Plan). The first agreement provides for reserved transmission capacity of 30 MW for
delivery of energy to other SRSG participants, the second agreement provides for reserved transmission
capacity of 175 MW for the receipt of energy from other SRSG participants in the event of a loss of
Apache generation, and the third agreement provides for resewed transmission capacity of 1 10 MW as
established in the N-1 Plan. Each of these agreements, which renew annually, are expected to remain in
effect for the term of the Members' network service agreements. In the opinion of Management, the
Cooperative will be able to provide service in accordance with these agreements.

Other transmission serv ice agreements - The Cooperative provides separate transmission service
agreements (Point~to-point and Network Integration) with other entities in accordance with the
Cooperative's Open Access Transmission Tariff (OATT) or other preOATT agreements. These other
transmission service agreements provide for reserved transmission capacity and will remain in effect in
accordance with each respective service agreement. In the opinion of Management, the Cooperative will
be able to provide service in accordance with these agreements.

Transmission wheeling agreements - The Cooperative purchases transmission wheeling rights from
other entities. There are currently six (five with Western Area Power Administration - Desert Southwest
Region and one with Southern California Edison) transmission wheeling agreements under which the
Cooperative purchases transmission to provide for deliveries to AEPCO's Class A members loads. There
are currently five wheeling agreements (one with Western Areas Power Administration - Desert
Southwest Region, two with El Paso Electric, one with Tucson Electric Power, and one with Salt River
Project) under which the Cooperative moves power from market hubs into the Cooperative's service area.
These transmission wheeling agreements expire at various times and may include associated roll-over
rights.

Rate filing application - transmission - On September 1, 2021 the Cooperative filed an application
with the Commission to determine the fair value of its property for ratemaking purposes, to fix a just and
reasonable return thereon, and to approve rates designed to develop such return. The Cooperative also
requested the continuance of its purchased power and fuel cost adjustor (PPFAC) and environmental
cost adjustment rider (ECAR), the approval of updated depreciation rates, and a new Transmission
Adjustor (TA) and Plan of Administration. On May 9, 2023, the ACC issued a decision approving the
Cooperative's application, authorizing new rate tariffs, depreciation rates, PPFAC, and transmission
adjuster, all of which became effective on July 1, 2023.
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Fuel procurement contracts - Coal supply agreements - To ensure an adequate fuel supply, the
Cooperative enters into various longterm fuel contracts. At December 31, 2023 and 2022, these
contracts consist of:

. A 60month agreement that originally required the Cooperative to purchase approximately
3,220,000 tons of coal during the term of the agreement. The agreement has since been amended
to replace the term of the agreement with January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2024 and limit
the remaining base tonnage obligation to 1,060,000 tons effective January 1, 2016. The
amendment further limits the purchase and delivery of coal to approximately 176,000 tons in 2017,
153,000 tons in year 2018, 221 ,000 tons in 2019, and 92,060 tons in year 2020. A new amendment
signed in year 2020 includes a quantity of 125,000 tons to be purchased in year 2021 with an
optional tonnage quantity of 75,000 tons to be purchased in year 2021. A new amendment signed
in 2021 includes a quantity of 235,000 tons to be purchased in year 2022 with an optional tonnage
quantity of 83,000 tons to be purchased in year 2022. A new amendment signed in 2022 includes a
quantity of 300,000 tons to be purchased in year 2023, and a quantity of 257,000 tons to be
purchased in year 2024 with an optional tonnage quantity of 43,000 tons to be purchased in year
2024.

. A 7month agreement for 85,000 tons to be delivered in year 2020 and an amendment to this
agreement extending the term for another 12 months thru 2021, adding an additional 187,500 tons
of coal to be delivered through 2021. A new amendment signed in year 2021 includes a quantity of
240,000 tons to be purchased in year 2022 with an optional tonnage quantity of 70,000 tons to be
purchased in the year 2022. A new amendment signed in year 2022 includes a quantity of 300,000
tons to be purchased in year 2023 and a quantity of 257,000 tons to be purchased in the year 2024
with an optional tonnage quantity of 43,000 tons to be purchased in the year 2024.

Coal railcar lease agreements - To provide for the shipment of the coal supply, the Cooperative entered
into lease agreements for the lease of coal railcar trainsets (see Note 15 - Coal railcar trainsets).

Coal railcar maintenance agreement - The Cooperative entered into railcar management services
agreement, effective January 1, 201 s, for the maintenance of the coal railcar trainset leased under the
20year lease agreement (see Note 15 - Coal railcar trainsets). The term of the original maintenance
agreement was extended to December 31 , 2025.

Collective bargaining agreement - Approximately 33% of the personnel employed by the Cooperatives
work force are subject to a collective bargaining agreement. The Cooperative entered into a fiveyear
collective bargaining agreement effective March 1, 2023 through February 28, 2026.

Letters of credit - A letter of credit in the amount of $800,000 was obtained by the Cooperative from
CFC for the purpose of providing credit support for a power purchase agreement with Salt River Project
Agricultural Improvement and Power District (SRP). The letter of credit was issued to SRP on
December 1, 2015, and was renewed during 2023. The agreement will expire on December 31, 2024.
The interest rate, if draws were to occur, will be equal to a fixed rate set by CFC, not to exceed the
Prevailing Bank Prime Rate, as published in the Money Rates column of The Wall Street Journal, plus
one percent per annum. As a condition of the letter of credit, the Cooperative is required to remain in
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Indenture and Contract (see Note 2 and Note 8).
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Lines of c red it .-. On June 5, 2014, the Cooperative entered into a f iveyear committed unsecured line of

credit agreement with CFC for $50,000,000. On July 20, 2022, the Cooperative increased the unsecured

commitment to $75,000,000 and extended the agreement to July 2027. The interest rate on advances will
be calculated at a rate per annum as may be f ixed by CFC from time to time or in the case of a SOFT

advance, at a f ixed rate per annum equal to Adjusted Term SOFR plus the Applicable Margin. There was
a $30,000,000 outstanding balance as of December 31, 2022 and a $33,000000 balance outstanding as

of December 31, 2023. The interest rate on this line of credit notes averaged 6.46% and 5.42% as of
December 31, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

On August 21, 2014, the Cooperative entered into a f iveyear committed unsecured line of credit

agreement with CoBank for $50,000,000. On July 20, 2022, the Cooperative increased the unsecured
commitment to $75,000,000 and extended the agreement to July 2027. The interest rate on advances will

be calculated at a Base Rate Option, at a rate per annum equal to the Base Rate plus the Applicable

Margin, or in the case of a Term SOFR Option, at a f ixed rate per annum equal to Adjusted Term SOFR

plus the Applicable Margin. There was a $29,029,412 outstanding balance as of December 31, 2023, and
a $33,000,000 outstanding balance as of December 31, 2022. The interest rate on this line of credit

averaged 6.63% and 5.44% as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Financ ing leases - Financing lease property and the related liabilities are in substance asset purchases.
Assets and liabilities under f inancing leases are recorded at the lesser of the present value of the
minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets. The assets are amortized over their related lease
terms or their estimated useful lives, whichever is less.

On January 28, 2013, the Cooperative entered into a master lease agreement for the lease of
substantially all of the Cooperative's vehicles. Individual lease schedules underlying the master lease

agreement are entered into as individual vehicles are delivered. Each lease schedule includes a
description of the vehicle. the lease term and the monthly rental and other payments due with respect to

the vehicle. The term for each vehicle begins on the date each vehicle is delivered and continues as
described in the individual schedule.

Computer  equ ipment .- The Cooperative entered into master lease agreements for the lease of
substantially all the Cooperative's personal computers and peripheral equipment. Individual certif icates of

acceptance (COAs) underlying the master lease agreements are entered into as groups of computers
and equipment are delivered. The terms of the COAs are for up to six years. Rent expense for the lease

of the computer equipment was approximately $419,000 and $362,000 for the years ended December 31 ,
2023 and 2022, respectively, and is included in administration and general on the accompanying

statements of revenues and expenses and unallocated accumulated margins.

Copier  equ ipment .- The Cooperative entered into two and three lease agreements for the lease of
copier equipment for 2023 and 2022, respectively. The terms of each lease is 60 months. Rent expense

for the lease of copier equipment was approximately $43,437 and $51 ,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively and is included in administration and general on the
accompanying statements of revenues and expenses and unallocated accumulated margins.
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Hydrogen bulk storage vessel - The Cooperative entered into a lease agreement for the lease of a
storage vessel to store hydrogen gas. The term of the lease agreement is 60 months and is automatically
renewed at the end of each term for 60 months unless either party gives written termination notice at least
six (6) months before the expiration of the current term. The current 60 month period expires November 1,
2027. Rent expense for the lease of the storage vessel was approximately $32,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Coal railcar trainsets .- The Cooperative entered into lease agreements for the lease of coal railcar
train sets. Lease payments are included as a component of fuel expense. At December 31, 2023, these
lease agreements consist of the following:

A 20-year lease agreement, effective December 17, 2002 was extended effective January 1, 2023.
Lease payments under this agreement totaled approximately $319,000 and $369,000 in 2023 and
2022. The Cooperative has the option of canceling this agreement effective December 31, 2025
subject to the Cooperative notifying the lessor in writing on or before 30 days prior to the effective
date of the termination.

Future minimum financing lease payments and present values of the minimum lease payments are as
follows as of December 31, 2023:

$Years ending December 31 v 2024

2025
2026
2027

884,627
714,436
385,099
405,479

2,389,641
49,021

Total minimum lease payments
Less amount representing interest

2,340,620
884,627

Present value of minimum lease payments
Less current portion

$ 1,455,993Total minimum payments, net

The following provides the supplemental information related to financing leases for the purpose of the
measurement of lease liabilities at December 31 :

2023 2022

$35 675,197
20 years
0.87%

572,209
3.58
4.24

Financing cash flows from financing leases
Weighted average remaining lease term
Weighted average discount rate

Legal - in the normal course of business, the Cooperative is party to claims and matters of litigation. The
ultimate outcome of these matters cannot presently be determined, however, in the opinion of the
Management of the Cooperative, the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on
the Cooperative's financial position, results of operations, or liquidity.
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Note 12 - Patronage Capital

Patronage capital allocation - In accordance with the Cooperative's bylaws, the Cooperative is
obligated to account, on a patronage basis, to all its Members for all amounts received and receivable
from the sale and/or delivery of electric energy and other services in excess of the sum of:

operating costs and expenses, including interest on debt service, properly chargeable against the
sale and/or delivery of electric energy and other services, and,

. amounts required to offset any losses incurred during the current or any prior fiscal years.

All such amounts in excess of operating costs, expenses, and prior losses at the moment of receipt by the
Cooperative are received with the understanding that they are furnished by the Members as capital. The
Cooperative is obligated to pay by credits to a capital account for each Member for all such amounts as
credits in proportion to the value or quantity of the Cooperativels service used, received, or purchased by
each Member during the applicable fiscal year in excess of operating costs and expenses and prior
losses.

Patronage capital retirement - Per the Indenture, AEPCO may retire patronage capital without further
restriction as long as aggregated margins and equity are maintained at a level that is at least 30% of total
longterm debt and equities. The retirements for 2023 and 2022 were $314,713 and $0, respectively.

Note 13 - Employee Benefit Plans

Managed Time Off (MTO) - Employees earn paid time-off based on years of service and hours worked
in the current period. The maximum accrued MTO for each employee is limited to a predetermined
amount as established by policy of the Cooperative's Board of Directors. Any earned MTO not taken by
an employee at the time of separation from employment in good standing may be paid in lump-sum as a
termination benefit. Each year, employees with MTO exceeding 120 hours may convert up to 80 hours to
cash at the employees current base rate of pay.

Pension plans - The Cooperative has a defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all of its
employees. Pension benefits are provided through participation in the National Rural Electric Cooperative
Association (NRECA) Retirement Security Plan (RS Plan). The Cooperative contributes a percentage of
salaried and union employees' earnings to the program, as prescribed by NRECA. The Cooperative's
policy has been to fund retirement costs annually as they accrue. Withdrawal from the RS Plan may result
in the Cooperative having a significant obligation to the program. The Cooperative does not currently
intend to withdraw from the plan and accordingly, no provision has been included in the accompanying
financial statements.

The NRECA RS Plan is a defined benefit pension plan qualified under Section 401 and taxexempt under
Section 501 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code. It is a multi employer plan under the accounting standards.
The plan sponsors Employer Identification Number is 53-01 16145 and the Plan Number is 333. A unique
characteristic of a multi employer plan compared to a single employer plan is that all plan assets are
available to pay benefits of any plan participant. Separate asset accounts are not maintained for
participating employers. This means that assets contributed by one employer may be used to provide
benefits to employees of other participating employers.
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The Cooperatives contributions to the RS Plan in 2023 and 2022 represented less than 5 percent of the
total contributions made to the plan by all participating employers. Contributions by the Cooperative to

this plan approximated $3,351 ,000 and $3,158,000 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. Contributions in 2023 reflect a reduction in the contribution billing rate of approximately 25%

resulting from the Cooperatives voluntary decision to prepay RS Plan contributions (See RS Plan
prepayment).

In the RS Plan a "zone status" determination is not required, and therefore not determined, under the
Pension Protection Act (PPA) of 2006. In addition, the accumulated benefit obligations and plan assets
are not determined or allocated separately by individual employer. in total, the RS Plan was over
80 percent funded on January 1, 2023 and 2022, based on the PPA funding target and PPA actuarial

value of assets on those dates.

Because the provisions of the PPA do not apply to the RS Plan, funding improvement plans and

surcharges are not applicable. Future contribution requirements are determined each year as part of the

actuarial valuation of the plan and may change as a result of plan experience.

The Cooperative offers participation in the 401 (k) Pension Plan to nonunion employees hired prior to

January 1, 2012 and union employees hired prior to January 1, 2019 who meet certain minimum service
requirements. This plan has 401 (k) salary deferral features. Under this plan, the Cooperative matches a
percentage of the employees' contributions to the plan. The Cooperative's contributions to the plan were

approximately $337,000 and $353,000 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Cooperative offers participation in the 401 (k) Pension Plan to non-union employees hired after

December 31, 2011 and union employees hired after December 31, 2018 who have no prior RS Plan
participation history and meet certain minimum service requirements. This plan has 401 (k) salary deferral

features. Under this plan, the Cooperative matches a percentage of the employees contributions to the

plan. The Cooperatives contributions to the plan were approximately $402,000 and $445,000 for the

years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

RS Plan prepayment - On April 29, 2013, the Cooperative voluntarily prepaid contributions of

$9,600,21 1 to the NRECA RS Plan. The prepayment amount is the Cooperative's share as of January 1,
2013, of future contributions required to fund the RS Plans unfunded value of benefits earned to date

using RS Plan actuarial valuation assumptions. The prepayment was the equivalent of approximately
2.5 times the Cooperative's 2013 annual required contribution and will result in an approximate 25%
reduction in the Cooperative's required contributions as of January 1, 2013. The 25% differential in billing

rates is expected to continue for approximately 15 years. However, changes in interest rates, asset

returns and other plan experience different from expected, plan assumption changes and other factors

may have an impact on the differential in billing rates and the 15 year period. In accordance with the
guidance provided by RUS to its borrowers, the Cooperative created a deferred debit and will amortize it

over 17.5 years starting January 1, 2013.

Defer red compensation programs - The Cooperative offers a program to key employees whereby

these employees may elect to set aside a portion of current compensation to be paid out at a later date
upon a qualifying event including retirement, termination of employment, death, or disability. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, there was one participant in the program.
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Effective March 1, 2016, the Cooperative offers a program (Top Hat Plan) to key employees whereby
these employees may elect to set aside a portion of current compensation to be paid out at a later date
selected by the employee upon initial participation in the plan or upon a qualifying event including
retirement, termination of employment, death, or disability. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, there was
one participant in this program.

Effective January 1, 2016, the Cooperative offers a program (Performance Incentive 457(f) Plan) to a
select group of management, key employees, or highly compensated employees within the meaning of
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA), which is intended to be a nonqualified
deferred compensation plan maintained in conformity with the requirements of Internal Revenue Code
Section 457(f). All amounts deferred under the Plan shall constitute short~term deferrals for the purposes
of Code Section 409A. Benefits payable under the Plan shall be payable only if the participant achieves
the performance goal or goals outlined in the Plan addendum. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, there
was one participant in this program.

Note 15 - Concentration of Customers and Credit Risk

Revenue and accounts receivable for the year ended December 31, 2023, included amounts from three
customers, whom each individually represented more than 10% of the total operating revenue and
accounts receivable. Revenue from these customers collectively represented approximately 85% of total
operating revenue for 2023. The amounts owed from these customers collectively represented
approximately 40% of the total accounts receivable balance at December Si, 2023.

Revenue and accounts receivable for the year ended December 31, 2022, included amounts from three
customers, whom each individually represented more than 10% of the total operating revenue and
accounts receivable. Revenue from these customers collectively represented approximately 59% of total
operating revenue for 2022. The amounts owed from these customers collectively represented
approximately 29% of the total accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2022.

Note 16 - Related-parties

The Cooperative is a member of Sierra. Sierra is a member-owned, non-profit Arizona cooperative
corporation organized to provide electric power and energy related products and services to its members
and other patrons. The Cooperative is represented by two delegates. Each delegate is seated as a
director on the Cooperative's Board of Directors and is entitled to one vote on each matter submitted to a
vote at a meeting of the directors.

The Cooperative entered into an agreement with Sierra to lease certain real property (Property) to Sierra
for the purpose of constructing and operating a 20 megawatt (MW) AC solar photovoltaic generating
facility system (Generating Facility), which will be located on a portion of the Property. The term of the
agreement is effective October 16, 2017 through December 31, 2045, and shall be automatically renewed
as long as the Generating Facility remains in commercial operation. The Cooperative recorded solar site
rental income from Sierra totaling approximately $10,000 and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2028
and 2022, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements

The Cooperative entered into an agreement with Sierra to f inance construction of solar photovoltaic

distributed generation facilities with two promissory notes (see Note 6). The combined notes receivable

was $1 ,074,502 and $1 ,145,542 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

As of December 31, 2023, the Cooperative has recorded approximately $360,000 accounts payable to

Sierra and there were approximately $501 ,000 accounts receivable from Sierra. As of December 31 ,
2022, the Cooperative has recorded approximately $354,000 accounts payable to Sierra and there were

approximately $382,000 accounts receivable from Sierra. The net receivable or payable are included in
the accompanying balance sheets as accounts receivable or payable.
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MOSSA_DAMS@

Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors
Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, of Arizona Electric Power
Cooperative, Inc. (the "Cooperative") as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Arizona Electric Power
Cooperative, Inc. basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 29,
2024.

Report on Internal Control Over FinancialReporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Arizona Electric
Power Cooperative, lnc.s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, lnc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, lnc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.'s

f inancial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with

certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not

express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of th is  Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

I.1p48'744
Portland, Oregon
March 29. 2024
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§1710.501.B.5 - List of Secured Outstanding Debt Including
amount and Lender

Arizona Electric Power Cooperative
Summary ofSeeured Long- Term Debt Balances

As of  August  31, 2024

L ENDER

RUS

CFC

CFC

DESCRIPTION
Long-Term Debt - FFB - RUS Guaranteed
CFC Long Term Debt
CFC Series l 994A Bomb
Total

AMOUNT
OUTSTANDING

$l47,989,644.23

$57,85l,l 12.00

s2,200,000.00

$208,040,756.23
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§ 1710.501.B.6 - Evidence of Collateral and/or Ability to Pledge
Such Collateral

Collateral and/or ability to pledge such collateral is governed by the terms and
conditions of AEPCO's Indenture Deed of Trust.
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Arizona

G@T
Touchstone Energy Cooperatives

Cooperatives
,go

September  24, 2024

Administrator
Rural Utilities Service
United States Department of Agriculture
Washington, D.C. 20250-1500

Subject: Ar izona  Elect r ic P ower  Cooper a t ive, Inc., (AEP CO) Ar izona  28 U45

Dear Sir or Madam:

I have examined or caused to be examined by competent and trustworthy persons, such corporate
records and files and such other records, indexes and files as I have deemed necessary to permit
me to render the opinions expressed herein.

I am of the opinion that:

(a) the Borrower has real or personal property interest(s) (including easements, rights
of way or leases) in the counties of Cochise, Gila, Graham, Greenlee, Maricopa,
Mohave, Pima, Pinal, Santa Cruz and Yavapai in the State of Arizona and 10
mortgage counterparts are necessary for registering and indexing as a real estate
mortgage in the appropriate offices in which the Borrower owns real property,

(b)  the Borrower  was organized  under  the laws of  the State of  Arizona as a
cooperative corporation and it is in good standing as evidenced in the attached
Certificate of Good Standing marked as Schedule A hereto,

(c) as of the date hereof, Exhibit A to the Indenture of Deed of Trust, Security
Agreement, and Financing Statement, dated as of March I, 2016, from the
Borrower, as Grantor,  to  Regions Bank, as Trustee, as supplemented and
amended ("Indenture") sets forth the schedule of real property comprising the
Trust Estate (as defined in the Indenture),

(d) the property descriptions contained Exhibit A to the Indenture are legally
sufficient in the above specified States, in fonn, substance and copy quality, for
inclusion in the granting clause of a mortgage and security instrument creating a
lien on such property,

(e) the Borrower's organizational number is 00574189,

Ar izona Electr ic Power  Cooper ative, Inc. - Sier r a Southwest  (0oper at lve Ser vices, Inc.

R0. Box670 . 1000 S. Highway 80 - Benson, Ar izona 85602 (520)586-3631 P hone - www.azgt .coop
AzGT is an equal opportunity provider and employer
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(f) the Borrower is qualified to conduct business in the States of Arizona and
California,

(g) the exact true and correct legal name of the Borrower, as stated in the articles of
incorporation is Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.,

(h) the Borrower has no corporate debt limit, but the amount of secured debt that the
Borrower can issue under the Indenture is limited by the terms of Indenture,

(i) the execution, delivery and performance by the Borrower of loan documents
would require the consent, permission or authorization of the the Arizona
Corporation Commission,

(j) the Borrower's tax payer identification number is 86-0176697,

(k) there are no pending claims or litigation against the Borrower,

(l) the Borrower has the following named subsidiary or subsidiaries: Sierra
Southwest Cooperative Services, Inc.,

(m)the titles of the officials of the Borrower with the proper authority to execute all
loan documents on behalf of the Borrower, and attest to the execution where
required, are President, Secretary, Treasurer, Executive Vice President and Chief
Executive Officer, and Chief Financial Officer.

Very truly yours,

M /i
Char les Alves
Senior  Attorney
Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.

Attachments :
Good Standing Certificate - marked as Schedule A - Good Standing Certificate
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Attachment A - Good Standing Certificate
.
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CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING

I . the undersigned Executive Director o' the Arizona Corporation Commission do hereby certify that:

ARIZONA l€l,l*lCllRIC l'()WI*IR C()()|'|'lRA|M*l, INC.

ACC lilc number: 00574 I 89

was incorporated under the laws of the State of Arizona on (l2/20/ I 961 .

That all annual reports owed to date by said corporation have been filed or delivered lor filing. and all annual filing fees
owed lo date have heck paid, and

That according to the records of the Arizona Corporation Commission, said corporation is in good standing in the Stalc
of Arizona as o' the date this Certificate is issued.

This Ccrtilicatc relates only to the legal existence of the ahovc named entity as of' the date this Certificate is issued, and
is not an endorsement recommendation, or approval of the entity's condition. business activities, allairs, or practices.
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§ l710.501.B 8 - Copies of Borrower's Power Supply Contracts

The following describe AEPCO's existing long term purchase agreements:

AEPCO is  the of f -taker, on behalf  o f  Class A Members , o f  the Arizona Power Pooling Assoc iation

hydroelectric power purchases from WAPA for Salt Lake City  In tegrated Pro iec t (SLCIP and formerly

Colorado River Storage Project). AEPCO receives up to 2.4 MW during October through March and Ur) to

11.7  MW  during  Apri l  through September under SLCIP, Contrac t No. 87BCA-10001 as  amended.

Termination of  87-BCA-10001 and implementation of  superseding Contract No. 17-SLC-0800 occurred

simultaneously with no disruption in delivery. Superseding term of Contract No. 17-SLC-0800 is 10/1/24

through 9/30/57.

AEPCO is  the of f -taker, on behalf  o f  Class A Members , o f  the Arizona Power Pooling Assoc iation

hydroelectric power purchases from WAPA for Parker Davis Project. AEPCO can receive up to 18.4 MW

during October through February and 23.8 MW during March through September under Parker Davis

Project Contract No. 87-BCA10085 as amended. Original term is 20 years commencing 3/1/88 through

9/30/08 and extended to 9/30/28 via Amendment 1, dated 2/10/06.

AEPCO is the of*f-taker, on behalf of Anza, and receives 2 MW each month of Hoover hydroelectric through

a power purchase from the Bureau of Reclamation and WAPA under Boulder Canyon Project Contract No.

16-DSR-12636 known as Anza Hoover. Term is 50 years commencing 10/1/17 through 9/30/67.

AEPCO is the of f -taker, on behalf  of  All Requirements Members (ARm), of  a Power Sale Contract with

Arizona Power Authority to receive Hoover hydroelectric known as ARM Hoover . AEPCO receives this

hydroelectric through an Assignment of Power Sales Contract between each ARM, AEPCO and Arizona
Power Authority. Term is 50 years commencing 10/1/17 through 9/30/6'7.

AEPCO is the off-taker, on behalf of Arizona cooperatives, of a Confirmation for Power Sale entered on
9/10/13 known as SRP PPA. AEPCO may schedule a maximum hourly capacity of 15 MW and up to a
monthly maximum capacity of 44%. On 11/26/13, AEPCO and the Arizona cooperatives entered into an
Allocation Agreement to allocate the SRP resource. Term is from 1/1/16 to 12/31/35 and may be
terminated with 240 days advance written notice.

AEPCO is the off-taker of the 20 MW-ac solar facility known as Apache Solar  I under the Solar Services

Agreement, dated October 10, 2017, between AEPCO and Sierra. The term is 9 years commencing on the

Commercial Operation Date and absent notice of nonrenewal, the agreement automatically renews for

5-year periods until the termination of the interconnection.

AEPCO is the off taker of the 2 MW-ac solar facility known as Anza Phase I Solar under the Solar Services

Agreement, dated August 17, 2017, between AEPCO and Sierra. The term is 9 years commencing on the

Commercial Operation Date and absent notice of non-renewal, the agreement automatically renews for
5-year periods until the termination of the interconnection.

AEPCO is the offtaker of 1.35 MW-ac solar facility and 2 MW-ac/4 MWh-ac battery energy storage system

known as Anza Phase ll Solar and Storage Project under the Solar Services Agreement, dated December

9, 2020, between AEPCO and Sierra. The term is 9 years commencing on the Commercial Operation Date

and absent notice o f  non-renewal, the agreement automatically renews for 5-year periods until the

termination of  the interconnection.
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AEPCO is the off-taker of 35 MW of energy storage systems known as the Part ial Requirements Member

Battery Services Agreement (BESS) between AEPCO and Sierra which provides for Sierra to develop,

operate, maintain, and sell the 35 MW BESS at three locations and for AEPCO to purchase the full storage

capacity of the 35 MW BESS. Three successor energy storage service agreements, are dated 1/8/24,

3/7/24, and 5/30/24, and remain in effect for 20 years.

AEPCO is the off-taker of a PPA, as amended by the First, Second and Third Amendment and later
superseded by the Amended and Restated PPA (A&R PPA) with Roadrunner Solar LLC to develop solar

generation facility of 235 MW known as Apache II Solar. Effective date of the A&R PPA is 9/24/24.
Terminates 20 years after the commercial operation date.

AEPCO is the off-taker of an ESA, as amended by the First, Second and Third Amendment and later
superseded bythe Amended and Restated ESA (A&R ESA) with Roadrunner Battery Storage LLC to develop

a battery energy storage system of 235 MW known as Apache II Battery. Effective date of the A&R ESA is

9/24/24. Terminates 20 years after the commercial operation date.
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§ 1710.501.B.9 - Competitive Position Information Including Rate
Disparity Between Neighboring Utilit ies

As a wholesale power provider, AEPCO does not compete with retail service providers. However,
we have enclosed sales and rate information for retail utllltles in the state of Arizona for reference.
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§ 1710.501.B.10 - Construction Work Plan and/or  Engineering
P ower  C ost  St u d y

Enclosed are summaries of the 2017-2020 Construction Work Plan (CWP), as
amended, and the 2021-2024 Construction Work Plan (CWP), as amended, and a
summary of the projects (from the two CWP's) included in this loan application,
which also reconciles with the form 740c.
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(all project costs are shown in inservice year although there may be cash flow in previous years)Summary of Construction Program and Cost
(2017 2020 Construction \Vnrk Plan Am. NZ)

2018z0l7 20202019RUS 740: App. A Pg Project Name Total $s Amend. #I Chg.
Project
Number

202092

00 . Tlans i Si >n in s

800.1 800.  II SaguaroNorth Loop Line Procurement
Transmission Lines Totals

$2.900.000 2 . Revised $

s2.900.000

$0

so

$0

S0

$0

$0

s2 .900.000
sz900000

20206 l r
202062
202053
20205 I

202052
202055
2.02056

202057
2-02058
202059
202060

202063
202064r
202065r
202066

202080
20208 I
202083
202087

2.02038
202089
202090
20209 I r

202072
202093r
202095
202 l 05

202 I 03
202 l 09

$0 2 Removed
$300000 0 . Original
S965000 I Amended

$z.537.500 0 . Original

$1195000 I Revised S
$0 I Removed

Sl 50.00{) I . Revised S

$0 2 . Removed
s509.000 0 . Original
S215l00 1 Revised s
S565.000 0 . Original
$400000 0 Original

$0 2 Removed
$0 l Removed

S183.000 0 . Original

$120400 l . Added
5365.000 I . Added

$3.794.0(]0 2 Revised s
$l080000 I . Added

$75000 I . Added
Sl49.700 2 . Revised s
s220.000 I Added

$0 2 . Removed

$1858600 2 . Revised $
$0 2 Removed

$682000 I Added
$98300 Z . Added

Sl 19500 2 . Added
$112I000 2 .  Added

$16703100

$0
$300000

$0
$2537500

$0

so
Sl 50000

$0
so

$0
$565000

$0
so

$0
$0
$0

$0
s3.794.0<m

$0
$0
so
so

$0
$ l 85X600

S0
$682000
$98300

Sn 19500
s I 12 I .000

$ll225900

$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
so
$0

S509000

$0
$0

$400000
so

$0
$0
$0

$365000
so

S0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$1274000

so
so

$0
$0
$0
$0

so
$0

$0
$215 I 00

$0
$0
$0
$0

$183000
$0
$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
$0

S398l 00

$0
$0

$965000
$0

s l I95.000
$0

s0
$0
so
SO

so
$0
S0
$0

$0
s I 20400

$0
$0

s1 .080000

875000
Sl49.700
$220000

so
$0
$0

so
S0
$0
$0

$3805100

1000 Line and Station Changes
1000.1 1000.11 REMOVED 20 I 718 Easement Correction Project
1000.2 1000.21 201920 Easement Correction Project
1000.3 1000.31 Grccnlcc 230125 kV Substation Upgrade
1000.4 1000.41 Valencia CAWCD Interconnect

1000.5 1000.51 APS Bagdad Interconnect
10006 1000.6-1 REMOVED FMI Morenci TEP Joint Project
1000.7 1000.71 Topock Access Road Project

l000.R l000.81 REMOVED . UES Hilltop Substation
10009 1000991 Round Valley Interconnect
1000.1 \000.10t VailBicknell 345 kV Structure 54
1000.1 l 1000.1 lI Valencia I 15 kV Capacitor Bank

1000. I2 1000 I 21 Dos Condados Capacitor Bank Installation
1000. I3 1000. I 31 REMOVED For Huachucn 131969 kV Interconnect
1000.14 1000.141 REMOVED MaracaThornydaleSaguaro
1000. l5 1000. l 51 Pinal West CT Replacement

1000. la 1000. l 61 TEP Physical Security Upgrades
1000. I7 1000. I 71 TEP Communication Upgrades
1000.18 1000.181 TEP Greenlee Substation Upgrade
1000.19 1000.191 TEP South Substation Upgrade

1000.2 1000201 TEP Weshiving Fault Recorder
1000.21 1000.211 TEP Westwing RTU Replacement
100022 1000.221 Rattlesnake IS kV Breaker
1000.23 1000.231 REMOVED Marena Capacitor Bank

1000.24 1000.241 Davis DarnRiviera Eawmcnt Renewal
1000.25 I000151 REMOVED Marena TloI Transformer Upgrade
1000.26 1000.261 Valencia Tlol Transformer Upgrade
1000.27 l 000.27l Winchester and Grccnlcc F8ull Recorders

100028 1000.281 Pimtl West to South Anchor Replacement
1000.29 1000.29l Three Points Substation Upgrade
Line and Station Changes Totals

LINES. I 7
SUBS.l7
COMM. l7
LINES.l8
SUBS. 18
COMM. l8
LlNESl9
SUBS.l9
COMM. I9
LlNES.20
SUBS.20
C()MM.20

$500000 0 Original
$500.000 0 . Original
S700000 0 . Original
$500000 0 . Original
$500000 0 Original
S700.000 0 Original
S500.00{) 0 . Original

5500000 0 . Original
8700.000 0 . Original
S500.000 0 Original
S500.000 0 . Original
$700000 0 Original

I 102 Line and Subsnuio

1102.1 1102.11
1102.2 1102.21
1102.3 1102.31
l 102.4 l 102.4- l

1102.5 1102.51
l 102.6 l 102.6-1
1102.7 1102.71
lloz.R 1102.81
1102.9 I 102.91
1102.1 1102.101
1102.11 l l0 2 . l l l
1102.12 1102.121
Line and Substation Or s6.s00000

$500000
S500.000
$700000

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

Sl./00.000

$0

so
so

$500000
$0

$0
$0
$0

$0
$0
$0
S()

$500000

$0
so

$0
$0

S500.000
5700.000

so
$500000
S700000

S0

so
$0

$2,400000

$0
$0

$0
so
$0

so
S500.000

$0
$0

S500.000
S500.(}00
$700000

$2,200000

n Ordinaw Replacement

2017 Transmission Renewfkeplace
20 I7 Substation Renew/Replace
2017 Communication Renew/Replace
2018 Transmission Rcncw:Rcplace

20 I R Substation Renew/Replace
20]8 Communication Renewfkcplace
20 la Transmission Renew/Replace

20 I9 Substation Rcne\w'Replacc
2019 Coninnmication Renew/Replace
2020 Transmission Renew Replace
2020 Substation Rcncwikcplacc
2020 Communication Renew/Replace

dinars Replacement .. Totals

2 0 2 1  1 2Transmission Aerial Life Repluccrncnt

I 104 Equipment

1104.1 1104.11
Equipment  Totals
CWP Year Totals:

$1 .l42.000 z . Added

s! .I42000
$27545100

$0
so

$1774000 $0
so

$6205100

al . 142.000

Sl l42000
si7.467.900

$0
$0

$2098100
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(all project costs are shown in inservice year although there may be cash flow in previous years)

202z 2024RUS 740: 20232021Project Name
Project
Number

\mind.#/T r I Io a S s Chg.

20202 I
202 l I0
2021 l4r
202 I47

Boolhill lu Schicffclin 69 kV Line

AdonisMarana I 15 kV Line

REMOVFD Marina I 15 kV Loopin Line
WAPA Line Segment Procurement Apache

Summary of Construction Program and Cost
(2021 . 2024 Construction Work Plan. Am. #2 )

App. A

Pg
800 Transmission Lines

8001 800.11
800.2 800.21

800.3 800.31
800.4 800.4. I

Transmission Lines Totals

S 0

S 0

SO

S 0

SO

S0 4054000
s o  0

S 0 0
SO 359059

so 54413.059

0
11444671

0
0

sl 1.444.67 I

$4054000 1 Revised $
$11444671 2 Revised S

$0 1 Removed
$359059 2 . Added

s ls .ss7730

2020 I9

2021 l7

o
0

$0

s5330.000
s o

55.3300000

SO 0

$0 3669000
SO 83,669000

$5330000 o Original
$3669000 1 Revised $
$8999000

900 c sari my wirchin taxi ms

900.1 900. I l Schieffelin 230/69 kV Substation
900.2 900.21 Adonis Substation

New Substations Switching Stations Totals

202020

202 l0 I

202 I 04
2021 l I
202]  l5
202 l I3
202120

202064

202 I la
2021 l9

202 I 24
202125

202 I 29
20213 I
202 I4 l
202 I 34
202 I 40

202 I 43

202 l 44
202149

202133
202 I48

hanees

Boothill I 15/69 kV Substation
Bicknell 345/230 kV Transformer Replacement

Apache and Bicknell Fault Recorders
Apache l 15569 kV Transformer Replacement

Marena l 15 kV Substation Rebuild Project
Saguaro I 15 kV Interconnection

Grccnlcc 345/230 kV Transformer Upgrade
REMOVED For lluuchuca l 38i69 kV

REMOVED 202 I 22 Easclncnl Correction
REMOVED 202324 Easement Correction

RFMOVFD Vail Enclosure
REMOVED Greenlee Enclosure

Bicknell I 15 kV Breaker Replacement
AEPCO/APS Fiber Install

Panlano 230/1 15 kV Transformer Rcplaccmcnt
Topock RTU and Relay Replacement
West Wing Vail ASLI) Renewal

SaguaroAdonis ADSS Fiber Installation

Saguaro Adonis Structural Slcel
Line 125 and Line 133 Easement Acquisition

Riviera Meter Upgrade
230 kV Ring Bus Apache

s  Totals

1000
1000. I

1000.2

l0)0.3
10004
1000.5
1000.6

1000.7
1000.8
l 0(l0.*)

1000. I
I 000.1 l

1000. I2

I 000.13
1000. 14

I 000.15
I 000. I6
I 000.17

1000.18

I 000. IN
1000.2

1000.21
1000.22
Line and

SO

S 0

SO

S 0

S 0

S 0

SO

S 0

S()

SO

SO

S 0

SO

S 0

SO

S 0

SO

S 0

SO

S 0

S 0

SO

s o

$0
so

$0
S I .9 I l 000
$6.1 xyz I

$0

S4.98/.055
$0

so
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

54874738

$463700

$0
so

$0
so

$0
S5.072.442

523495956

$4.832000
so

$0
$0

so
s I s70000

$0
SO

$0

$0
$0

so
$l090. l(15

$92.500

$0

$0
$33 I .500

$505022
$93 I 0x3
$788.400

so
$0

$10I40.670

s o

$3278.800
s l 70 I 00

S 0

S 0

SO

SO

SO

s o

S 0

S()

SO

S 0

S 0

SO

S 0

S()

SO

SO

S 0

$228800

SO

536777700

$4832.000 1 Revised $
$3278800 1 Revised S

SI 70.100 0 . Original

$l911.000 0 Original
$6.187.021 2 Revised $
51570.000 0 Original

$4987055 2 . Revised s
$0 1 Removed
$0 1 Removed
$0 1 Removed
$0 1 Removed
$0 1 Removed

$l090.l65 2 Revised $
s92.500 1 . Added

$4s74.73x 2 . Revised S

8463.700 1 . Added
S33l.5()0 1 . Added

S505.022 1 Added
S931083 2 Revised S
S788.400 2 . Added

$228800 2 . Added
$5072.442 2 . Added

S3773l4*§26

Line and Station C

l0( )0. II
1000.21
l 0()0.3I
1000.41
l 0(l().5I
100061
l 0(l0.7l
1000.81
l()()09.]
1000. 10 I

1000.1 lI
1000. l 21

l0()(). I3I
I 000. 141
1000. 15 1

1000. 16 1
1000.171

1000. l 81
l0()0. I 91

1000.20 I

l 0(l().2 l . I

1000.22 I

Station Change

1102 in a dSu Kali n rdina Ia c n\

SO

SO
S0

SO
S 0

SO

s o

S n

S 0

SO

S 0

s o

LINES.2 I

SLI BS .2 l

(OMM.2 I

LINES.22
SUBS.22

C()MM.22
LINES.23
SUBS23

COMM.23

LlNES24
SUBS.24

COMM.24 5500.000 0 Original
$500.000 0 . Original

s700.000 o Original
5500000 0 Original
S500.000 0 . original
$700000 0 Original

5500.000 0 Original
S500.000 0 . Original

S700.000 0 Original
$500000 0 . Original
S500.000 0 Original
$700000 0 . Original

1102.1

1102.2
l 102.3

I I()2.4
l 102.s

I 102.6
I 102.7
I 102.x

I 102.9

I 102.1
I 102.1 I
I 102. 12

Line and S 0

8500.000
$500.000

s700.000

S0
S0

SO
S0

S()
SO

SO
S0

SO
$1700,000

$0
$0
so

$500000
$500.000
$700000

$500.000
5500000
$700000

$0
$0

SO
s3,400,000 $6800000

$0

$0
$0

S0
$0

$0
$0

$0
so

$500000

$500.000

$700000
$1,700000

1102.11 2021 Transmission RenciWkcplace

l l 0 2 . 2 l 2021 Suhslalion Rcncw/Replace
l  10231 2021 Communication Rcnewlkeplace

I 102.41 2022 Tnmsmission Renew/Replace:
1102.51 2022 Substation Renew/Replace

I 102.61 2022 Communication Rcnew!Rcplacc
l 102.71 2023 Transmission Renew/Replace

I 102.81 2023 Substation Renew/Replace
I 10291 2023 Communication Renewfkeplace

l 102.101 2024 Transmission Rcncw/Rcplacc
I 102.1 lI 2024 Substation Renewfkeplace
I II)".l2I 2024 (fommunicalion Rene»wRcpluce

Substation Ordinary Replacement Totals

REMOVED . Apache 230/1 I kV Transformer Critical Span 202027
Truck Replacement 202122

Alt cc TA55 Buckcl Truck 2()2 l5l

l 104 Equipment

l m 4 1 I l O 4 . I I
l 104.2 I 10421

I 104.3 I l ()4.3I
Equipment  Totals
(TWP Year Totals:

0

0

180000
s 180.000

sz I $02729

S0
$525.000

$0
5525.000

$5902700

SO
SO

SO
S0

553300000

$0 1 Removed
$525000 1 Revised s
$180000 2Added
S708000

S69676056

0
0
o

s o

536640627

242 of 252§ l7l0.50l.B.l0 - Construction Work Plan and/or Engineering Power Cost Study



IArizona 28 U45 A ache Loan A~ ~lication

Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. - Transmission ET = Technical  & Envi ronmental

T  = TechnicalFinancing Application
Funds

Previouslv
Advanced

L l ne

£49 740: Group
RUS

Approval
FT

Prolect
Number

2.02092
Project Name

SaguaroNorth Loop Line Procurement

D8

D8

ET

ET

ET

ET

ET

ET

ET

ET

ET

ET

ET

ET

ET

ET

ET

ET

ET

ET

E

ET

ET

1 0 0 0 1

1000.3

1000.4

1000.5

1000.7

1000.9

1000.1
1000.11
1000.12

1000.15

1000.16

1000.17

1000.18

1000.19

1000.20

1000.21
1 0 0 0 1 2

1000.24

1000.26

1000.27

1000.28

1000.29

2.02062
202053
202051
202052
202055
202058
202059
202060
202063
202066
202080
202081
202083
202087
202088
2.02089
202090
202072
202095
2 02105
202103
202109

201920 Easement Correction Project
Greenlee 230/25 kV Substation Upgrade

Valencia CAWCO Interconnect

APS Bagdad Interconnect

T opock Access Road Project

Round Val l ey Interconnect

Vai lBi cknel l  345 kV Structure SO

Valencia 115 kV Capaci tor Bank

Dos Condados Capaci tor Bank Installation
Pinal  West CT Replacement

rev Physical Security Upgrades

TEP Communication Upgrades

TEP Greenlee Substation Upgrade

TEP South Substation Upgrade

T EP Westwing Faul t Recorder

TEP Westwing RTU Replacement

Rattlesnake 115 kV Breaker

Davis DamRlviera Easement Renew al

Valencia T 101 T ransformer Upgrade

Winchester and Greenlee Fault Recorders

Pinal  West to South Anchor Replacement

T hree Points Substati on Upgrade

D8

DO

D8

D8

D8

ET

ET

ET

FT

ET

ET

ET

ET

LINES.17

$UBS.17

COM M .1 7

UNES.18

SUBS.18

COMM18
LlNES.19

SU8S.19

COM M .1 9

LINES.20

SUBS.20

COM M .2 0

1102.1
1102.2

1102.3

1102.4

1102.5

1102.6

1102.7

1 1 0 2 8

1102.9
1102.10

1102.11
1102.12

2017 Transmission Renew/Replace
2017 Substaiicn Renew/Replace
2017 Communication Renew/Replace
2018 Transmission Renew/Replace
2018 Substation Renew/Replace
2018 Communication Renew/Replace
2019 Transmission Renew/Replace
2019 Substation Renew/Replace
2019 Communication Renew/Replace
2020 Transmission Renew/Replace
2020 Substarian Renew/Replace
2020 Communication Renew/Replace

202112Transmission Aerial Lift Replacement

202021
202110
202147

Boothi l l  to Schieffel in 69 kV Line

AdonisMarana 115 kV Line

WAPA Line Segment Procurement Apache

ET

ET

Schieffelin 230/69 kV Substation
Adonis Subslatlon

202019
202117

T

ET

T

T

T

T

T

T

ET

ET

ET

ET

T

T

202020
202101
Z02104
202111
202115
202113
2021 ZO
202129
202131
202141
202134
202140
202143
202144
202149
202133
202148

1000.1
1000.2
1000.3
1000.4
1000.5
1000.6
1000.7
1000.13
1000.14
1000.15
1000.16
1000.17
1000.18
1000.19
1000.20
1000.21
100022

aonxhill 115/69 kV Substatlon
Bicknell 345/230 kV Transformer Replacement
Apache and Bicknell Fault Recorders
Apache 115/69 kV Transformer Replacement
Marena 115 kV Substatlon Rebuild Project
Saguaro 115 kV Interconnection
Greentree 345/230 kV Transformer Upgrade
Bicknell 11s kV Breaker Replacement
AEPCO/APS Fiber Install
pantano 230/115 kV Transformer Replacement

Topock RTU and Relay Replacement

West Wing Vail ASLD Renew al

SaguaroAdonis ADSS Flber Instal l ati on

Saguaro .. Adonis Structural  Steel

Line 125 and Line 133 Easement Acquisi tion

Riviera Meter Upgrade
230 kV Ring Bus Apache

1
z
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45

46
a7
48

49
50
51
52
53
S4
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
53
64
65
65

1102.1
1102.2

1102.3

1102.4

1102.5

1102.6

1102.7

1102.8

1102.9

1102.10

1102.11
1102.12

LINES.21

SUBS.21

COM M .2 1

LINE$.2Z

5UB$.22

COMM22
IJNES.23

SUBS.23

COM M .2 3

LINES.24

SUB5.24

COMM.24

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

2021 T ransmission Renew/Replace

2021 Substati on Renew/Replace

2021 Communicati on Renew/Replace

2022 T ransmission Renew/Replace

2022 Substati on Renew/Replace

2022 Communicati on Renew/Replace

2023 T ransmission Renew/Replace

2023 Substati on Renew/Replace

2023 Communicati on Renew/Replace

2024 T ransmission Renew/Replace

2024 Substati on Renew/Replace

2024 Communicati on Renew/Replace

67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79

TTruck Replacement
Altec TA55 Bucket Truck

202122
202151

M RUS 7404:
20172020 800.1
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020

20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020
20172020 1104.1
20172020
20172020
20212024 800.1
20212024 800.2
20212024 800.4
20212024
20212024 900.1
20212024 900.2
20212024

20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024

20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024
20212024 1104.2
20212024 1104.3
2021z024

20212024

New Lines

New  Unes Total

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and station Changes

Line and station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Llne and station Changes

Line and station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Llne and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Llne and Station Changes

Llne and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Llne and Station Changes

Llne and Station Changes

Llne and station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes Total

Llne and Substation Replacements

Line and Substation Replacements

Line and Substation Replacements

Line and Substation Replacements

Line and Substation Replacements

Llne and Subslatlon Replacements

Line and Substation Replacements

Line and Substation Replacements

Llne and Substation Replacements

Line and Substation Replacements

Line and Substation Replacements

Line and Substation Replacements

Line and Substatl on Replacements T otal

Equipment

Equipment Total

Total

New Lines

New Lines

New Lines

New  Llnes Total

New  Substations

New  Substations

New  Substations Total

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and stati on changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes

Line and Station Changes Total

Line and Substation Replacements

Line and Substation Replacements

Line and Substation Replacements

Llne and Substatlon Replacements

Llne and Substation Replacements

Llne and Substation Replacements

Line and Substation Replacements

Llne and Substation Replacements

Line and Substatlon Replacements

Line and Substation Replacements

Line and Substation Replacements

Llne and Substation Replacements

Llne and Substatlon Re lacements

Equipment

Equipment

Equipment Total

Total

Grand Total

80
81
82

83
84

CWP Budget
$2900000
$2900,000

$300000
$965000

$2537500
$1195000

$150000
$509000
$215100
$565000
$400000
$183000
$120400
$365000

53794000
$1080000

$75000
5149700
$220000

$1858600
$602000
$98300

$119500
$1121000

$16703100

$500000
$500000
$700000
$500000
$500000
$700000
$500000
$500000
$100000
5500000
$500000 ET
$700000 ET

$ss00000
$1142000
$1142000

$27545100
$4054000 ET

$11444671 T
$359059

$15857730

$5330000
$3669000
$8999000

54832000
$3278800

$170100
$1911000
$6187021
$1570000
$4987055
51090165

$92500
54874738

$463700
$331500
5505022
$931083
$788400
$228800

$5072442
$37314326

$500000 T
$500000
$700000
$500000
$500000
$700000
$500000
$500000
$700000
$500000
$500000
$700000

$6800000
9525000
$1a0000
$705000

$69676056

$97,221156

U45 Loan
Request
$2900000
$2900000

$300000
$965000

52537500
$1195000

$150000
$509000

so
$565000
$400000

$0
$120400
$365000

$3794000
$1080000

$75000
$149700
$220000

$1858600
$682000
$98300

$119500
$1121000

$16305000

$0
so
so
So
$0

$700000
$500000
$500000
$700000
$500000
$500000
$700000

$4,100000
$1142000
$1142000

$z4447.000

$4054000
$11444671

$359059
$15857730 .
$5330000
$3669000
$8999000

$4832000
$3278800

$170100
$1911000
$6187021
$1570000
$4987055
31090165

$92500
$4874738

$463700
$331500
$505022
$931083
5788400
$228800

$5072442
$37314326

$500000
$500000
$700000
$500000
sso0oo0
$700000
$500000
$500000
$700000
$500000
$500000
$700000

$6800000
$525000
$180000
$705000

$69676056

$94,123056
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I I  IArizona 28 U45 A ache L o a n A lica t ion

§ 1710.501.B.11 - An Environmental Report Related to the Facilit ies
for  Which Financing is Being Requested

Environmental reports related to the facilities for which financing is being requested
in this loan application were previously submitted to the RUS.

§ l7l0.50l.B.ll - An Environmental Repor t Related to the Facilities for  Which Financing is Being Requesteq44 of 252



I a IArizona 28 U45 A ache L o a n A Plication

§ 1710.501.C.l - Power  Supply Arrangements and/or  Wholesale
Power Contracts Including M atur ity Dates

AEPCO has six Class A Members. Three of the Class A Members are all requirement members (ARMs)
and three of the Class A Members are partial reIlirement members (PRMs). AEPCO is obligated to
provide all energy and capacity to serve the AR 's load under the Wholesale Power Contract (WPC).
AEPCO is obligated to provide a portion of the energy and capacity to serve the PRM'sload under a
Partial Requirements Capacity and Energy Agreement (PRC A).

2001, as amended, the Sulphur Springs Valley
as amended, and the Trico ElectrrcArber 29

12, 2010, as amended.

The Mohave Electric Cooperative PRCEA is dated July/ 2,
Electric Cooperative PRC A is dated Dece , 2 05,
Cooperative RCEA is dated May

The Duncan Valley Electric Cooperative WPC and the Graham County Electric Cooperative WPC is
dated February 15, 1962, as amended, and the Anza Electric C00perat1ve WPC is dated April 1, 1982, as
amended.

The current term for the WPC and PRCEA is through December 31, 2060, eluding the Anza Electric
Cooperative WPC, which is through December 31, 2035.

§ l7l0.50l.C.l - Power  Supply Arrangements and/or  Wholesale Power  Contracts Including Matur ity Dates 245 of 252





I I  IL o an A licationArizona 28 U45 A ache

§ 1710.501.C.3 - Borrower's Load Resource Table

247 of 252§ l710.501.C.3 - Borrower's Load Resource Table





I I  IL o an A licationArizona 28 U45 A ache

§ 1710.501.C.4 - Information on its Transmission and
Interconnection Arrangements

249 of 252§ l710.50l.C.4 - Information on its Transmission and Interconnection Arrangements



I  II L o an A licationArizona 28 U45 A ache

§ 1710.501.C.5 - Power Supply Borrower's New/Returning
Membership Chart Profile and Relationships

§ l710.50l.C.5 - Power Supply Bo rrower's New/Returning Membership Chart Profile and Relationships 250 of 252



I I  ILoan A licationArizona 28 U45 A ache

Arizona

G8ETAEPCO Membership Profile Cooperatives
Touchmme Energy Cooperatives ,

o Class AAII Requirements Members (ARM)
Anza Electric Cooperative

Duncan Valley Electric Cooperative

Graham County Electric Cooperative unnmnv
nearrnunu

pVwnu urn DOLURADO

NEWMEXIIIU

I
I

I-C5
uruaruy

ARIZONA
o. IClass A Partial Requirements Members (PRM)

UA LIFORNIA I r
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.ua ung d s
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Mohave Electric Cooperative

Sulphur Springs Valley Electric Cooperative

Trico Electric Cooperative
Ann

l

4
4

0
\

I

i J'""'
,S J jun

uma
Dinah

o R
o oA .

in:
i

. AEPCO Class D Members
mies
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Mlm:

Central Arizona Water Conservation District

Lincoln County Power District No. 1

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California

Southwest Public Power Agency

Valley Electric Association

1
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I  II L o an A licationArizona 28 U45 A ache

Arizona

G8!TAEPC() Membership Profile Cooperatives
Touchstone Energy' Cooperatives ,

. Class AAII Requirements Members (ARM)
Anza Electric Cooperative

Duncan Valley Electric Cooperative

Graham County Electric Cooperative

An ARM has a Wholesale Power Contract to receive all of

its capacity and energy requirements from AEPCO and a

separate Network Transmission Service Agreement with

AEPCO to deliver power to their loads

An ARM also receives scheduling and trading services

from AEPCO.

Class A Partial Requirements Members (PRM)

Mohave Electric Cooperative

Sulphur Springs Valley Electric Cooperative

Trico Electric Cooperative

A PRM has a Partial Requirements Capacity and Energy

Agreement with AEPCO to furnish only a portion of its retail

sales electricity requirements and a separate Transmission

Agreement to deliver their respective shares of the capacity

of AEPCO resources and any purchased power

A PRM also receives scheduling and trading services from

AEPCO

• AEPCO Class D Members

Class D Members receive scheduling and trading services,

but do not take any power or energy from AEPCO's

generation resources.

Central Arizona Water Conservation District

Lincoln County Power District No. 1

Metropolitan Water District of Southern

California

Southwest Public Power Agency

Valley Electric Association

2
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Jasin Glasner

From:
Sent:

To:
Cc:

Subject:
Attachments : Updated 20250124.pdf

Jasin Glasner
Monday, January 27, 2025 7:41 AM

'Jenkins, Doug - RD, MD', Brittany Moncada
Urdal, Constance - RD, DC, Dela Cruz, Arsenio - RD, CO

RE: AZ0028 U45- Update and LRFF Questions
AEPCO Long Range Financial Forecast v12 RUS AZ 28 U45

Good morning Doug,

Apologies for the delay. The forecast model assumes all new issues of long-term debt are RUS financed. We have
updated the attached using a 6% rate for new issues. And, yes, the load projections were based on the 2023 load
forecast.

Please let us know if you have additional questions.

Thank you,

From: Jenkins, Doug - RD, MD <doug.jenkins@usda.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2025 1:29 PM
To: Jasin Glasner <jglasner@azgt.coop>; Brittany Moncada <bmoncada@azgt.coop>
Cc: Urdal, Constance - Ro, DC <constance.urdal @ usda.gov>, Dela Cruz, Arsenio - RD, CO <arsenio.delacruz@usda.gov>

Subject: AZ0028 U45- Update and LRFF Questions

Good afternoon Jasin and Brittany-

I appreciate the updated information and requested material Jasin provided near the end of December. I have reviewed
this material, along the application material submitted, and completed 90% of the financial review for APECO's U45
loan. Although l'm still awaiting the completion of the Engineering review in order to submit the loan for approval, l'd
like to fully complete the Financial portion so I can move the loan quickly once the Engineering portion is received.

In reviewing the updated Long Range Financial Forecast (attached for reference), I ran into an issue concerning the
projections related to long term debt. l'm not sure if Larry discussed this with you, but RUS requires that Borrowers use
an interest rate of 6% for all future RUS/FFB debt. Based on page 5 (Balance Sheet) of the LRFF, it appears that the
majority of the projected future debt is RUS/FFB.

Page 12 of the LRFF indicates future interest rates ranging from 4.12% to 5.03%.

1



I t may be that the f igures on page 12 are a weighted average of rates, combining RUS debt with debt from other

sources. Can you please clar ify if the debt projections for  the RUS por tion of the long term debt were run using an

interest rate of 6%? If not can you adjust the model to reflect all future RUS debt as having an interest rate of 6% and

resubmit it?

The assumption in the LRFF did not address this. Were the load projections in the LRFF were based on the AEPCO 2023

Load Forecast?

I have one other question that I believe to be pretty straight forward. The application letter lists "$ierra Southwest

Cooperative, inc." as a subsidiary. Is this different from "Sierra Southwest Cooperative Services Inc."?

Please feel free to contact me if  you have any questions. Thank you for your help.

Doug Jenkins
Senior Loan Specialist
Office of Loan Origination and Approval
U.S. Department of Agriculture
1400 Independence Ave., S.W.
Room 4153
Washington, D.C. 20250
Phone: 202.720.0453
www.rurdev.usda.gov

>; Brittany Moncada

From: Jasin Glasner < latiner az t .coo  >

Sent: Monday, December 23, 2024 9:28 AM
To: Jenkins, Doug - Ro, MD <doug.jenkins@usda.gov>

Cc: McGraw, Larry - Ro, NM <larry.mcgraw@usda.gov>, Peter Scott < Scott az t.coo

2



<bmoncada@azgt.cooo>
Subject: [External Email]FW: AZ0028 U45- Missing Items and Questions

[External Email]
If this message comes from an unexpected sender or references a vague/unexpected topic;
Use caution before clicking links or opening attachments.
Please send any concerns or suspicious messages to: Spam.Abuse@usda.gov

Hello Doug,

Please see attached items requested and responses to your questions below (in red italics). Please let us know if you
have any additional questions.

Happy holidays!

Jasin Glasner, Financial Controller Arizona
latiner az t.coo G@T

Mobile: 310-707-5861 I Office: 520-586-5114
T u . h L u  h e fm  \

Cooperatives

1000 s. Hwy 80 I Benson, AZ 85602

Notice: This message and any attachments are for the sole and confidential use of the intended recipients and may contain proprietary
andfof confidential information which may be pnvileged or otherw ise protected from disclosure.

>Scott az t.coo

From: McGraw, Larry - RD, NM <larrv.mcgraw@usda.gov>
Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2024 3:06 PM
To: Brittany Moncada <bmoncada@azgt.coop>
Cc: Jenkins, Doug - RD, MD <doug.1enkins@usda.gov>, Peter Scott <

Subject FW: AZ0028 U45- Missing Items and Questions

Brittany,

Please see the email from Doug and respond directly to him, since I will be on leave
until January 6.

Merry Christmas to all!

Larry McGraw
General Field Representative
Rural Utilities Service-Electric, Rural Development
United States Department of Agriculture
Phone: 505.892.0353 I Cell: 505.235.6312
https://www.rdusda.qov/proqrams-services/all-proqrams/electric-proqrams

"Together America Prospers"

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

From: Jenkins, Doug - RD, MD <doug.ienkins@usda.gov>
Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2024 2:48 PM
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To: McGraw, Larry - RD, NM <larry.mcgraw@usda.gov>
Subject: AZ0028 U45- Missing Items and Questions

Good afternoon Larry-

|'ve been working on the loan for Arizona 28 over the last few days. There are a few items I need to request from the
borrower, along with a few questions regarding their 2023 Form 12.

Missing Items

2-

3_

1- We need the Borrower to provide their MFI for 20212023. Please see attached file of compliance coverage
raaos
Additionally, the Long Range Financial Forecast does not contain the calculations for MFI. Since this is a
requirement under the Indenture, the LRFF must include these calculations. Please have the Borrower provide
an updated LRFF or an addendum with the MFI projections. Please see attached updated LRFF (we have added
MFI to page 15).
We need their most recent credit ratings from two rating agencies. Please see attached latest reports from Fitch
and S&P.

Form 12 (2023 Form 12 attached for reference)
As calculated from the 2023 RUS Form 12, the Borrower had Total Operation Revenues & Patronage Capital of $225
million in 2023, which was $66.2M (22.74%) lower than the previous year (2022). This reductions corresponds with a
$66.3 million (25.63%) reduction in Electric Energy Revenues. There was a reduction of $67.8 million (28%) in Operating
expenses (mostly furl costs). Was this past to the Borrower's members through lower rates (fuel cost adjustment),
thereby reducing the revenues collected in 2023? I just need to provide an accurate explanation for the lower revenues.
The lower revenue experienced in 2023 versus 2022 is primarily due to lower pass-through fuel and purchased power
costs. in rough numbers, the twelve-month average cost of gas @ 12/31/2023 decreased by over $4 per Mmbtu, which
was over a 60% decrease versus the twelve-month ending 12/31/2022. 2023 Coal costs meanwhile increased by
approximately 60 cents per Mmbtu versus 2022 but we were able to decrease coal generoaon, and we increased gas
generation MWhs by over 60% versus the prior year to take advantage of the pricing. Purchased power cost also
decreased by over $29 per MWh over the same period. The lower cost of fuel and purchased power was passed through
to the Members in the form of lower energy rates which reduced revenues.

Part A Line 7, Operating Expense - Other Power Supply was $49.7M (down 24.4M/32.9%)- What does this account
include and what drove the figure to be substantially lower in 2023?
This account includes the demand and energy costs of purchased power. As noted above the average cost of purchased
power decreased in 2023 versus 2022.

There were sizable increases in (Part A) Line 24, Interest on Long-Term Debt, and Line 26, Other Interest Expense. lt
appears that this may have been the primary cause of the negative Operating Margins (line 30). Is it accurate that the
increases in these expenses were related to higher interest rates and increased borrowing of both short and long term
debt? Were there other contributing factor to the negative Operating Margins worthy of note?
Interest on Long-Term Debt was higher in 2023 as compared with 2022 due to increased borrowings and higher interest
rates. Long-Term Debt increased $60m in 2023 driven by bridge loans to finance investments in new generation
capacity. And the weighted average cost of Long-Term debt increased 1.3% in 2023.

Conversely, AEPCO saw increases in Interest Income (Line 31- up $2,166,475/277%). Is it accurate to assume this was
related to higher interest rates as well? Yes

Line 34, Other Non-Operating Income (net) $460,207 (up 1,061,280/176%). Can you tell us what this account is
comprised of?
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The increase is primarily due to a one-time gain of$900k on the sole of transmission assets.

Please let me know if you'd like to pass this along to the Borrower, or if you'd prefer for me to contact them
directly. Out be out of the office on Friday, but back in on Monday. Thanks for your help.

Doug Jenkins
Senior Loan Specialist
Office of Loan Origination and Approval
U.S. Department of Agriculture
1400 Independence Ave.. S.W.
Room 4 I 53
Washington, D.C. 20250
Phone: 202.720.0453
www.rurdev.usda.gov

This electronic message contains information generated by the USDA solely for the intended recipients. Any
unauthorized interception of this message or the use or disclosure of the information it contains may violate the law and
subject the violator to civil or criminal penalties. If you believe you have received this message in error, please notify the
sender and delete the email immediately.

EXTERNAL EMAIL:  Do not  open at tachments/click links if source is unknown. Please repor t  all phishing at tempts to

f ish in az t.coo

EXTERNAL EMAIL: Do not  open at tachments/click links if source is unknown. Please repor t  all phishing at tempts to

fishing az1t.coo

s



Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Computation of Various Financial Ratios

Sources: RUS Form 12
Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2021, 2022, & 2023

Description
RUS FORM 12
12 Mos. Ended

12/31/2022

RUS FORM 12
12 Mos. Ended

12/31/2021

s

s

3,147,132 s
4,165,182

(43,337)
7,268,977 s

9,649,969 s
4,319,229

(73,815)
13,895,383 s

RUS FORM 12
12 Mos. Ended

12/31/2023

Unaudited
3,198,528
6,717,646
(169,374)

9,746,800

Margins for Interest Calculation :
Net Patronage Capital or Margins
Interest on Long Term Debt [A]
Less Unsecured Interest on Long Term Debt [B]
Margins for Interest [C]

3.27 1.76 1.49Margins for Interest Ratio (MFI): [D]=C/(A+B)

s 176,446,686 s 182,477,732179,593,819 s
Equity Balance:

Total Equity

s 125,000,000Required Equity Balance























































Jasin Glasner

Fr o m:

Sent:

To :

Cc:

Subject :

At t ac h men t s :

Jasin Glasner

Tuesday ,  February  25,  2025 10:14 AM

Jenkins,  Doug -  RD,  MD'

Peter  Scott

RE:  [External Emai l]FW :  AZ0028 U45-  Missing i tems and Questions

Fi tch 2022 Rating.pdf ;  Fi tch No Ac tion 2023.pdf ,  Fi tch No Ac tion 2024.pdf ;  SandP

Globa l_Feb- 272024. pdf

Hello Doug,

The last credit rating report from Fitch was issued on 9/12/2022. In 2023 and 2024 Fitch issued "Review - No Action"
releases, which left AEPCO's credit rating and outlook unchanged. I have attached Fitch's 9/12/2022 credit rating report
and the 2023 and 2024 "Review-no Action" releases for your reference.

The last S&P credit rating report as was released on 02/27/2024, which I have also attached.

Please let us know if you need anything else.

Thank you,

From: Jenkins, Doug - RD, MD <doug.jenkins@usda.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2025 6:45 AM
To: Jasin Glasner <jglasner@azgt.coop>
Subject: RE: [External Email]FW: AZ0028 U45- Missing Items and Questions

Good morning Jasin-

Did AEPCO receive an updated ratings report from Fitch? The last full report we have is from 2022.

Doug Jenkins
Senior Loan Specialist
Office of Loan Origination and Approval
Rural Utilities Service, Electric Program
U.S. Department of Agriculture

Phone: 202.720.0453

>; Brittany MoncadaScott az .coo

Fr o m: Jasin Glasner < Iasner az t .coo  >

Sent: Monday, December 23, 2024 9:28 AM

To: Jenkins, Doug - Ro, MD <doug.ienkins@usda.,¢zov>

Cc: McGraw, Larry - RD, NM <larry.mc9,raw@usda.gov>, Peter Scott <
<bmoncada@azgt.coop>
Subject: [External Email]FW: AZ0028 U45- Missing Items and Questions

[External Email]
If this message comes from an unexpected sender or references a vague/unexpected topic;

1



Use caution before clicking links or opening attachments.
Please send any concerns or suspicious messages to: Spam.Abuse@usda.gov

Hello Doug,

Please see attached items requested and responses to your questions below (in red italics). Please let us know if you

have any additional questions.

Happy holidays!

Jas in  Glasner , Financ ial Contro ller Arizona
. latiner az t .coo GeT
Mobile: 310-707-5861 I Office: 520-586-5114

Tw. ;hl . rx hur¢\ "  (m i n  A n n

Cooperatives

1000 S. Hwy 80 | Benson, AZ 85602

Notice: This message and any attachments are for the sole and conNdentlal use of the intended recipients and may contain proprietary
and/or confidential information which may be privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure.

>Scott az t.coo

From: McGraw, Larry - Ro, NM <larry.mcgraw@usda.eov>

Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2024 3:06 PM
To: Brittany Moncada <bmoncada@azgt.coot:>>

Cc: Jenkins, Doug - RD, MD <doug.ienkins@usda.gov>, Peter Scott <

Subject: FW: AZ0028 U45- Missing Items and Questions

Brittany,

Please see the email from Doug and respond directly to him, since I will be on leave
until January 6.

Merry Christmas to all!

Larry McGraw
General Field Representative
Rural Utilities Service-Electric, Rural Development
United States Department of Agriculture
Phone: 505.892.0353 I Cell: 505.235.6312
https:llwvvw.rd.usda.qov/proqrams-services/all-proqramslelectric-proqrams

"Together, America Prospers"

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

From: Jenkins, Doug - RD, MD <doug.ienkins@usda.gov>

Sent: Thursday, December 19, 2024 2:48 PM
To: McGraw, Larry - Ro, NM <larrv.mcgraw@usda.gov>
Subject: AZ0028 U45- Missing Items and Questions

Good afternoon Larry-

2



I've been working on the loan for Arizona 28 over the last few days. There are a few items I need to request from the
borrower, along with a few questions regarding their 2023 Form 12.

Missing Items

2-

3-

1- We need the Borrower to provide their MFI for 20212023. Please see atfachedfile of compliance coverage
ratios.
Additionally, the Long Range Financial Forecast does not contain the calculations for MFI. Since this is a
requirement under the Indenture, the LRFF must include these calculations. Please have the Borrower provide
an updated LRFF or an addendum with the MFI projections. Please see attached updated LRFF (wehave added
MF/ to page 15).
We need their most recent credit ratings from two rating agencies. Please see attached latest reports from Fitch
and S&P.

Form 12 (2023 Form 12 attached for reference)
As calculated from the 2023 RUS Form 12, the Borrower had Total Operation Revenues & Patronage Capital of $225
million in 2023, which was $66.2M (22.74%) lower than the previous year (2022). This reductions corresponds with a
$66.3 million (25.63%) reduction in Electric Energy Revenues. There was a reduction of $67.8 million (28%) in Operating
expenses (mostly furl costs). Was this past to the Borrower's members through lower rates (fuel cost adjustment),
thereby reducing the revenues collected in 2023? I just need to provide an accurate explanation for the lower revenues.
The lower revenue experienced in 2023 versus 2022 is primarily due to lower pass-throughfuel and purchased power
costs. in rough numbers, the twelve-monfh average cost of gas @ 12/31/2023 decreased by over $4 per Mmbtu, which
was over a 60% decrease versus the twelve-month ending 12/31/2022. 2023 Cool costs meanwhile increased by
approximately 60 cents per Mmbtu versus 2022 but we were able to decrease coal generation, and we increased gas
generation MWhs by over 60% versus the prior year to take advantage of the pricing. Purchased power cost also
decreased by over $29 per MWh over the same period. The lower cost of fuel and purchased power was passed through
to the Members in theform of lower energy rates which reduced revenues.

Part A Line 7, Operating Expense - Other Power Supply was $49.7M (down 24.4M/32.9%)- What does this account
include and what drove the figure to be substantially lower in 2023?
This account includes the demand and energy costs of purchased power. As noted above the average cost of purchased
power decreased in 2023 versus 2022.

There were sizable increases in (Part A) Line 24, Interest on Long-Term Debt, and Line 26, Other Interest Expense. It
appears that this may have been the primary cause of the negative Operating Margins (line 30). is it accurate that the
increases in these expenses were related to higher interest rates and increased borrowing of both short and long term
debt? Were there other contributing factor to the negative Operating Margins worthy of note?
Interest on LongTerm Debt was higher in 2023 as compared with 2022 due to increased borrowings and higher interest
rates. Long-Term Debt increased $60m in 2023 driven by bridge loans to finance investments in new generation
capacity. And the weighted average cost of Long-Term debt increased 1.3% in 2023.

Conversely, AEPCO saw increases in Interest Income (Line 31- up $2,166,475/277%). Is it accurate to assume this was
related to higher interest rates as well? Yes

Line 34, Other Non-Operating Income (net) $460,207 (up 1,061,280/176%). Can you tell us what this account is
comprised of?
The increase is primarily due to a one-time gain of s900k on the sale of transmission assets.

Please let me know if you'd like to pass this along to the Borrower, or if you'd prefer for me to contact them
directly. Out be out of the office on Friday, but back in on Monday. Thanks for your help.
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Doug Jenkins
Senior Loan Specialist
Office of Loan Origination and Approval
U.S. Department of Agriculture
1400 Independence Ave. S.W.
Room 4153
Washington, D.C. 20250
Phone: 202.720.0453
www.rurdev.usda.gov

This electronic message contains information generated by the USDA solely for the intended recipients. Any
unauthorized interception of this message or the use or disclosure of the information it contains may violate the law and
subject the violator to civil or criminal penalties. If you believe you have received this message in error, please notify the
sender and delete the email immediately.

EXTERNAL EMAIL: Do not open attachments/click links if source is unknown. Please report all phishing attempts to
fish in az t.coo

EXTERNAL EMAIL: Do not open attachments/click links if source is unknown. Please report all phishing attempts to
fish in az t.coo
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Fitch Ratings

RATING ACTION COMMENTARY

Fitch Affirms Arizona Electric
Power Cooperative's

Obligations at 'A'; Outlook
Stable
Mon 12 Sep, 2022 - 1:44 PM ET

Fitch Ratings - San Francisco - 12 Sep 2022: Fitch Ratings has affirmed the rating on the

following Arizona Electric Power Cooperative (AEPCO) obligations at 'A':

--$4.2 million Cochise County, AZ solid waste disposal revenue bonds.

Fitch has also affirmed AEPCO's Issuer Default Rating (IDR) at 'A'.

The Rating Outlook is Stable.

ANALYTICAL CONCLUSION

The 'A' rating reflects the cooperative's historically stable financial performance and

considers increasing leverage as a result of higher capital spending on new generation and

transmission assets. Fitch expects AEPCO's financial profile to weaken slightly over the

near term but return to levels consistent with the current rating through Fitch's forward-

looking base and stress case scenario analysis.



The rating is supported by a strong revenue defensibility assessment and very low

operating costs. The revenue defensibility assessment is based on the cooperative's very

strong contractual framework but is constrained by the regulatory oversight provided by

the Arizona Corporate Commission (ACC) and the credit quality of its members. AEPCO's

operating risk assessment reflects the Fitch-calculated cost burden that has averaged

below 5.0 cents/kWh over the past five years and a weaker operating risk assessment as a

result of the cooperative's reliance on its single Apache generating station.

AEPCO's leverage ratio, measured as net adjusted debt-to-adjusted funds available for

debt service (FADS), increases to a peak of 8.2x under Fitch's standard stress assumptions

but returns to 6.6x, which is appropriate for the current rating. Overall, the stress considers

the impact of a hypothetical but unlikely decline of 13.3% and 6.9% in energy demand in

fiscals 2022 and 2023, respectively, followed by a recovery thereafter.

CREDIT PROFILE

AEPCO is a wholesale generation and transmission cooperative that serves six member-

owners located throughout Arizona and parts of California and New Mexico. Members are

electric distribution cooperatives that serve a largely rural, residential and non-

concentrated customer base with a combined meter count of approximately 170,000 Class

A members. Member power sales contracts provide for full cost recovery under the take-

and-pay contracts that extend to Dec. 31, 2035.

AEPCO has six Class A member-owners and five Class D members. The Class A members

have full recovery, take-and-pay power sales agreements with AEPCO, and an allocated

capacity in its resources that accommodates several members' partial requirements

participation. Class A members include three partial requirements members with allocated

capacity of 88.6%: Mohave Electric Cooperative (35.8%), Sulphur Springs Valley Electric

Cooperative (A/Stable, 31.7%), and Trico Electric Cooperative (21.1%) and three all

requirements members: Graham County Electric Cooperative (7.6%), Anza Electric (2.5%),

and Duncan Valley Electric Cooperative (1.3%).

AEPCO's Class D members do not have power sales agreements with AEPCO but instead

receive economic energy purchases, and scheduling and trading services. The Class D

contracts generally extend for a minimum of two years and are renewed annually until

terminated by either party with a six-month notice. Class D members include Valley

Electric Association, Central Arizona Water Conservation District (AA/Stable), Southwest

Public Power Agency, Lincoln County Power District #1, and Metropolitan Water District

of Southern California (AA+/Stable).



KEY RATING DRIVERS

Revenue Defensibi l i ty: 'a'

Strong Purchaser Credit Quality; State Rate Regulation

AEPCO's strong revenue defensibility reflects the purchaser credit quality of AEPCO's

largest Class A members and the terms of the unconditional wholesale take-and-pay

contracts AEPCO has with Class A members. The wholesale contracts provide for full cost

recovery. However, AEPCO and member rates are state regulated, which limits the

assessment even though cost recovery has been timely and suMcient to maintain financial

stability.

Operating Risk: 'a'

Very Low Operating Costs; High Lifecycle Investment Needs

AEPCO's strong operating risk assessment reflects its very low five-year average operating

cost burden of 4.8 cents per kilowatt hour (kwh), but is constrained by weaker operating

cost flexibility given the cooperative's asset concentration and reliance on a single power

generation station, the Apache Generation Station. Fitch considers AEPCO's lifecycle

investment costs as high, however age and reliability concerns are somewhat addressed

through an increased capital program for new generation and transmission assets over the

next few years.

Financial Profi le: 'a'

Higher Capital Spending; Increasing Leverage

AEPCO's financial profile is assessed as strong given leverage that has ranged from 5.9x to

6.8x over the last five years. Leverage is expected to increase to a high of 8.2x through a

Fitch stress case mostly as a result of increased capital spending and higher energy costs.

AEPCO revenues are somewhat insulated from a downturn in energy sales due to a large

fixed price component in the rate structure. The cooperative's liquidity profile is neutral

with days liquidity on hand of 145 days at the end of 2021 and coverage of full obligations

(COFO) of 1.4x.

Asymmetric Addit ional Risk Considerations

No asymmetric additional risk considerations affected the rating.



RATING SENSITIVITIES

Factors that could, individually or collectively, lead to positive rating action/upgrade:

-Improvement in AEPCO's financial profile as reflected in sustained leverage below 6.0x in

Fitch's base case and stress case,

-Improved member credit quality evidenced by a Purchaser Credit Index (PCI) below 1.5.

Factors that could, individually or collectively, lead to negative rating action/downgrade:

-A deteriorating financial profile, as represented by a sustained leverage above 8.0x in

Fitch's base case or stress case,

-Higher than anticipated capital spending related to the new generation capital program,

-Less supportive or timely rate regulation,

-Weakened member credit quality evidenced by a PCI consistently above 2.5.

BEST/WORST CASE RATING SCENARIO

International scale credit ratings of Sovereigns, Public Finance and Infrastructure issuers

have a best-case rating upgrade scenario (defined as the 99th percentile of rating

transitions, measured in a positive direction) of three notches over a three-year rating

horizon, and a worst-case rating downgrade scenario (defined as the 99th percentile of

rating transitions, measured in a negative direction) of three notches over three years. The

complete span of best- and worst-case scenario credit ratings for all rating categories

ranges from 'AAA' to 'D'. Best- and worst-case scenario credit ratings are based on historical

performance. For more information about the methodology used to determine sector-

specific best- and worst-case scenario credit ratings, visit

https://www.f itchratings.com/site/re/10111579.

SECURITY

AEPCO's IDR reflects Fitch's assessment of the cooperative's vulnerability to default on its

financial obligations. The Cochise County solid waste disposal revenue bonds are secured

under a mortgage on substantially all of AEPCO's assets.

REVENUE DEFENSIBILITY



AEPCO's very strong revenue source characteristics are supported by long-term wholesale

contracts with its Class A members that expire in 2035. These contracts provide forfulI

cost recovery on the partial load requirements provided by AEPCO. Although Class A

members are initially obligated to pay AEPCO for full cost recovery based on their

allocated capacity percentage, the contracts provide for the unlimited reallocation of costs

among contracted purchasers in the event of another member's payment default. The

cooperative's fiscal 2021 total revenues were comprised of Class A - firm sales (75%), Class

D scheduled sales (9%), nonmember sales (8%), over/under recovery of fuel/purchased

power (8%) and other sources (less than 1%).

Rate Flexibility

The ACC regulates the rates and financing plans of most Arizona-based electric utilities,

including AEPCO and its five Arizona-based members. The risk of rate recovery is partially

addressed by ACC's use of a streamlined rate process. Additionally, AEPCO's rate

structure, approved by the ACC, includes rate adjustors related to purchased power and

fuel, environmental compliance, and transmission costs, reducing potential lags in

recovering costs.

AEPCO's rates include fixed charges, operation and maintenance (O&M) charges, a base

energy rate and other energy charges in total designed to recover the costs associated with

its generation fleet. Fixed and O&M rates are assigned based on each Class A member's

allocated capacity. Energy rates are determined by the member's resource participation.

In March 2022, AEPCO filed an amended rate case with the ACC for a 9.37% increase in

generation revenues and 2.89% increase in transmission revenues, resulting in projected

overall net margins of approximately $4.6 million. The rate case largely addresses the

implementation of cost of service and rate design changes for AEPCO's Class A members

through a newly developed billing system, designed to increase transparency and to shift

costs from a tariffed basis to a contractual basis. A hearing on the rate case has been

scheduled for February 2023 with a likely decision to follow shortly thereafter. AEPCO's

last rate action in 2013 was approved as requested by the commission.

Purchaser Credit Quality

AEPCO's purchaser credit quality weakened in 2021 to an indexed score of 2.4 from a 2.0

score in 2020. The combined score is based on the credit quality of its largest three

members representing 88.6% of AEPCO allocated capacity. These are Mohave Electric

Cooperative (MEC), Sulphur Springs Valley Electric Cooperative (SSVEC) and Trico Electric

Cooperative (TEC).



All three members demonstrate a strong ability to absorb rate increases. SSVEC

demonstrates a stronger financial profile and rate competitiveness. Trico's ability to absorb

rate increases is supported by its stronger service area characteristics and financial profile,

despite weaker rate competitiveness. Mohave exhibited a weaker financial profile in 2021

with days cash dropping below 30 days.

The region's transportation infrastructure includes the Douglas Port of Entry, the second-

largest commercial port in Arizona in terms of import/export value, supported by a network

of state highways providing easy access to Interstate-10. Fort Huachuca, the state's largest

military installation, located in Cochise County, is a center for U.S. Army intelligence

training, and historically represents a cornerstone of the local economy. The Fort is not a

direct electric power customer of the AEPCO membership but receives related services

from SSVEC.

MEC, SSVEC, and Mohave serve predominantly residential loads, although AEPCO expects

commercial growth to follow. Mohave's service area is realizing growth related to a new

and sizable mining operation under development. Strong service area growth in TRlCO's

service area stems from strong outgrowth from Tucson.

OPERATING RISK

AEPCO's operating cost burden is considered very low with a Fitch-calculated five-year

average of 4.83 cents/kWh, but increased to 6.1 cents/kWh in 2021 mostly as a result of

higher fuel and purchased power expenses, and higher one-time costs associated with

winter storm Uri. The operating costs are driven by gas price trends but have been

historically offset by an increase in Class D sales which have lowered the overall power

costs.

Operating Cost Flexibility

Fitch assesses AEPCO's operating cost flexibility as weaker as a result of the cooperative's

capacity reliance on the 551-megawatt (MW) Apache Power Generation Station (Apache),

comprised of 175MW coal and 376MW gas~fired units. Apache is expected to remain in

service through 2035. Additional generation capacity is available from a small hydroelectric

capacity entitlement of up to 30 MW, and purchased and solar power up to 28.6 MW.

AEPCO continues to work with all of its members to evaluate additional economic

renewable options, even though AEPCO and other electric cooperatives are excluded from

the state of Arizona's renewable portfolio standard mandate.



AEPCO's current power supply exceeds its projected obligations through 2026. Available

power supply has been aided by the stable load profile of its all-requirements members and

reduced load from its three largest members who negotiated changes in their power sales

agreements to partial requirements from all requirements to take advantage of resource

procurement flexibility. The first member to do so was MEC in 2001, followed by SSVEC

(2008) and TEC (2011). AEPCO provides the majority of its partial requirement members'

energy requirements as well as their trading and scheduling services.

AEPCO provides scheduling and trading services to all of its Class A and D members

through the Alliance for Cooperative Energy Services Power Marketing, LLC (ACES), of

which it is an equity member. AEPCO views Class D members as beneficial to Class A

members and its overall portfolio by providing new revenue to drive down scheduling and

trading fees and diversity that promotes lower overall costs.

Environmental Considerations and Clean Energy Transition

As a wholesale generation and transmission cooperative, AEPCO is not subject to the state

of Arizona's renewable energy standard which applies to regulated investor-owned utilities

and retail suppliers and requires 15% of energy to come from renewable resources by

2025.

One of AEPCO's all-requirements Class A members, Anza Electric Cooperative, is located

in California and subject to California's renewable portfolio standard (RPS). The RPS

requires California utilities to reach 100% clean energy by 2045, in addition to the state

RPS requirement of 60% renewable energy by 2030. Utilities must also meet interim RPS

targets of-44% by 2024 and 52% by 2027. Anza is poised to meet RPS targets through solar

and battery storage projects that continue to be developed.

Capital Planning and Management

Fitch considers lifecycle investment needs high based on its estimate of AEPCO's 22-year

average life of plant and five-year historical capital expenditures equal to 78% of

depreciation. AEPCO's five-year capital spending projections indicate an increase to a total

of $151 million, comprised of new generation assets and transmission projects. The

cooperative's plan enhances the system's summer energy availability and reliability, and

expands the system's transmission footprint to prepare for future member and customer

growth.

FINANCIAL PROFILE



AEPCO's financial performance over the past five years has been strong, supported by

stable financial metrics and an overall reduction in debt. AEPCO's leverage ratio declined to

a low of 5.9x in 2019 and has marginally increased the past two years to a five-year high of

6.8x in 2021. Total outstanding debt has declined from a high of $259 million in 2017 to

$219 million in 2021. Coverage of full obligations has improved through reductions in

operating expenses and has averaged 1.3x over the past five years.

AEPCO's liquidity profile is neutral to the rating with 43 days cash on hand in 2021.

Additional liquidity is provided through AEPCO's $100 million line of credit ($50 million

each with CoBank and Cooperative Finance Corporation [CFC]), of which approximately

$56 million remained available at fiscal year-end 2021, providing a liquidity cushion of 145

days. A reduction in cash and an increase in draws on the lines of credit have funded

additional capital spending on transmission-related projects

Fitch Analytical Stress Test (FAST) - Base and Stress Cases

AEPCO's operating performance, as evidenced by the results of Fitch's scenario analysis, is

expected to experience an increase in leverage through the next three years as the

cooperative is expected to fund approximately $150 million of generation and transmission

projects through a combination of rates, short-term and long-term debt. Leverage is

expected to peak in fiscal 2024 with the issuance of approximately $87 million debt, before

declining over the following two years of the forward look. Fitch's base case is informed by

AEPCO's financial forecast and incorporates management's assumptions of energy sales

growth of 1% reflecting moderate growth in sales at the member level. Fitch's base case

suggests leverage is likely to increase to a high of 7.6x before declining back to 6.1x in 2026.

Fitch's stress case generally follows the base case assumptions, but applies stress by

imposing reductions to the cooperative's energy sales for two years, followed by a three-

year recovery based on AEPCO's historical energy sales trends. The stress case holds other

expense growth to the base case level, although the stress case further reflects the addition

of simulated rate adjustments to emulate AEPCO's rate structure, which includes a fixed

cost component irrespective of energy sales variation

.The ACC has a 30-day period to review adjustments, but AEPCO reports that the ACC

does not have a history of rejecting AEPCO adjustments. The stress case, inclusive of Fitch

adjustments to reflect fixed costs in the AEPCO rate structure, indicates that AEPCO's

financial profile remains stable and supportive of the current rating through the stress

scenario.



Debt Proflle

AEPCO'sdebt profile is neutral to the rating. The cooperative's total debt of $219 million

on as of Dec. 31, 2021 consists primarily of Federal Financing Bank (FFB) obligations

guaranteed by RUS. Quarterly principal and interest installments of the FFB debt extend

through 2035. The balance of AEPCO's debt includes solid waste disposal revenue bonds

that mature in 2024, notes, and short-term debt.

In addition to the sources of information identified in Fitch's applicable criteria specified

below, this action was informed by information from Lumesis.

REFERENCES FOR SUBSTANTIALLY MATERIAL SOURCE CITEDAS KEY DRIVEROF
RATING

The principal sources of information used in the analysis are described in the Applicable

Criteria.

ESG CONSIDERATIONS

Unless otherwise disclosed in this section, the highest level of ESG credit relevance is a

score of '3'. This means ESG issues are credit-neutral or have only a minimal credit impact

on the entity, either due to their nature or the way in which they are being managed by the

entity. For more information on Fitch's ESG Relevance Scores, visit

www.fitchratings.com/esg
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PARTICIPATION STATUS

The rated entity (and/or its agents) or, in the case of structured finance, one or more of the

transaction parties participated in the rating process except that the following issuer(s), if

any, did not participate in the rating process, or provide additional information, beyond the

issuer's available public disclosure.

APPLICABLE CRITERIA

U.S. Public Power Rating Criteria (pub. 09 Apr 2021) (including rating assumption

sensitivity)

Public Sector, Revenue-Supported Entities Rating Criteria (pub. 01 Sep 2021) (including

rating assumption sensitivity)



APPLICABLE MODELS

Numbers in parentheses accompanying applicable model(s) contain hyperlinks to criteria

providing description of model(s).

FAST Econometric API - Fitch Analytical Stress Test Model, v3.0.0 (1)

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Dodd-Frank Rating Information Disclosure Form

Solicitation Status

Endorsement Policy

ENDORSEMENT STATUS

EU Endorsed, UK EndorsedCochise County (AZ)

DISCLAIMER & DISCLOSURES

All Fitch Ratings (Fitch) credit ratings are subject to certain limitations and disclaimers.

Please read these limitations and disclaimers by following this link:

https://www.fitchratings.com/understandingcreditratings. In addition, the following

https://www.fitchratings.com/rating-definitions-document details Fitch's rating definitions

for each rating scale and rating categories, including definitions relating to default. ESMA

and the FCA are required to publish historical default rates in a central repository in

accordance with Articles 11(2) of Regulation (EC) No 1060/2009 of the European

Parliament and of the Council of 16 September 2009 and The Credit Rating Agencies

(Amendment etc.) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019 respectively.

Published ratings, criteria, and methodologies are available from this site at all times. Fitch's

code of conduct, confidentiality, conflicts of interest, aMliate firewall, compliance, and

other relevant policies and procedures are also available from the Code of Conduct section

of this site. Directors and shareholders' relevant interests are available at

https:// .htchratings.com/site/regulatory. Fitch may have provided another permissible

or ancillary service to the rated entity or its related third parties. Details of permissible or

ancillary service(s) for which the lead analyst is based in an ESMA- or FCA-registered Fitch

Ratings company (or branch of such a company) can be found on the entity summary page

for this issuer on the Fitch Ratings website.



In issuing and maintaining its ratings and in making other reports (including forecast

information), Fitch relies on factual information it receives from issuers and underwriters

and from other sources Fitch believes to be credible. Fitch conducts a reasonable

investigation of the factual information relied upon by it in accordance with its ratings

methodology, and obtains reasonable verification of that information from independent

sources, to the extent such sources are available for a given security or in a given

jurisdiction. The manner of Fitch's factual investigation and the scope of the third-party

verification it obtains will vary depending on the nature of the rated security and its issuer,

the requirements and practices in the jurisdiction in which the rated security is offered and

sold and/or the issuer is located, the availability and nature of relevant public information,

access to the management of the issuer and its advisers, the availability of pre-existing

third-party verifications such as audit reports, agreed-upon procedures letters, appraisals,

actuarial reports, engineering reports, legal opinions and other reports provided by third

parties, the availability of independent and competent third- partyverification sources with

respect to the particular security or in the particular jurisdiction of the issuer, and a variety

of other factors. Users of Fitch's ratings and reports should understand that neither an

enhanced factual investigation nor any third-party verification can ensure that all of the

information Fitch relies on in connection with a rating or a report will be accurate and

complete. Ultimately, the issuer and its advisers are responsible for the accuracy of the

information they provide to Fitch and to the market in offering documents and other

reports. In issuing its ratings and its reports, Fitch must rely on the work of experts,

including independent auditors with respect to financial statements and attorneys with

respect to legal and tax matters. Further, ratings and forecasts of financial and other

information are inherently forward-looking and embody assumptions and predictions

about future events that by their nature cannot be verified as facts. As a result, despite any

verification of current facts, ratings and forecasts can be affected by future events or

conditions that were not anticipated at the time a rating or forecast was issued or affirmed.

The information in this report is provided "as is" without any representation or warranty of

any kind, and Fitch does not represent or warrant that the report or any of its contents will

meet any of the requirements of a recipient of the report. A Fitch rating is an opinion as to

the creditworthiness of a security. This opinion and reports made by Fitch are based on

established criteria and methodologies that Fitch is continuously evaluating and updating.

Therefore, ratings and reports are the collective work product of Fitch and no individual, or

group of individuals, is solely responsible for a rating or a report. The rating does not

address the risk of loss due to risks other than credit risk, unless such risk is specifically

mentioned. Fitch is not engaged in the offer or sale of any security. All Fitch reports have

shared authorship. Individuals identified in a Fitch report were involved in, but are not



solely responsible for, the opinions stated therein. The individuals are named for contact

purposes only. A report providing a Fitch rating is neither a prospectus nor a substitute for

the information assembled, verified and presented to investors by the issuer and its agents

in connection with the sale of the securities. Ratings may be changed or withdrawn at any

time for any reason in the sole discretion of Fitch. Fitch does not provide investment advice
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Summary:

Arizona Electric Power Cooperative Inc., Rural
Electric Coop

Credit Prof ile

AffirmedA/stable

Arizona Elec Pwr Coop Inc

Long Term Rating

Credit Highlights

S&P Global Ratings affirmed its 'A' issuer credit rating (ICR) on Arizona Electric Power Cooperative Inc. (AEPCO).

The outlook is stable.

Security
The rating reflects our view of AEPCO's overall creditworthiness and capacity and willingness to meet its financial

commitments in full as they come due. It does not apply to any specific financial obligation, as it does not consider the

nature and provisions of those obligations, their standing in bankruptcy or liquidation statutory preferences or the

legality and enforceability of the obligations. The generation and transmission cooperative had $172.8 million in

longterm debt outstanding as of Dec. 31, 2022.

Credit overview
The rating further reflects the following:

About two-thirds of AEPCO's members' energy sales comes from residential customers. We view residential

customers as providing the greatest revenue stability among the classes.

We consider AEPCO's 2022 debt-to-capitalization ratio of 49% favorable. However, our calculations based on

management's projections indicate this ratio will increase to about 67% as the cooperative issues additional debt to

fund new generation assets. We believe these projected levels are manageable for a generation and transmission

cooperative of AEPCO's size.

We view the sound liquidity the utility maintains, together with committed facilities, as available to temper

shortfalls. Total liquidity including unrestricted cash and investments and undrawn lines of credit equaled $121 .4

million, or about 227 days' worth of budgeted fiscal 2023 expenses, as of Nov. 30, 2023.

Historically, AEPCO has posted robust coverage metrics, with annualized fixed-cost coverage (FCC) exceeding 1.4x

in each of the past three years. However AEPCO's historically lagging cost recovery resulted in cash-basis debt

service coverage below 1.0x in 2021 and 2022 due to unanticipated cost increases. AEPCO was able to leverage its

robust liquidity to mitigate the impact on cash flows. Moreover, the cooperative restructured its rates to include a

forward-looldng adjustor with a quarterly or semi-annual true-up, which supplants its historical annual true-up

mechanism which has translated into a year-to-date over-recovery in 2023. Projections indicate operating cash

flows will remain positive, and FCC will be maintained in-line with historical results through 2027.

The cooperative has developed robust transmission interconnections that provide access to regional generation
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Summary Arizona Electric Power Cooperative Inc.; Rural Electric Coop

resources which helps compensate for aging owned generation assets that have competitive shortcomings relative

to regional markets.

S&P Global Ratings also incorporates the following exposures in its assessment:

AEPCO's current generation fleet is exposed to variable fuel prices, with almost half of 2022 energy needs met with

natural gasfired resources. AEPCO procures fuel for these plants daily, which resulted in unbudgeted expenses in

fiscal years 2021 and 2022.However, AEPCO executes gas hedges on behalf of its members which partially

mitigates this risk.

Fuel and energy cost increases have translated into significant member rate increases. Average member rates rose

to 8.24 cents per ldlowatt hour (/kwh) in 2021 from 5.82 cents/kWh) although they are projected to remain

generally flat. Nevertheless, these rate pressures, coupled with member service territories in counties that display

below-average income levels, constrain AEPCO's ratemaking flexibility.

Compared with cooperative utilities with autonomous ratemaking authority, Arizona Corporation Commissions

(ACC) regulation of AEPCO's rates and exposure to adversarial rate proceedings could expose the cooperative's

financial performance to delayed rate relief or cost disallowances. However, we view the ACC's creation of an

abbreviated rate proceeding for cooperative utilities and the availability of pass-through mechanisms as mitigating

the utility's exposure to regulatory lag.

Laws allowing municipal annexations of unincorporated areas of members' service territories present an exposure

that can erode customer numbers and energy sales. However, AEPCO's customer count and energy sales have been

stable.

Environmental, social, and governance
AEPCO has reduced its coal footprint with electricity production from coal comprising 23% of the cooperative's

power supply in 2023, down from 49% in 2017. The decline largely resulted from the conversion of a generating unit to

natural gas from coal in 2017. The cooperative plans to add solar and battery projects to its resources, and projects

coal will comprise just 17% of generation sources by 2026. However, AEPCO's future power supply will remain

concentrated in natural gas and coal resources (projected at 63% of total energy by 2026) to ensure a reliable baseload

power supply Given its current carbon concentration we believe AEPCO's environmental risks are elevated.

Energy Information Administration data show that members' weighted-average retail rates are generally above state

averages, in part owing to the rural nature of these systems. We believe this level of rate disparity, coupled with recent

rate increases contributes to our view of elevated social risk.

We continue to monitor the strength and stability of electric utilities' revenue streams for evidence of delinquent

payments or other revenue erosion. Inflation as measured by the consumer price index has remained above 3% in

recent months and S&P Global Economics forecasts elevated interest rates persisting through the first half of 2024,

with moderate softening through the remainder of the year. (See "U.S. Economic Forecast Update: A Sturdy Job

Market Keeps Growth Going" published Feb. 21 2024 on RatingsDirect). In addition Bureau of Labor Statistics data

show that electricity price inflation continues to outpace the overall consumer price index. The amalgam of material

increases in delinquent consumer, credit card, and auto loans, along with October's resumption of student loan

payments and drawdowns of household savings garnered during the pandemic will likely compound the financial
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pressures facing electricity consumers.

Following stronger-than-expected U.S. economic growth through the fourth quarter of 2023, S&P Global Economics

revised its 2024 real GDP growth forecast to 2.4% from its November 2023 projection of 1.5%. S&P Global Economics

believes that recent business and consumer activity are not sustainable and projects slowing economic activity with

growth of 1.5% in 2025.

Finally, the cooperative's governance factors, including its rate-setting authority and credit-supportive rate-setting

practices are credit neutral Although the utility is subject to rate regulation by the ACC, the regulator has established

a framework for expedited rate proceedings and has provided AEPCO with pass-through mechanisms that limit its

exposure to the regulatory lag that sometimes accompanies regulatory oversight of rates.

Outlook

The stable outlook reflects our expectation of sound financial metrics based on what we consider a supportive rate

regulation framework, and more dynamic cost recovery moving forward. Finally, the outlook reflects projections that

assume steady annual member revenue, and a revenue stream that is highly residential and lacks industrial

concentration, which provide a cushion against potential load volatility.

Downside scenario

We could lower the rating if elevated energy and fuel costs or additional debt needs erode liquidity and/or coverage

relative to forecast levels, or if the resulting passthrough of costs results in insurmountable affordability challenges for

members. In addition we could lower the rating if decarbonization regulation or mandates result in material pressure

on AEPCO's financial metrics or its ability to provide affordable and reliable energy to its members.

Upside scenario

We do not expect to raise the rating during our two-year outlook horizon because AEPCO operates an aging,

carbon-concentrated and somewhat uneconomical generation fleet, although we note the cooperative plans to build

new more economical generation. Furthermore increasing capital needs to fund resource additions constrain upward

rating potential.

Credit Opinion

AEPCO is a generation and transmission cooperative serving six class A member distribution cooperatives primarily in

Arizona and small portions of California and New Mexico. Through its members the utility indirectly serves about

164,000 retail meters.

The cooperative owns 609 megawatts (MW) of generating capacity composed of 383 MW of natural gas-fired

resources, 175 MW of dual-fuel (natural gas or coal), 27.8 MW of hydropower and 23.3 MW of solar. AEPCO also has

a 15 MW purchase power agreement for unspecified energy. Management projects adding approximately 235 MW of

solar and battery energy storage projects and 260 MW of simple cycle gas generation by 2026. To meet its members'

peak summer energy needs, AEPCO supplements its owned resources' production with economic purchases and
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contractual power purchases as needed.

The wholesale power and transmission contracts between the cooperative and its members create joint-and-several

financial obligations among the members such that if a member defaults on its financial obligations, nondefaulting

members must cover shortfalls.

AEPCO's transmission and wholesale power supply contracts with its member distribution cooperatives extend to

2052 and 2060, respectively Transmission contracts provide all transmission service while wholesale power supply

contracts take two forms: all-requirements and partial-requirements contracts.

The partial-requirements contracts established the financial obligations those customers have assumed for owned

generation, depreciation property taxes operating expenses and for the power purchase contracts AEPCO uses to

meet their needs. Members can subscribe to or opt out of additional owned or contracted power supply resources.

Because the larger customers are partial-requirements ones, the utility is not responsible for investing in generation to

serve their growth. The three partial-requirements customers account for about two-thirds of the cooperative's

revenues from electric sales.

AEPCO's three smallest member distribution cooperatives have all-requirements contracts. These members include

Duncan Valley Electric Cooperative Inc. Graham County Electric Cooperative Inc., and Anza Electric Cooperative Inc.

Together, these three represent about 10% of the generation cooperative's revenues from electric sales.

Related Research

Through The ESG Lens 3.0: The Intersection Of ESG Credit Factors And U.S. Public Finance Credit Factors, March

2, 2022

Certain terms used in this report particularly certain adjectives used to express our view on rating relevant factors have specific meanings ascribed
to them in our criteria and should therefore be read in conjunction with such criteria. Please see Ratings Criteria at spglobalcom/radngs for
further information. Complete ratings information is available to RatingsDirect subscribers at www.capitaliq.com. All ratings affected by this rating
action can be found on S8rP Global Ratings public website at spglobalcom/ratings.
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MOSSADAMS@

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.

Report on the Audit  of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. (the
Cooperative), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31 2023 and 2022, and the
related statements of revenues, expenses, and unallocated accumulated margins, and cash flows for
the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (U.S. GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards (Government Auditing Standards), issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the Cooperative and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities o_fManagement.for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Cooperative's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement
date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

1



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. GAAS
and Government Audifing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS and GovernmenfAuditing Standards, we

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Cooperative's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Cooperatives ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Report ing Required by Governm ent AudiHng Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 29,
2024 on our consideration of Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, lnc.'s internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Arizona Electric Power
Cooperative, lnc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

./.IPWZ'74
Portland, Oregon
March 29, 2024
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Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Balance Sheets

December 31, 2023 and 2022

20222023
ASSETS

$$ 760,693,194
29,504,407

786452566
109956,714

UTILITY PLANT
Plant in service
Construction work in progress

790,197,601
458520,050

896,409,280
475040,123

Total utility plant
Less accumulated depreciation

331 ,677,551421,369,157Utility plant, net

INVESTMENTS
Restricted
Unrestricted

7,169,808
3,827,067

6,968708
4,238,986

Total investments 11,207,694 10,996,875

34,599,219
3,409,183

39211 237

31 ,279,858
2,717,707

66,246,451

31,147,334

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

General unrestricted
Restricted

Accounts receivable
Accumulated under-recovered fuel and purchased

power costs
Inventories, at average cost

Coal and natural gas
Materials and supplies

Prepayments and other current assets
Notes receivable

24471 ,866
16,303707

4,582,669
345,953

10,649,701
14,788,973

3,787,830
375,632

Total current assets 122923,834 160,993,486

DEFERRED DEBITS 51,619,914

Total assets $ 607,120,599

37,116,241

$ 540,784,153

See accompanying notes.
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Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Balance Sheets

December 31, 2023 and 2022

20222023

MEMBERSHI P CAPI TAL AND LI ABI LI TI ES

$$ 830

170,853,120

8 , 739869

930

179,278,276

3,198,527

MEMBERSHI P CAPI TAL

Membership fees
Patronage capi tal

Unalloc ated ac c umulated margins

179,593,819182,477,733Total membership capi tal

134783 , 087 139,093,621

2200 , 000

16,500,000

(371 ,801 )
1,100,409

69,799,931
12,948,819

(642,711 )

1,455,993

LONG- TERM D EBT

Federal Financ ing Bank

Solid W aste Disposal Revenue Bonds

Cooperative Finance Corporation

CoBank

Debt issuance costs

Financ ing lease obligation

218,345,119 158,522,229Total longter m debt

36,606,003

884,627
15,307,627

29,069,038

2,390,262

58, 216

59,029,412

28,276,574

697, 519
15,036,954

55,654,507

2,388,009

76,758

6 6 0 0 0 0 0 0

CURRENT LI ABI LI TI ES
Member  advanc es and other  investments

Current matur i ties of  f inanc ing lease obligation
Current matur i ties of  long- term debt

Accounts payable

Accrued proper ty  and business taxes

Accrued interest

Line of credit

Ac c umulated over rec overed fuel and purc hase

power  c osts

Other  accrued liabi li ties

5,001 ,085

5,164,512

Total current liabi li ties

3,616,037

171 ,746,358153,510,782

DEFERRED CREDI TS AND OTHER LI ABI LI TI ES 52,786,965 30,921 ,747

$ 540784,153$ 607,120,599Total membership capital and liabilities

See accompanying notes.
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Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Unallocated Accumulated Margins

Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022

$$ 178,199,951
19,430,320

170,689,638
16328,145

OPERATING REVENUES
Electric energy and transmission

Members
Class A
Class D
Under-recovery of fuel and purchase

power costs
Nonmembers

Other, net

66500,800
25,473700

1 ,627,476

16,817,092
19975,329

1 ,207,020

225,017,224 291 ,232247Total operating revenues

83,744,895
5,460,376

125,650,389
5,126,849

14,560,835
4,760,365

74114,743
14,744,854
20,631 ,148
18,412,214
4,438,980

15695,815
5,316,448

49,718,797
14,666,729
21 ,823,322
16,817,582

4,199,608

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations:

Production
Transmission

Maintenance:
Production
Transmission

Other power supply
Administration and general
Depreciation, amortization and accretion
Wheeling and ancillary charges
Property and other taxes

282440,377Total operating expenses

OPERATING MARGIN 8791 870

217,443,572

7,573,652

(6,173424)
528,686

(8,404442)
4029,317

Interest and interest related expenses, net
Other, net

NET MARGIN 3,198,527 3,147,132

UNALLOCATED ACCUMULATED MARGINS,
beginning of year

PATRONAGE CAPITAL ALLOCATION
9,649,968

(4,057,231 )
8,739,869
(8,739,869)

$$ 8739,8693,198,527UNALLOCATED ACCUMULATED MARGINS, end of year

See accompanying notes.
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Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

20222023

$ 3,198,527 $ 3147, 132

20631 148
(348,226)

240

21 823323
(621 ,102)

240
20160801

(394 34,231 )
(8,730,213)
(1 ,637,667)

265,031
(11 ,964,600)
30,440,026

64964

27,064,893
31 ,147,334

(15,336,899)
(794839)

(14,503,913)
(26,585469)

(18542)
5,001 ,085
1 550,728

CASH FLOW S FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Margin
Adjustments to reconcile net margin to net cash from

operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Patronage capital allocations
Amortization of deferred charges
Liabilities fncurred on Asset Retirement Obligation
Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts and notes receivable
Accumulated underrecovered fuel and purchased power costs
inventor ies
Prepayments and other current assets
Deferred debits
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Accumulated overrecovered fuel and purchased power costs
Accrued property and business taxes and other

5 2 0 8 6 1 6 7

794,104

( 6472292)Net cash from operating activities

(32,639,970)
179,337

(109,810,512)
95,870

CASH FLOW S FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Construction expenditures, net
Purchases and redemptions of investments, net

(109,714,842)Net cash from investing activities (32,460,633)

8,329,429
72,845,619
(6,970588)

(12,564948)

11,411 197
27,351 ,731
22,022396

(14,255563)

CASH FLOW S FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Member advances and other investments net
Proceeds from longterm debt
Borrowing on line of credit
Payments on long-term debt and financing lease obligation

Net cash from financing activities

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS

$

61 ,639,512

4 0 1 0 8 3 7

33,997565

3 8 0 0 8 4 0 2$

46,529,761

7, 596836

26,400,729

33997,565

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS end of  year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW  INFORMATION
Right of use assets acquired in exchange for lease liabilities 2 3 1 5 4 3 9

8,385,900

$

$

5,806,201

6108, 220

$

$Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized

See accompanying notes.
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Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 - Or gan izat ion

Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc. (the Cooperative or AEPCO) is a member owned, nonprofit

Arizona rural generation and transmission electric cooperative organized in 1961 to provide wholesale
electric power and transmission and ancillary services to its member distribution cooperatives,

municipalities and other customers.

Membership of the Cooperative is restricted to electric utilities. The Cooperative has four classes of

members. Class A members consist of three distribution cooperatives with all requirements contracts and
three distribution cooperatives with partial requirements contracts. Currently there are no Class B or C

members. There are f ive Class D members, representing electric utilities other than Class A, B, or C, with
a written agreement for power and/or energy and/or substantial service, represented jointly by one

director. Class A, Class B, Class C, and Class D members are collectively referred to herein as Members.

Note 2 - Summary  o f Sign if ican t Accoun ting  Po lic ies

Sys tem o f accounts - The Cooperative maintains its accounts in accordance with policies and
procedures as prescribed by the Rural Utilities Service (RUS) in conformity with the Uniform System of
Accounts. The Cooperative's accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America as applied in the case of regulated public utilities and are in accordance with
the accounting requirements and rate-making practices of the RUS and the Arizona Corporation

Commission (ACC), the regulatory authorities having jurisdiction.

Accounting for  the effec ts  o f regu lation - Due to the regulation of its rates by the ACC, the
Cooperative prepares its f inancial statements in accordance with ASC 980 Regulated Operations. This
accounting requires a cost-based, regulated enterprise to recognize revenues and expenses in the time

periods when the revenues and expenses are included in rates. This may result in regulatory assets and

liabilities until such time that the related revenues and expenses are included in rates.

Indenture - As of March 1, 2016, AEPCO has an Indenture of Deed of Trust, Security Agreement and

Financing Statement (Indenture), approved by RUS that will allow the Cooperative to explore alternative
f inancing providers in addition to RUS. The indenture consolidates all of AEPCO's secured debt under

one trustee, who will manage the debt portfolio for RUS, reducing RUS reporting requirements, while still
maintaining RUS oversight.

Util i ty  p lan t - Utility plant, consisting primarily of coal and natural gas electric generation facilities and
transmission facilities, is stated at historical cost and includes the costs of outside contractors, direct labor

and materials, allocable overhead and interest charged during construction.

In accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts, the Cooperative capitalizes the interest costs

associated with the borrowing of funds used to f inance construction work in progress (CWIP). Interest

income from construction funds held in trust, if any, is credited to CWIP. Interest costs capitalized on
construction projects was approximately $3,088,000 and $231 ,000 for 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of depreciable property in
accordance with rates prescribed by RUS, averaging 2.56% and 2.60% in 202s and 2022, respectively.
Minor replacements and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. When utility plant is retired, sold, or
otherwise disposed of, the original cost plus the cost of removal less salvage value is charged to
accumulated depreciation, along with any corresponding gain or loss.

The Cooperative assesses its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the fair value is less than the
carrying amount of the asset, a loss is recognized for the difference. The Cooperative has not recorded
any losses resulting from impairment of its long-lived assets.

Asset retirement obligations - Accounting standards require the recognition of an Asset Retirement
Obligation (ARO), measured at estimated fair value, for legal obligations related to decommissioning and
restoration costs associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets in the period in which the
liability is incurred. The initial capitalized asset retirement costs are depreciated over the life of the related
asset, with accretion of the ARO liability classified as an operating expense (see Note 10 - Asset
retirement obligation).

Investments - The Cooperative accounts for its investments in accordance with accounting for certain
investments in debt and equity securities. At December 31, 2023 and 2022, all investment balances are
recorded at fair market value (see Note 3), with the exception of investments in associated organizations
and patronage capital. Investments in associated organizations and patronage capital are carried at cost,
plus capital credits allocated and not retired.

Cash equivalents - The Cooperative considers all investments with an original maturity of 90 days or
less to be cash equivalents. The Cooperative maintains its cash in bank accounts, which, at times,
exceed federally insured limits and has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Restricted cash
consists of special deposits and economic development funds, which are restricted in use.

Receivables - Receivables are recorded when invoices are issued and are written off when they are
determined to be uncollectible. The allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated based on historical
losses, review of specific problem accounts, the existing economic conditions in the industry and the
financial stability of customers. Generally, accounts receivable are considered past due after 30 days. No
allowance was deemed necessary at December 31 , 2023 and 2022.

Inventories -. Inventories consisting of coal, natural gas and materials and supplies, are carried at
average cost.

Deferred debits and credits .- Deferred debits and credits are recorded at cost and either: (1) amortized
over their expected period of benefit or alternate period of time as may be mandated by ACC order or
other regulatory order, if different, or (2) eliminated upon determination of their ultimate disposition.

Debt issuance costs - Debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability are presented on the
balance sheet as a direct reduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability. These costs are
amortized to interest expense over the life of the related debt using the effective interest method. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the total debt issuance costs net of debt was $642,711 and $371 ,801 ,
respectively.
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Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Overhaul costs - The Cooperative accounts for major and minor overhauls using the deferral method.
Accordingly, incurred overhaul costs are deferred and amortized over the overhaul benefit period,
generally three years for minor overhauls and six years for major overhauls. The frequency of overhauls
is based on the operating characteristics and operating profiles of each generating unit (see Note 7).

Leases - The Cooperative determines whether the arrangement is or contains a lease at inception.
Operating and finance leases will be recognized on the balance sheets as rightof-use (ROU) assets and
lease liabilities. ROU assets represent the Cooperative's right to use an underlying asset for the lease
term and lease liabilities represent the Cooperative's obligation to make lease payments arising from the
lease. Lease liabilities and their corresponding ROU assets are recorded based on the present value of
lease payments over the expected remaining lease term. For this purpose, the Cooperative considers
only payments that are fixed and determinable at the time of commencement. The lease ROU assets also
include any lease payments made and adjustments for prepayments and lease incentives. The interest
rate implicit in lease contracts is typically not readily determinable. As a result, the Cooperative will utilize
a weighted average cost of capital rate, as permitted by Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 842 - Leases. Lease terms may include options to
extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Cooperative will exercise that option.

Income tax status - The Cooperative is exempt from income taxes under the provisions of
Section 501 (c)(12) of the Internal Revenue Code, except to the extent of unrelated business income, if
any. The Cooperative follows FASB ASC 740-10, relating to accounting for uncertain tax positions. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Cooperative does not have any uncertain tax positions. The
Cooperative files an exempt organization and unrelated business income tax return in the U.S. federal
jurisdiction and the states of Arizona and California. Based upon its equity membership in ACES (see
Note 3), returns are filed with the states of Arkansas, Georgia, Indiana, Maryland, Minnesota and North
Carolina.

Revenue recognition .-. Revenues are recognized as electric power, electric transmission and other
energy service products and are delivered at rates approved by the ACC. The Cooperative recognizes
operating revenues from wholesale electricity series and electricity transmission services in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Cooperative expects to be entitled in exchange for those sales
and services.

The Cooperative supplies power requirements (energy and demand) to its Members, subject to
substantially identical wholesale power contracts. The Cooperative also supplies power (energy and
demand) to Nonmembers subject to wholesale power contracts. Class A Member revenue is recorded at
either ACC authorized rates or contractual rates and Class D Member and Nonmember revenue is
generally recorded at contractual rates. Based on the invoice practical expedient, revenue is recognized
equal to the amount the Cooperative has the right to invoice. The Cooperative bills its Members monthly,
and payments are due monthly. Substantially all of the Cooperative's accounts receivable relate to
revenues under its contracts with Members and Non-members.
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Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Purchased power and fuel costs -. Purchased power and fuel costs are charged to expense as
incurred. In its October 25, 2013 rate order, the ACC approved a new purchased power and fuel cost
adjustor (the adjustor) for the Cooperative. Starting on November 1, 2013, the new adjustor enables the
Cooperative to accumulate its over and undercollection of fuel and purchased power costs and
subsequently, as approved by the ACC, refund or collect from its Members the amount of over or
undercollection of fuel and purchased power costs. Such amounts are recorded as revenue in the period
the costs are incurred.

Fair value of financial instruments - All of the Cooperatives financial instruments are recorded at fair
market value or carrying value, which approximates fair market value. Investments in associated
organizations and patronage capital are not considered financial instruments because they represent
nontransferable interests in associated organizations. The Cooperative has determined that its financial
instruments fall into the Level 1 category. Level 1 asset valuations are based on assets at the quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets, Level 2 asset valuations are based on quoted prices in
markets that are not active or for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly,
and Level 3 asset valuations are based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair
value measurement (see Note 3).

Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Significant estimates include the adjustor, depreciation, asset retirement obligation and overhaul
amortization. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Recently issued and adopted accounting pronouncements - The Cooperative adopted FASB
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-13 Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, which replaces the incurred loss methodology
with an expected loss methodology that is referred to as the current loss (CECL) methodology. The
measurement of expected credit losses under the CECL methodology is applicable to financial assets
measured at amortized cost, including trade receivables and held-to-maturity debt securities. The
Cooperative adopted the standard on January 1, 2023, utilizing the modified retrospective transition
approach. This standard did not have a material impact on the financial statements.

Subsequent events - Accounting standards require disclosure of the date through which subsequent
events have been evaluated, as well as whether the date is the date the financial statements were issued
or the date the financial statements were available to be issued. The Cooperative has evaluated
subsequent events through March 29, 2024, the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.
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Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Notes to Financial  Statemen ts

Note 3 - Inves tmen ts

Investments at December 31 consist of the following:

$ $Restricted - municipal bonds
Restricted - term certif icates
Investment in associated organizations
Patronage capital
Other

2023
2,809,686
4,219,022
1 ,310,968
2,291 ,639

636,379

2022
2,950,786
4,278,022
1 ,312,768
2,022,545

491 ,754

11 ,050,875
54,000

11267,694
60,000

Subtotal
Less current portion of restricted investments

$ 10,996,875Total $ 11 ,207,694

Contractual maturities of restricted investments at December 31 are as follows:

$$

2022
2,896,786
4,327,022

2023
2,809,686
4,219,022

Due from one year to five years
Due after 10 years

Total $ $7,028,708 7,223,808

Munic ipal bonds - As a condition of National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation's (CFC)
guarantee of the Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds (see Note 8), the Cooperative purchased a
noninterest bearing Debt Service Reserve Certif icate (the certif icate) maturing in 2024 upon f inal

payment of the debt. The proceeds of the certif icate are held by CFC in a Debt Service Reserve Fund

(DSRF). At December 31, 2023, the investment included two municipal bonds for approximately
$1 ,054,000, which bear interest at 5% per annum, respectively and cash of approximately $1 ,755,000. At

December 31, 2022, the investment included three municipal bonds for approximately $2,873,000, which

bear interest at 5% per annum, respectively and cash of approximately $77,000.

Municipal bonds are valued based on quoted market prices for those or similar investments.

Term cer tif icates - The Cooperative is a member of CFC, a notforprofit cooperative financing
institution. As a condition of membership, the Cooperative purchased Subscription Capital Term
Certif icates (SCTCs). The SCTCs, totaling $4,093,022 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively,

bear interest at 5.00% per annum and have maturity dates ranging from 2070 to 2080.

As a condition of the Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds (see Note 8), which are guaranteed by CFC,
the Cooperative purchased a Subordinated Term Certif icate (STC). The STC, totaling $126,000 and

$183,000 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, bears interest at 7.57% per annum and matures
in tull in 2024 upon final payment of the related debt. At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the current portion

of the STC loan guarantee valued at $60,000 and $54,000, respectively, is recorded in current assets as

an accounts receivable.

The SCTCs and STCs are unrated, uncollateralized debt securities of CFC.
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Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Investment in associated organizations - The Cooperative is a member of Sierra. The Cooperative's
membership fee in Sierra was $2,000 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and is carried at
cost. The Cooperative's investment in Sierra was $72,000 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, and is carried at cost (see Note 16).

The Cooperative is an equity member of Alliance for Cooperative Energy Services Power Marketing LLC
(ACES). The Cooperative's investment in ACES was $961 ,610 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, and is accounted for under the cost method of accounting.

The Cooperative invested in the capital of Grand Canyon State Electric Cooperative Association
(GCSECA), which is accounted for under the cost method of accounting. The Cooperative's investment in
GCSECA was $275,358 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Cooperative is a member of CoBank AFB (CoBank). The membership fee is $1 ,000 and is carried at
cost.

The Cooperative is a member of CFC. The membership fee is $1 ,000 and is carried at cost.

The Cooperative holds investments made in the Board of Directors deferred compensation plan program
in Homestead Funds (see Note 5 - Deferred Compensation Plans). The balance in the account at
December 31, 2023 and 2022 was $491 ,754 and $500,084, respectively, and is carried at fair market
value.

Patronage capital - Patronage capital represents capital credit allocation of margins due to the
Cooperative. Such amounts are returned to the Cooperative in accordance with the associated
organization's bylaws and/or at their discretion.

Note 4 - Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents at December 31 consist of the following:

20222023

$$ 547,567
2,861 ,616

510,992
2,206,715

Rural economic development revolving loan program
Other deposits on account

$ $3,409,183 2,717,707Total restricted cash and cash equivalents
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Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 5 - Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable at December 31 consist of the following :

2023 2022

$$ 42,502,689
1 ,880,804

1 1 ,399,923

Member energy sales
Electric transmission sales
Nonmember energy sales
Due from related party
Other

17,263,588
1,891 ,872

13,220,563
510,825

6,324,389 10,463,035

Total accounts receivable $ 66,246,451$ 39,211,237

Member energy sales - Member energy sales consist of sales to Members under their wholesale power
sales contracts (see Note 1 1) and generally are not collateralized.

Electric transmission sales - Electric transmission sales consist of sales to Members and
Non-members under transmission service agreements (see Note 11) and are generally not collateralized.

Non-member energy sales - Nonmember energy sales consist of nonfirm sales to unrelated electric
utilities and are generally not collateralized.

Note 6 - Notes and Other Receivables

Related-party promissory notes - The Cooperative replaced the balance of the shortterm note to
Sierra to finance construction of solar photovoltaic distributed generation facilities with two promissory
notes (see Note 16). Each note between Sierra and AEPCO has an annual interest rate of 3.00% and a
term of 25 years. The combined notes receivable was $1 ,074,502 and $1 ,145,542 as of December 31 ,
2023 and 2022, respectively.

RUS Rural Economic Development Grant - In 1998, the Cooperative was awarded a $400,000 RUS
Rural Economic Development Grant. The Cooperative contributed matching funds in the amount of
$80,000. In 2020, the Cooperative was awarded an additional $182,213 RUS Rural Economic
Development Grant. In accordance with grant guidelines, initial loans made to qualifying recipients at a
zerointerest rate were repaid over a tenyear period. The loan repayments were used to establish a
revolving loan fund, which in turn, is used for providing loans to foster rural economic development. Loans
made from repayments of the initial loans may carry an interest rate. In November 2010, March 2012,
June 2015, March 2017, and February 2020, the Cooperative issued loans in the amount of $300,000,
$80,000, $280,000, $100,000, and $360,000, respectively, at an interest rate of 3.00%. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Cooperative has $547,567 and $510,992, respectively, of cash and
cash equivalents restricted for use in this program (see Note 4).
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Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 7 - Defer r ed  Deb its

Deferred debits at December 31 consist of the following:

2023 2022

$ $17,566,204
30,487,919

3,565,791

9,931 ,224
23,070,643

4,1 14,374

Deferred overhaul costs
Preliminary survey and investigation and other deferred debits
RS plan prepayment (See Note 14)

Total deferred debits $ 51,619,914 $ 37,116,241

Defer red overhaul costs - The Cooperative accrues for overhaul costs on the generation equipment by

charging a proportion of the estimated cost of the overhaul, over the period covered by the overhaul

cycle, to maintenance expense.

Preliminary  surveys investigation - Deferred preliminary survey and investigation costs are capitalized
to construction in progress when the construction phase begins or expensed if the project is abandoned.

Note 8 - Long-Ter m Deb t

Federal Financ ing Bank (FFB) - Long-term debt due to FFB is payable at interest rates based on
long-term obligations of the United States Government as determined on the date of advance. Interest

rates on existing FFB debt ranged from 0.645% to 4.88% in 2023 and 2022. Quarterly principal and
interest installments on these obligations extend through 2035. The obligations are guaranteed by RUS.

The Cooperative may prepay all outstanding notes by paying the principal amount plus either 1) the
difference between the outstanding principal balance of the loan being refinanced and the present value
of the loan discounted at a rate equal to the then current cost of funds to the Department of the Treasuiy

for obligations of comparable maturity, 2) 100% of the amount of interest for one year on the outstanding
principal balance of the loan being refinanced multiplied by the ratio of a) number of quarterly payment

dates remaining to maturity bears to b) number of quarterly payment dates between year 13 of the loan
and the maturity date, or 3) present value of 100% of the amount of interest for one year on the

outstanding principal balance of the loan.

Solid  Waste Disposal Revenue bonds -. These bonds are repriced and sold semi-annually at six month

intervals, on March 1st and September 1st, and AEPCO has the option to redeem at each repricing.
Principal on these bonds is due in annual installments through 2024. Interest rates on the bonds are

variable and subject to revision semiannually. The interest rates in effect at December 31, 2023 and 2022

were 4.375% and 3.30%, respectively. Interest is paid semiannually. These bonds are guaranteed by
CFC and are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity.
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Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Cooperative Finance Corporation - On November 9, 2022, the Cooperative entered into a longterm

bridge loan debt agreement with CFC to fund new generation. The loan is subject to a variable interest

rate that is established monthly and effective on the first day of each month. There was a $57,851 ,112
and $16,500,000 outstanding balance as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The average

variable interest rate in effect at December 31, 2023 and 2022 was 7.01 % and 5.75%, respectively.
Quarterly principal and interest payments on these obligations extend through 2027. The variable interest

rate on the debt is convertible to a fixed rate. The fixed rate would be equal to the rate of interest offered
by CFC at the time of the conversion request. The Cooperative may prepay f ixed rate notes in whole or in

part, subject to a prepayment premium prescribed by CFC. As of December 31, 2023, the loan is interest
only and no longterm maturities have been established.

On November 1, 2023, the Cooperative entered into a new f iveyear unsecured non-revolving bridge
Loan debt agreement with CFC to fund additional generation projects. The interest rate on advances is

calculated at a rate per annum as may be f ixed by CFC from time to time or in the case of a Secured

Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) advance, at a f ixed rate per annum equal to Adjusted Term SOFR plus
the Applicable Margin. There was a $11 ,948,819 outstanding balance as of December 31, 2023. The

interest rate on this line of credit notes averaged 6.46% as of December 31, 2023. Both bridge loans may
be converted to permanent f inancing with the bank or RUS without penalty. As of December 31, 2023, the

loan is interest only and no long-term maturities have been established.

CoBank - On November 1, 2023, the Cooperative entered into a f iveyear unsecured non-revolving

bridge Loan debt agreement with CoBank to fund additional generation projects. The interest rate on
advances is calculated at a variable or f ixed rate per annum as may be determined by CoBank from time

to time or in the case of a SOFR advance, at a f ixed rate per annum equal to Adjusted Term SOFR plus

the Applicable Margin. Subject to certain limitations, rates types may be convened. There was a
$12,948,819 outstanding balance as of December 31, 2023. The interest rate on this line of credit notes

averaged 6.626% as of December 31, 2023. The bridge loan may be converted to permanent f inancing
with the bank or RUS without penalty. As of December 31, 2023, the loan is interest only and no long

term maturities have been established.

Matur ities  o f long-term debt - Maturities of long-term debt, excluding CoBank for $12,948,819 and CFC

for $69,799,831, for the next f ive years and thereafter are as follows as of December 31, 2023:

$2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
Thereafter

14,853,029
11,452,952
11,750,755
12,034,960
12,381 ,801
86,974,506

$ 149,448,003Total long-term debt, net
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Notes to Financial Statements

On March 1, 2016, AEPCO replaced the RUS Mortgage with the Indenture, pursuant to which AEPCO
has granted a lien and a security interest in substantially all of its real and personal property to secure
current indebtedness and other obligations and to secure other indebtedness (see Note 2 - Indenture). In
connection with the adoption of the Indenture as a replacement for the RUS Mortgage, AEPCO and RUS
amended and restated the existing loan contracts as the Amended and Restated Loan Contract
(Contract), dated March 1, 2016 between AEPCO and the Government acting by and through the
Administrator of the RUS. Under the covenants of the Contract, the Cooperative must, among other
things, maintain a credit rating from at least two rating agencies and comply with covenants in the
Indenture, which includes establishment and collection of rates for the use or sale of output, capacity, or
service of the system that together with other revenues available to the Cooperative are reasonably
expected to yield margins for interest equal to at least 1.10 times secured interest charges. Management
believes these financial covenants have been achieved as of December 31, 2023.

Note 9 - Member Advances and Other Investments

Member investment program .- The Cooperative offers all Members the ability to invest funds with the
Cooperative on a shortterm basis for periods of up to nine months. The Cooperative had recorded
liabilities for notes of $11 ,463,814 and $10,000,000 at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The
interest rate on these notes averaged 5.298% and 1.519% in 2023 and 2022, respectively. Interest
expense on these notes was approximately $97,000 and $218,000 for the years ended December 31 ,
2023 and 2022, respectively.

Prepaid billing program - The Cooperative also offers a program for all Members whereby the Members
may make interest-bearing prepayments of their monthly power and transmission billings. The
prepayment and accrued interest are applied to the Members' power and transmission billings on the date
such billings become due. The Cooperative recorded no liabilities for prepayments at December 31, 2023
and 2022.

Southwest Public Power Agency - The Cooperative entered into an Energy Management Services
Agreement (Agreement) with Southwest Public Power Agency (SPPA), a Class D member of AEPCO, on
March 31, 2015, to provide accounting, reporting, scheduling, selling, purchasing, and gas hedging
services with respect to the energy available to SPPA under the Agreement. To enable AEPCO to
provide credit services necessary to this Agreement, SPPA has provided a deposit to AEPCO in the
amount of $1 ,000,000, which AEPCO has placed and will maintain in an interest bearing account
separate from other sources. SPPA is entitled to all interest that accumulates in the deposit account. The
balance in the deposit account was $1 ,143,390 and $1 ,087,383 for the years ended December 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively.
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Metropo litan Water  Dis tr ic t o f Southern Califo rn ia -. The Cooperative entered into a Scheduling and

Trading Services Agreement (Agreement) with the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California

(MWD), a class D member of AEPCO, on August 28, 2017, to provide accounting, reporting, scheduling,
selling, and purchasing services as defined in the agreement through December 31, 2035, unless

terminated under provisions within the agreement. To enable AEPCO to provide credit services
necessary to this Agreement, MWD has provided a deposit to AEPCO in the amount of $1 ,000,000,

which AEPCO has placed and will maintain in an interest bearing account separate from other sources.
MWD is entitled to all interest that accumulates in the deposit account. The balance in the deposit

account was $24,767,129 and $12,486,297 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

Note 10 - Defer red  Cred its  and Other  L iab il i t ies

Deferred credits at December 31 consist of the following:

2023 2022

$ 48,445,926
4,158,826

182,213

$ 26,663,501
4,076,033

182,213

Asset retirement obligation
Regulatory l iab il ity ARO
Pension distribution liability

Total deferred credits and other liabilities $  52 ,786 ,965 $  30 ,921 ,747

Asset retirement ob ligation - The Cooperative completed the ARO calculation for the Apache Station

Generation Plant in Cochise, Arizona, with the assumption that the assets will be in service through the
year 2035. The useful life expectations used in the calculations of the ARO are based on the assumption

that operations will continue without deviation from historical trends.

The asset retirement obligation related to generation assets at December 31 consists of the following:

20222023

$ $ 25,519,476
1,144,025

Liability at January 1
Decommission expense recognized
Liabilities incurred

26,663,501
1621 ,624

20,160,801

$ 48,445,926 $ 26,663,501Liability at December 31
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The regulatory liability related to the asset retirement obligation calculation at December 31 consists of
the following:

2023 2022

$ $Liability at January 1
Estimated recovery
Less accretion & depreciation expense

3,846,346
1,978,704

(1 ,749,017)

4,076,033
107,003
(24,210)

$ $4,158,826 4,076,033Liability at December 31

Note 11 - Commitments  and  Con tingenc ies

Class  A Member  power  sales  contrac ts  - Wholesale power  sales  contrac ts - The Cooperatve holds
allrequirements wholesale power sales contracts with three of its six Class A member cooperatives
pursuant to which each Class A member agrees to purchase from the Cooperative all of its electric power

requirements. These allrequirements power contracts expire December 31, 2035, and will remain in
effect thereafter until terminated by either party upon six months' notice. Management believes the

Cooperative will be able to fulfill its requirements on these longterm contracts.

Class  A Member  power  sales  contrac ts  - Par tial requ irements  who lesale power  contrac ts -. The

Cooperative holds partial requirements wholesale power sales contracts, expiring December 31, 2035,
with three of its Class A member cooperatives pursuant to which the Class A members have agreed to

purchase from the Cooperative electric energy up to and capacity at the member's allocated capacity

percentage in the Cooperative's total resources existing at the time of execution of the contract.

Class  A Member  network  serv ice agreements - The Cooperative has agreements to provide network

integration transmission service to deliver power to the allrequirements Class A distribution cooperative
members. The Cooperative previously entered into separate agreements to provide network integration

and pointtopoint transmission services to the partial requirements Class A members. These agreements
had a termination date of December 31, 2035. In 2023, the Cooperative and its Class A Members

amended these agreements and extended the initial term to December 31, 2052, with the term
automatically renewing for four successive additional 5-year renewal periods and a termination date on

December 31, 2072, absent any nonrenewals. In the opinion of management, the Cooperative will be
able to provide service in accordance with these agreements.

Class  B and Class  c  Member  power  sales  contrac ts - There are no Class B or C member contracts at
December 31 , 2023.

Class D Member  serv ice contrac ts - Class D membership requires the Member to enter into a service

contract for a minimum term of 2 years. The service contracts with each Cooperatives Class D members
are renewed annually until terminated by either party upon a six months written notice. At December 31 ,

2023, the Cooperative had five Class D members.

Non-member  power  and serv ices  agreements - The Cooperative holds one non-member power and

service agreement.
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Wholesale power purchase contracts - The Cooperatives current power supply includes the following
purchase power agreements:

. Hydroelectric power purchases from Western Area Power Administration (Western), a federal
power marketing agency. Under the terms of its Salt Lake City Integrated Project (formerly
Colorado River Storage Project) contract, which expires September 30, 2024, the Cooperative can
receive up to 2.4 MW during October through March, and up to 11.7 MW during April through
September, for service to its Class A members. Additionally, under the terms of a contract with the
Parker Davis Project, which expires September 30, 2028, the Cooperative receives 18.3 MW
during October through February, and 23.6 MW during March through September. Hoover (Boulder
Canyon Project) hydroelectric power purchase from Arizona Power Authority and Western of
approximately 4 MW each month October 2017-September 30, 2067.

. Power purchase agreement with Salt River Project to purchase up to 15 MW capacity and energy
at a maximum of 44% capacity factor per month and priced at less than the market price for Peak
Hours with a term to begin in January 2016 and ending 20 years thereafter. Beginning January
2017 through the remaining term of the contract, 1.755 MW will be allocated to Navopache Electric
Cooperative.

Solar serv ices agreements - The Cooperative's current power supply includes the following solar
services agreements:

. Solar services agreement with Sierra to purchase up to 20 MW alternating current electricity at a
maximum of 100% capacity factor per month with a term to begin on October 10, 2017 and ending
on October 9, 2026. Unless either party provides ninety days written notice of intent not to renew,
the agreement shall be renewed for additional five year terms provided no renewal term extends
beyond the termination date of the corresponding interconnection agreement.

. Solar services agreement with Sierra to purchase up to 2 MW alternating current electricity at a
maximum of 100% capacity factor per month with a term to begin on August 17, 2017 and ending
on August 16, 2026. Unless either party provides ninety days written notice of intent not to renew,
the agreement shall be renewed for additional five year terms provided no renewal term extends
beyond the termination date of the corresponding interconnection agreement.

. Solar services agreement with Sierra to purchase up to 1.35 MW alternating current electricity at a
maximum of 100% capacity factor per month and the capacity from a 2 MW/ 4 MWh battery energy
storage system with a term to begin on December 9, 2020 and ending on December 8, 2027.
Unless either party provides ninety days written notice of intent not to renew, the agreement shall
be renewed for additional five year terms provided no renewal term extends beyond the termination
date of the corresponding interconnection agreement.

. Energy storage services agreement with Sierra to purchase the capacity from a 2.4 MW/ 5.2 MWh
battery energy storage system with a term to begin on October 25, 2022 and ending on October
24, 2027. Unless either party provides ninety days written notice of intent not to renew, the
agreement shall be renewed for additional five year terms provided no renewal term extends
beyond the termination date of the corresponding interconnection agreement.
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Wholesale transmission contracts -. The Cooperative holds three separate pointto-point transmission
agreements to provide pointto-point transmission services for delivering to other Southwest Reserve
Sharing Group (SRSG) members under the SRSG Agreement and for the Joint Generation Contingency
Reserve Plan (N1 Plan). The first agreement provides for reserved transmission capacity of 30 MW for
delivery of energy to other SRSG participants, the second agreement provides for reserved transmission
capacity of 175 MW for the receipt of energy from other SRSG participants in the event of a loss of
Apache generation, and the third agreement provides for reserved transmission capacity of 110 MW as
established in the N-1 Plan. Each of these agreements, which renew annually, are expected to remain in
effect for the term of the Members' network service agreements. In the opinion of Management, the
Cooperative will be able to provide service in accordance with these agreements.

Other transmission serv ice agreements - The Cooperative provides separate transmission service
agreements (Point-to-point and Network Integration) with other entities in accordance with the
Cooperative's Open Access Transmission Tariff (OATT) or other preOATT agreements. These other
transmission service agreements provide for reserved transmission capacity and will remain in effect in
accordance with each respective service agreement. In the opinion of Management, the Cooperative will
be able to provide service in accordance with these agreements.

Transmission wheeling agreements - The Cooperative purchases transmission wheeling rights from
other entities. There are currently six (five with Western Area Power Administration - Desert Southwest
Region and one with Southern California Edison) transmission wheeling agreements under which the
Cooperative purchases transmission to provide for deliveries to AEPCO's Class A members loads. There
are currently five wheeling agreements (one with Western Areas Power Administration - Desert
Southwest Region, two with El Paso Electric, one with Tucson Electric Power, and one with Salt River
Project) under which the Cooperative moves power from market hubs into the Cooperative's service area.
These transmission wheeling agreements expire at various times and may include associated roll-over
rights.

Rate filing application - transmission - On September 1, 2021, the Cooperative filed an application
with the Commission to determine the fair value of its property for rate making purposes, to fix a just and
reasonable return thereon, and to approve rates designed to develop such return. The Cooperative also
requested the continuance of its purchased power and fuel cost adjustor (PPFAC) and environmental
cost adjustment rider (ECAR), the approval of updated depreciation rates, and a new Transmission
Adjustor (TA) and Plan of Administration. On May 9, 2023, the ACC issued a decision approving the
Cooperative's application, authorizing new rate tariffs, depreciation rates, PPFAC, and transmission
adjuster, all of which became effective on July 1, 2023.
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Fuel procurement contracts - Coal supply agreements - To ensure an adequate fuel supply, the
Cooperative enters into various longterm fuel contracts. At December 31, 2023 and 2022, these
contracts consist of:

. A 60month agreement that originally required the Cooperative to purchase approximately
3,220,000 tons of coal during the term of the agreement. The agreement has since been amended
to replace the term of the agreement with January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2024 and limit
the remaining base tonnage obligation to 1,060,000 tons effective January 1, 2016. The
amendment further limits the purchase and delivery of coal to approximately 176,000 tons in 2017,
153,000 tons in year 2018, 221 ,000 tons in 2019, and 92,060 tons in year 2020. A new amendment
signed in year 2020 includes a quantity of 125,000 tons to be purchased in year 2021 with an
optional tonnage quantity of 75,000 tons to be purchased in year 2021. A new amendment signed
in 2021 includes a quantity of 235,000 tons to be purchased in year 2022 with an optional tonnage
quantity of 83,000 tons to be purchased in year 2022. A new amendment signed in 2022 includes a
quantity of 300,000 tons to be purchased in year 2023, and a quantity of 257,000 tons to be
purchased in year 2024 with an optional tonnage quantity of 43,000 tons to be purchased in year
2024.

. A 7month agreement for 85,000 tons to be delivered in year 2020 and an amendment to this
agreement extending the term for another 12 months thru 2021, adding an additional 187,500 tons
of coal to be delivered through 2021. A new amendment signed in year 2021 includes a quantity of
240,000 tons to be purchased in year 2022 with an optional tonnage quantity of 70,000 tons to be
purchased in the year 2022. A new amendment signed in year 2022 includes a quantity of 300,000
tons to be purchased in year 2023 and a quantity of 257,000 tons to be purchased in the year 2024
with an optional tonnage quantity of 43,000 tons to be purchased in the year 2024.

Coal railcar lease agreements - To provide for the shipment of the coal supply, the Cooperative entered
into lease agreements for the lease of coal railcar trainsets (see Note 15 - Coal railcar trainsets).

Coal railcar maintenance agreement - The Cooperative entered into railcar management services
agreement, effective January 1, 201 s, for the maintenance of the coal railcar trainset leased under the
20year lease agreement (see Note 15 - Coal railcar trainsets). The term of the original maintenance
agreement was extended to December 31 , 2025.

Collective bargaining agreement - Approximately 33% of the personnel employed by the Cooperatives
work force are subject to a collective bargaining agreement. The Cooperative entered into a fiveyear
collective bargaining agreement effective March 1, 2023 through February 28, 2026.

Letters of credit - A letter of credit in the amount of $800,000 was obtained by the Cooperative from
CFC for the purpose of providing credit support for a power purchase agreement with Salt River Project
Agricultural Improvement and Power District (SRP). The letter of credit was issued to SRP on
December 1, 2015, and was renewed during 2023. The agreement will expire on December 31, 2024.
The interest rate, if draws were to occur, will be equal to a fixed rate set by CFC, not to exceed the
Prevailing Bank Prime Rate, as published in the Money Rates column of The Wall Street Journal, plus
one percent per annum. As a condition of the letter of credit, the Cooperative is required to remain in
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Indenture and Contract (see Note 2 and Note 8).
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Lines o f c red it - On June 5, 2014, the Cooperative entered into a f ive-year committed unsecured line of

credit agreement with CFC for $50,000,000. On July 20, 2022, the Cooperative increased the unsecured

commitment to $75,000,000 and extended the agreement to July 2027. The interest rate on advances will
be calculated at a rate per annum as may be f ixed by CFC from time to time or in the case of a SOFR

advance, at a f ixed rate per annum equal to Adjusted Term SOFR plus the Applicable Margin. There was
a $30,000,000 outstanding balance as of December 31, 2022 and a $33,000,000 balance outstanding as

of December 31, 2023. The interest rate on this line of credit notes averaged 6.46% and 5.42% as of
December 31, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

On August 21, 2014, the Cooperative entered into a f iveyear committed unsecured line of credit
agreement with CoBank for $50,000,000. On July 20, 2022, the Cooperative increased the unsecured

commitment to $75,000,000 and extended the agreement to July 2027. The interest rate on advances will
be calculated at a Base Rate Option, at a rate per annum equal to the Base Rate plus the Applicable

Margin, or in the case of a Term SOFR Option, at a f ixed rate per annum equal to Adjusted Term SOFR

plus the Applicable Margin. There was a $29,029,412 outstanding balance as of December 31, 2023, and
a $33,000,000 outstanding balance as of December 31, 2022. The interest rate on this line of credit

averaged 6.63% and 5.44% as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Financ ing leases - Financing lease property and the related liabilities are in substance asset purchases.

Assets and liabilities under f inancing leases are recorded at the lesser of the present value of the
minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets. The assets are amortized over their related lease

terms or their estimated useful lives, whichever is less.

On January 28, 2013, the Cooperative entered into a master lease agreement for the lease of

substantially all of the Cooperative's vehicles. Individual lease schedules underlying the master lease

agreement are entered into as individual vehicles are delivered. Each lease schedule includes a
description of the vehicle, the lease term and the monthly rental and other payments due with respect to

the vehicle. The term for each vehicle begins on the date each vehicle is delivered and continues as
described in the individual schedule.

Computer  equ ipment - The Cooperative entered into master lease agreements for the lease of
substantially all the Cooperatives personal computers and peripheral equipment. Individual certif icates of

acceptance (COAs) underlying the master lease agreements are entered into as groups of computers
and equipment are delivered. The terms of the COAs are for up to six years. Rent expense for the lease

of the computer equipment was approximately $419,000 and $362,000 for the years ended December 31 ,
2023 and 2022, respectively, and is included in administration and general on the accompanying

statements of revenues and expenses and unallocated accumulated margins.

Copier  equ ipment - The Cooperative entered into two and three lease agreements for the lease of
copier equipment for 2023 and 2022, respectively. The terms of each lease is 60 months. Rent expense

for the lease of copier equipment was approximately $43,437 and $51 ,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively and is included in administration and general on the

accompanying statements of revenues and expenses and unallocated accumulated margins.
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Hydrogen bu lk  s torage vessel - The Cooperative entered into a lease agreement for the lease of a
storage vessel to store hydrogen gas. The term of the lease agreement is 60 months and is automatically

renewed at the end of each term for 60 months unless either party gives written termination notice at least
six (6) months before the expiration of the current term. The current 60 month period expires November 1,

2027. Rent expense for the lease of the storage vessel was approximately $32,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Coal railcar  trainsets .- The Cooperative entered into lease agreements for the lease of coal railcar
train sets. Lease payments are included as a component of fuel expense. At December 31, 2023, these
lease agreements consist of the following:

A 20-year lease agreement, effective December 17, 2002 was extended effective January 1, 2023.

Lease payments under this agreement totaled approximately $319,000 and $369,000 in 2023 and
2022. The Cooperative has the option of canceling this agreement effective December 31, 2025

subject to the Cooperative notifying the lessor in writing on or before 30 days prior to the effective
date of the termination.

Future minimum financing lease payments and present values of the minimum lease payments are as
follows as of December 31, 2023:

$Years ending December 31 v 2024

2025
2026
2027

884,627
714,436
385,099
405,479

2,389,641
49,021

Total minimum lease payments
Less amount representing interest

2,340,620
884,627

Present value of minimum lease payments
Less current portion

$ 1 ,455,993Total minimum payments, net

The following provides the supplemental information related to f inancing leases for the purpose of the

measurement of lease liabilities at December 31 :

2023 2022

35 $ 675,197
20 years
0.87%

572,209
3.58
4.24

Financing cash flows from financing leases
Weighted average remaining lease term
Weighted average discount rate

Legal - in the normal course of business, the Cooperative is party to claims and matters of litigation. The

ultimate outcome of these matters cannot presently be determined, however, in the opinion of the
Management of the Cooperative, the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on

the Cooperative's f inancial position, results of operations, or liquidity.
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Note 12 - Patronage Capital

Patronage capital allocation - In accordance with the Cooperative's bylaws, the Cooperative is
obligated to account, on a patronage basis, to all its Members for all amounts received and receivable
from the sale and/or delivery of electric energy and other services in excess of the sum of:

operating costs and expenses, including interest on debt service, properly chargeable against the
sale and/or delivery of electric energy and other services, and,

. amounts required to offset any losses incurred during the current or any prior fiscal years.

All such amounts in excess of operating costs, expenses, and prior losses at the moment of receipt by the
Cooperative are received with the understanding that they are furnished by the Members as capital. The
Cooperative is obligated to pay by credits to a capital account for each Member for all such amounts as
credits in proportion to the value or quantity of the Cooperative's service used, received, or purchased by
each Member during the applicable fiscal year in excess of operating costs and expenses and prior
losses.

Patronage capital retirement - Per the Indenture, AEPCO may retire patronage capital without further
restriction as long as aggregated margins and equity are maintained at a level that is at least 30% of total
long-term debt and equities. The retirements for 2023 and 2022 were $314,713 and $0, respectively.

Note 13 - Employee Benefit Plans

Managed Time Off (MTO) - Employees earn paid timeoff based on years of service and hours worked
in the current period. The maximum accrued MTO for each employee is limited to a predetermined
amount as established by policy of the Cooperative's Board of Directors. Any earned MTO not taken by
an employee at the time of separation from employment in good standing may be paid in lump-sum as a
termination benefit. Each year, employees with MTO exceeding 120 hours may convert up to 80 hours to
cash at the employees current base rate of pay

Pension plans - The Cooperative has a defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all of its
employees. Pension benefits are provided through participation in the National Rural Electric Cooperative
Association (NRECA) Retirement Security Plan (RS Plan). The Cooperative contributes a percentage of
salaried and union employees' earnings to the program, as prescribed by NRECA. The Cooperatives
policy has been to fund retirement costs annually as they accrue. Withdrawal from the RS Plan may result
in the Cooperative having a significant obligation to the program. The Cooperative does not currently
intend to withdraw from the plan and accordingly, no provision has been included in the accompanying
financial statements.

The NRECA RS Plan is a defined benefit pension plan qualified under Section 401 and taxexempt under
Section 501 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code. It is a multi employer plan under the accounting standards.
The plan sponsors Employer Identification Number is 53-01 16145 and the Plan Number is 333. A unique
characteristic of a multi employer plan compared to a single employer plan is that all plan assets are
available to pay benefits of any plan participant. Separate asset accounts are not maintained for
participating employers. This means that assets contributed by one employer may be used to provide
benefits to employees of other participating employers.
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The Cooperatives contributions to the RS Plan in 2023 and 2022 represented less than 5 percent of the
total contributions made to the plan by all participating employers. Contributions by the Cooperative to

this plan approximated $3,351 ,000 and $3,158,000 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. Contributions in 2023 reflect a reduction in the contribution billing rate of approximately 25%

resulting from the Cooperatives voluntary decision to prepay RS Plan contributions (See RS Plan
prepayment).

In the RS Plan a "zone status" determination is not required, and therefore not determined, under the

Pension Protection Act (PPA) of 2006. In addition, the accumulated benefit obligations and plan assets
are not determined or allocated separately by individual employer. in total, the RS Plan was over

80 percent funded on January 1, 2023 and 2022, based on the PPA funding target and PPA actuarial

value of assets on those dates.

Because the provisions of the PPA do not apply to the RS Plan, funding improvement plans and

surcharges are not applicable. Future contribution requirements are determined each year as part of the

actuarial valuation of the plan and may change as a result of plan experience.

The Cooperative offers participation in the 401 (k) Pension Plan to nonunion employees hired prior to

January 1, 2012 and union employees hired prior to January 1, 2019 who meet certain minimum service
requirements. This plan has 401 (k) salary deferral features. Under this plan, the Cooperative matches a
percentage of the employees' contributions to the plan. The Cooperative's contributions to the plan were

approximately $337,000 and $353,000 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Cooperative offers participation in the 401 (k) Pension Plan to non-union employees hired after

December 31, 2011 and union employees hired after December 31, 2018 who have no prior RS Plan
participation history and meet certain minimum service requirements. This plan has 401 (k) salary deferral

features. Under this plan, the Cooperative matches a percentage of the employees contributions to the

plan. The Cooperatives contributions to the plan were approximately $402,000 and $445,000 for the

years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

RS Plan prepayment - On April 29, 2013, the Cooperative voluntarily prepaid contributions of

$9,600,21 1 to the NRECA RS Plan. The prepayment amount is the Cooperative's share as of January 1,
2013, of future contributions required to fund the RS Plans unfunded value of benefits earned to date

using RS Plan actuarial valuation assumptions. The prepayment was the equivalent of approximately
2.5 times the Cooperative's 2013 annual required contribution and will result in an approximate 25%
reduction in the Cooperative's required contributions as of January 1, 2013. The 25% differential in billing

rates is expected to continue for approximately 15 years. However, changes in interest rates, asset

returns and other plan experience different from expected, plan assumption changes and other factors

may have an impact on the differential in billing rates and the 15 year period. In accordance with the
guidance provided by RUS to its borrowers, the Cooperative created a deferred debit and will amortize it

over 17.5 years starting January 1, 2013.

Defer red compensation programs - The Cooperative offers a program to key employees whereby

these employees may elect to set aside a portion of current compensation to be paid out at a later date
upon a qualifying event including retirement, termination of employment, death, or disability. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, there was one participant in the program.
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Effective March 1, 2016, the Cooperative offers a program (Top Hat Plan) to key employees whereby
these employees may elect to set aside a portion of current compensation to be paid out at a later date
selected by the employee upon initial participation in the plan or upon a qualifying event including
retirement, termination of employment, death, or disability. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, there was
one participant in this program.

Effective January 1, 2016, the Cooperative offers a program (Performance Incentive 457(f) Plan) to a
select group of management, key employees, or highly compensated employees within the meaning of
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA), which is intended to be a nonqualified
deferred compensation plan maintained in conformity with the requirements of Internal Revenue Code
Section 457(f). All amounts deferred under the Plan shall constitute short~term deferrals for the purposes
of Code Section 409A. Benefits payable under the Plan shall be payable only if the participant achieves
the performance goal or goals outlined in the Plan addendum. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, there
was one participant in this program.

Note 15 - Concentration of Customers and Credit Risk

Revenue and accounts receivable for the year ended December 31, 2023, included amounts from three
customers, whom each individually represented more than 10% of the total operating revenue and
accounts receivable. Revenue from these customers collectively represented approximately 85% of total
operating revenue for 2023. The amounts owed from these customers collectively represented
approximately 40% of the total accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2023.

Revenue and accounts receivable for the year ended December 31, 2022, included amounts from three
customers, whom each individually represented more than 10% of the total operating revenue and
accounts receivable. Revenue from these customers collectively represented approximately 59% of total
operating revenue for 2022. The amounts owed from these customers collectively represented
approximately 29% of the total accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2022.

Note 16 - Related-parties

The Cooperative is a member of Sierra. Sierra is a member-owned, non-profit Arizona cooperative
corporation organized to provide electric power and energy related products and services to its members
and other patrons. The Cooperative is represented by two delegates. Each delegate is seated as a
director on the Cooperative's Board of Directors and is entitled to one vote on each matter submitted to a
vote at a meeting of the directors.

The Cooperative entered into an agreement with Sierra to lease certain real property (Property) to Sierra
for the purpose of constructing and operating a 20 megawatt (MW) AC solar photovoltaic generating
facility system (Generating Facility), which will be located on a portion of the Property. The term of the
agreement is effective October 16, 2017 through December 31, 2045, and shall be automatically renewed
as long as the Generating Facility remains in commercial operation. The Cooperative recorded solar site
rental income from Sierra totaling approximately $10,000 and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively.
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The Cooperative entered into an agreement with Sierra to f inance construction of solar photovoltaic

distributed generation facilities with two promissory notes (see Note 6). The combined notes receivable

was $1 ,074,502 and $1 ,145,542 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

As of December 31, 2023, the Cooperative has recorded approximately $360,000 accounts payable to

Sierra and there were approximately $501 ,000 accounts receivable from Sierra. As of December 31 ,
2022, the Cooperative has recorded approximately $354,000 accounts payable to Sierra and there were

approximately $382,000 accounts receivable from Sierra. The net receivable or payable are included in
the accompanying balance sheets as accounts receivable or payable.
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MOSSADAMS@

Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors
Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, of Arizona Electric Power
Cooperative, Inc. (the "Cooperative") as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Arizona Electric Power
Cooperative, Inc. basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 29,
2024.

Report on Internal Control Over FinancialReporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Arizona Electric
Power Cooperative, lnc.s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, lnc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, lnc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Report  on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Arizona Electric Power Cooperative, Inc.'s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of th is  Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

./.IP03374
Portland, Oregon
March 29. 2024

30



x
x

x
+x

x

+
1 4

x x

/ +

x 1
*2

. . pg ++ ++ +
r

+
V t + +

X
-

++++
x

1.

+ i n

x
x

.

4 -x; c

V t + +.4

-

i '
- -

+++ +

2
9x

M 2x
_ .

a +++
x x

x
-:4+

J:
+v

x X

A

>c 7
+ _

$ 4

x
x

: :

2 - x x + x x + x . + - - z - Z x z

x Z : : ... I I x .. x + x + Z or ?. Z 7.

+ - < + - v + - >t + - x 2 + v z z 7

:c ;4 + an : + x + - x z + - x Z x 2 2 Z x ;1 x

x ; + + ; : + - x Z + z z
14 Sc / - M .4 - up x > - x 14 2 14 - Z z

x - >: K + - x 3 + x 7. x + - : t vs - z :4

+ )c x + - DD z >: - X v: z z >: up -

x l x 2 + x 2 + x 91 + -. z + x z x 2 Z

- x 11 - : : - x 1 + - >c pa + : .4 : : Z :4 - ac

. . Z + - x x + x z + x Z 2 z z x z
+ - x / 14 - x x + v: z 7.

x 9 + :c >< + x ;< + - >< x z 2 x 2

z - x 7: - x / . - x : : x - ac - Vt z v: 2

>< + - X + 7 x + x x + z vs 2 2

+ - x i t + >c + x - x i - x 2 Z z

Y. x x 4 >c 14 + x .4 + x pa + >: M Z Z 2

x - x 2 x - >c at x x - x x x - z z

Z + - x x - x x + - x z + / + x z z 72

34 + X M + . - x 14 + - x x + Jc z x z y z

- x 2 + x ; : + - x + x 2 + x I : ac 1 z x z

z + - x + - x x + x - x : f + - x - z

1 + v. x 7 : ( x r - 14 + - ac z Z z

x 2 X x - x :4 I ( ; 2 2 Z

M + - x z v + - x + >: z + - x x x z 2

- x + - x + - x - x v + - ac L + - x :4 - 14

+ x x + x + x / . + - x x + - x + as we 2 z

>c - x ; x 14 - x v - x LE - >c LE z pa 14

X 7. + - J( 14 x x 4 - x 14 + - x x an Z

71 mc / . - x - 2 J( 1 + x 71 up z z

X. + . Z + x J * x z + - 94 + x Z z

+ >c + :< / . z X >1 + :c x x Vt x z

+ Z + x ac + - /. + z + - x >< Z z x z

- x v. - x x - x x + x + Qt + >: x ac - z ./.

+ x z 1 x x Z - x + - x y 1 Z x : r z

ac - x 1 - c - x ac - x ac - x Vt z z 2 -

x + o. + - MI + - x x + - x 2 + Se :c

A + - >: x ; + - + - >< ; + - x 2 ac Z Z

:< .4 + - >c z >: Q + ac .4 - >: + 2 z 2 za z

- x no + . x x - x LE - x 1. - x x z 14 7:

x - x z + - . + - x x + - z 1 - >: QS 14 - Z

- x + - Jc z 4 x 2 + - + up x + . z Z - z

+ - x + - x 11 - x 1 x Z + - >c 7 1 z y. 2 - z

x + - x + - K x + - x + - x + x - z z - Z

x / x 2 + - x z + LE + x x z z ?: an
x - x z I( ; - ;< x ;< - x Z 72 x x

;< + x x 71 + - x / . + x + - z
+ x x + - x ; + - x x + - >: >. _ x > + z x

+ - x + x 2 + - x x. + - x + x >< x 2
- x L x z + >c - x . - x

ac + x - nc . : + - x 2. + x 2 2 - z
+ - X x n Vt - x x - x j + - 14 z z x z

x 2 + - x 2 + X x + + x X + z z z
z x x + - :< x - x - + - x x 2 z - 7: Vt

Z z Z x ac v: Z x
_ ._xx z1 4z1 4

1 _ -
- Z xZ z Z?z 7 1? 7 2

-

b e>: 2 8zor2 + : :ac+ ++
Z > :x Id 2 4

z A2x ac zz
- -42 1 4 y.3 4 a nx

zId +I i + +x z+z 1 4+ 7 5

I( z x zz 7.
z +x S c2w eS ez+

- 4Z xz :4z or Zxz 2
_- -Z 2z Zz ZZ 2y x

-- x 1 6+ z
7.Z 2 x2

III +

73 + Z + ++
I

ac ++
zZ a c2 Zz2

1 4xx zx z xz 2
Z z4 4 xS e y

122p a 1 4

x
+ +++

zx 2x1 4 acxx
I(z 2; qz z + zZ

- S eS c xz zx z
as2x x ?.zx x+

Z 2 S cS c ZZ vs

._xZ zz z xxx
-z Zx S c z7.z

- z Z:¢ w e3 4++ +++
2 za s 3 xz 2 4 .

1 4zz S cx z x
- -4+M25 4 Z Nz

++ Z : » :z+ S c+ Zl d x++ 2
- Z z yz

_z z x zz+ z y
3x Za cz z Zz zz

-- - xxZZ x xS c 7 5

- - Zxz i n zz v. z
- + 2 Zx + :42Z+7 2 z +

z x2 7 3

xz 2 of zs : x atV!

x b eAz zy

11 4 1 4+ 3 4

J:

+ a n zp a

as2zx y. ac :4

z 2
- S cZx z x S e

+
x

- -vx + S czx Z
Zzz 2 z x S c7

xZx Zv:

moss5oAms
z@

2 a n xor

: ¢vs 2 f.z +
x

+++
V!z z: <

1 4 zz z z
- - -: e v: <z x x

z + + xZ Nzz Z 2:

zzv: Zx
- ) z ZzS cz z

+ - - x x be + - x 4 + - x z + - x + - x
+ + + - - x + - x x + - x + - >c + - x

x x - Jc + - x z + - ac + - x + - x z + - x +

: + - + x + x + x + - x + . ac

- - x - x - x + - x z + - x + - x x + - uc + - x we + -
+ - + 4 x + - + + - ac + x x + - x z + - x +

x + . + -. x z + x + - x + x + x + x
+ 1 + + + + - x + - x + x + x z +

- . - x - + x 2 + - x + - x z + x + - x

+ + + 1 :c x + x + x + 1 x :. + - x
x - - x + x as + - x + - x + - x + - x +

mc + x + + x J( + x of + x x + - x z + x + x
- - x + .. + x + - x + - x av + ac + x +

+ + + + x + A - x + x x - as - ac
; - x + - x - - x + - x + - x + - x z + x + x

.4 x + + :< ; + - x + - an x + x + - x + - x + -
+ - - - - + - Le z x be + as + - x + x

+ + - + + + x + x - x x + - x + x
+ - ac + x - x + x + - x 4 - x a. - x 2 +

:c + - + x + x z + - x + - x Z + - x Z
;1 - + - x + x + - x + x £4 + - x + -

- x + x + x + - x 9: + - x 2 + - x ac + - x x +
x - x - T - x x z + - at + x + - x + x | x

+ Q + - + >c + + + I x + - x - x v. x x or

+ x x + - x we + - + - ac + - x ac + - x

+ x we + - be an + - no + - x + x + - x

- - - - ac + - x + - x + - x 1 x 2 +

1 + + + + + + - Sc 2 + x + x x + i be

- . - + x + x + - x + - x x + x z +
+ + + x + + - x + - X + ac + or / + - x x +

x x - - :c - x z + - x + - x + - x z + - x + - x
+ : : + + - x + - x + - x + x 4 - x be 4 -

- x - X >: + - x + - x + - x + - x + - x 75
+ + - x - x + - x + - x + x + x + - x

- + + + x x + - x + - x + x x +
+ + + + + 2 - x + - x + * x - x + x at

- x x - x x + - x + - x we + - x x + - x + -
+ - x + - x + - x + - x + - x x + - x 14 +

+ - - + < - x + - x + x + x + x + - x
+ + + + + - x + x x x - x - x z

+ x x + - x + x + - x x + - x x + - x x
- x - x + - x + - x 2 + x + - x x | - x

+ + - x z + - x 4 - x + - x + x +
x - 2 + - x z + x as + - x + - x 4 x

- - - x - + x + x | x + - x x + - X 4 -
+ + - + nc + - + - x - x - x + - x z .4 - ac +

L + 51 + ac z + - x as + x >: + - x 2 + - x
+ - x 24 + - x + x + - x Z + x Z +

x - + x Z + x 2 + + x + . x Sc
+ + - + + x ac Sc 2 + - Se x 2 + - x + x

x - / + + - - x + - x + - x x + - x + x +
x + x + + + x 2 + x x + x F x + - x

- - x - x Z 4 - x + - x + x z + - x + 1
+ - + + 1.1 + - x + - x + x + - x + x z +

x + - x + - x + - x + - x + - x + - x + - x + - x z + - x z + - x
+ - x 2: + - x + - we + x z + - x z + - x + - x + - x + - we + x z + -

+ - x z + x + ac + - x + - x + x + - x + x + - x + x
- x + x + x - ac + x 2 + x - x + - as v: - x + - x - x

+ x + x + - x z + x + x 2 + x x + x Z + - x x + - x 4. x +
x + x + x + . x + x 8 + x + x 2 + x + x + x is + 1 x z

as + x z + - x z + x + as + x + x + >¢ 2 + x + - x pa +
+ x - x y + - ac + - x x x 14 x x - x - x 2 + - K +

x + - x 4 - x 7 ! - x + - x z + - x + - x + - x z + x ac + - x + - x
+ x + x z + x + x 2 x + x + x + x x + x x + -

+ Q x + x + K + - ac + Q X + x + x + x + x + x
x + - x + - x + - x + x + x + - x + x + - x + - x + - x

x x + x x + x Z + x x 2: x zc + x + x z i x 9 - x +
x + - x 2 - x + - x - x - x z - x + - x + - x - x 14 x

- x + - x + - x + - as v: + - x + - x >: + - x + as Vt + - x + - x + -
+ 1 x + . x + x A + x + x + - x + -. x + - x + - x 2 + x +

x + - x pa + - x + - x z + - x + x + x + - x + x z + x + x
Sc 2 + x za + - x - x as + - be x - x an + - be + - x ze - ac + - x +

+ x + - x + x + - x z + - x 2 + - x + - x + x z + x + - x
x + ¢ x an + - x + x + x + x + x y - x + - x + - x + x

+ x + - x + - x + x + - x + x an + x + - x 2 + - x 2 + . x +
Jc + - x : : + - x + x x + x + x Z + x z + :c + x + x

- x + - x + - x z + - x + - x + - x 2 + - 2 + - 2 + 2 2 + - 2 + -
+ - x + - 2 2 4 - 2 + - x + - 2 + - 2 + x 2 + K + - x 2 + - x +

2 + 2 + x + x 2 + 2 + 2 2 * - x + . 2 4 1 2 2 + - 2 + x
ac Vt - ac + - x - x ac + - we - x + - x 2 + - x - 94 ac + x 7: + -

+ x + x + x Z + x Z + - x 14 + - x + x 24 + - x + x + - x

x + x PE + x Z + x x + ac + x + - x + x + x + Ar + - x

+ x + be + x 1 x 4 x i i + x + - x pa + x 2 + - be an + - x 34 +

ac + - x z - x :4 - x z - x - x - x + - x + - x + - x - x
- x Sc 4 x 2 + x z + x + x + - x x + x + x 2 + x x + x 4

+ x 2 x + x + x 72 + x + x Sc + - x Z + - x + x + x +
x | - x + 3 X + - x + - J: + x : : + x + - x + x + x + - x

+ x 2 + x + - x + - x + x + - x + - x ac | - x 4 x + - x 4 -
+ x 4 x + - x v + - t - x an 4 x 4 - x + x ac + - x + - x

x - x ;¢ - x + - x + uc + - x z x - x + - x + - >¢ + - x
+ as v: + x 2 + x ac + x 2 1 - ... ac + ac + as Z + +

x + as + x + - x + - . x z + + ac + x + 1 x + ac

x 4 - x + ; . + x + x x + - x 2 + ac + x + -
- x + - Se x - x vs + x + - x + x + - Sc 2 + - x +

x + - x + x + - x + - x z + - x + x + - x + 4 x
+ x z + x Z + 1 ac + x x + - x + x x + - X Z +

+ - x + - x 2 + x + x + x :4 + x + - x
x + x + - x + x + x >c + x :. + x

+ 1 x + - x + - x + - x - x + - x + - x +
x + - x + x x + x + - x + D x + - x + x x

- x + - x + x x + - x 2: + 2 + - x + - x x + -
- x + - x x - x x + x 9 x 2 - x Vt + - x +

x 14 + - x + - x 2 + - x + x - x x + x + x
+ x 2 + x + x + - x + A x + . x + x x +

+ x + x 2 + - x x + - x - x + - x + - x
u x - x x + x + - + 1 x + x x + x

+ x x + - x + - x x + x 3 x x + x * - x +
x + x x + - x + x + - + x + x + x xx

- x
x +

+ - x -
v + x 4

- x + x
y + x x + -

x + - x x


